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About us
B i AN

CT Environmental Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
is a professional environmental plan and solution provider which offers one-stop centralized
and customized environmental protection services. The Group is substantially engaged in
services in the whole chain, inclusive of industrial wastewater treatment, industrial water
supply, solid waste (regulated waste included) and hazardous waste disposal and treatment,
urban and domestic waste detoxification, and environmental inspection. The Group’s service
packages cover all processes from the planning, construction, operation to the maintenance
of the environmental protection facilities.
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Company Profile and Corporate Information
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Chairman’s Statement

EIFRBES
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Dear Shareholders, BERMPIMARER -

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of HRNAEARXRPERERREBETRLAA(AH
CT Environmental Group Limited (the “Company”, together withits A8 |- EFHEKNB AT [A&H )
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present to you a brief review EZEEZZ(EEE OB TRZ24AEER
of the Group’s business and financial position of the Group in 2016, as 2016 F I R B I LA R 1T AR K
well as the outlook for the industry. RE -
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In 2016, the Chinese government announced various policies under
the 13th Five-Year Plan to promote environmental protection,
while tightening the laws and regulations to define more clearly the
responsibilities of environmental protection bodies. These measures
have resulted in an increased demand for our core services, which are
primarily industrial wastewater, sludge and hazardous waste treatment
services. Last year, several of our projects started construction and
others came into operation to strengthen our fully integrated offer.
Given the favorable policies — which are here to stay — we are confident
in the growth of the environmental industry in China and as a result
anticipate great opportunities ahead.

Our strong management team has successfully implemented the
development strategies put in place at the beginning of the year to
provide steady sustainable growth for the business. We recorded
revenues of RMB1,865.9 million, representing a 30% increase
compared to 2015. The attributable operating profit to the Company’s
equity shareholders reached RMB589.6 million, representing a 17%
increase compared to 2015. These results were in line with our
expectations and are due to newly developed projects, the capacity
increase of several projects and the revenue contribution from recent
acquisitions. However, our profit attributable to the Company’s
equity shareholders in 2016 was RMB519.1 million representing a
slight decrease compared to RMB598.9 million in 2015 due to one-
off items in particular from foreign exchange loss. The Board resolved
a final dividend of HKDO0.67 cents per share. In addition, the Group
transferred its equity interest in the land at Tangmei Village, Xintang
Town in Zengceng for a net profit of approximately RMB48.0 million,
which when this income is recognized, the sum will be paid out to
shareholders as a special dividend.

Over the past year, we had three key areas of focus for the business:
firstly, we diversified our customers from the traditional textile industry
to include new industries such as automobile manufacturers and
papermaking; secondly, we expanded from Guangdong to other
provinces in the region; and thirdly, our services expanded from an
early focus on water treatment to now include sludge, solid waste and
hazardous waste treatment and disposal. Building on this momentum,
we have a number of key initiatives in place which provide the
technological innovation and the capital needs to support our growth.
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Chairman’s Statement

EIFRBES

By optimizing the way that we manage our business, upgrading our
technology and investing in infrastructure, the Group continued to push
forward our areas of focus. Yulin (Fumian) Energy-saving Environmental
Protection Industrial Park located in Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region, which is our first comprehensive environment project in
Guangxi Province, combines our expertise in energy-saving, recycling,
integration and eco-friendliness. The industrial park will proactively
enhance the province’s environmental excellence, and will become
the benchmark for energy-efficient and eco-friendly industrial parks in
Guangxi Autonomous Region. Building on early success, together with
the local government, we have entered into a series of cooperation
agreements including the strategic cooperation agreement for the
Nanliujiang River Basin environment comprehensive treatment and
economic synergy development project. This demonstrates the Group’s
expertise in cross-provincial planning layout and external expansion,
and our ambition to grow this aspect of our business further.

With regard to technological innovation, the 13th Five-Year Plan
classified “innovation” as the top of the five main development areas
to drive future growth. The Group has always considered innovation
to be important for sustainable, future growth which gives us a real,
competitive edge. This is demonstrated by our national and provincial
environmental protection technology projects, from environmental
protection research to environmental inspection accreditation. Our
initiatives align with market interests and are commercially more
attractive. As of the date of publication of this report, Guangzhou
Xintao Wastewater Treatment Company Limited, Guangzhou Haitao
Environmental Protection Technology Company Limited, Guangzhou
Lvyou Industrial Waste Reclamation Treatment Company Limited
and Heyuan Solid Waste Centralized Treatment Centre Company
Limited are four subsidiaries of the Group which have been identified
as National High-tech Enterprises. Furthermore, Guangzhou Yinglong
Wastewater Treatment Company Limited was chosen as one of the
High-tech Enterprises in Incubation. By being recognized as High-
tech Enterprises, not only do the subsidiaries enhance the Group’s
reputation, but they also benefit from capital rewards and incentive
policies for land requisition, tax payment and loan borrowing.
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In terms of capital management, the Group successfully signed
additional agreements for bank financing in 2016: on 22 March, the
Group and Asian Development Bank signed a facility agreement on a
maximum principal amount of USD250 million. The loan amount will be
used for construction in China, and acquiring or operating a series of
professional industrial wastewater and sludge treatment facilities. On
30 December, the Group was granted a loan of approximately RMB667
million by Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, and another of
approximately RMB230 million by China Construction Bank. The loan
amounts are being used to pay the Group’s capital expenditure costs
and daily operating expenses.

On 14 March 2016, the Group was added to the list of Hang Seng
Composite LargeCap and MidCap Index. All achievements mentioned
above reinforce the Group’s structure and financial status, and serve
to promote the Group’s position, brand image and competitiveness
in the industry. Furthermore, it reflects the highest trust of large-
scale investment entities in the Group’s operational management and
expectations for the Group’s bright future.

Looking forward, the Group is at an important juncture. It has high
expectations for the future given it is well positioned to capture
exciting development opportunities in 2017. The government has put
more resources into environmental protection along with incentive
policies. More and more enterprises see the value in the continuous
development of their environmental practices. We hope our services
will support these enterprises in their efforts to achieve energy
efficiency, and will fulfill our own social responsibilities to support the
continuous development of general industries. As a listed corporation
with a leading position in the green industry, we are professionalizing
and deepening our services in the treatment and disposal of industrial
wastewater, sludge, general solid waste and hazardous waste. We also
are integrating organically different services which is one of the key
differentiators of the Group. In other words, the Group has comparable
capabilities in technology research and operational management.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE

EEAEELHE  AEER2016 FAEH
SIZERITHME 38228 AEHHE
DHNARRTEE SRS HEBEESE
2EBETHNBMERZE  ERREHSH
REFEBRRESR WERELE—ZRT
HEATESKRSREEREMR 12830
H> ZEBEESHEIZRITEROER
NABREYARKGE7TETER - ES
FEERRITROBRATRTFARK
23BLER - LMERFIESAREKE
EHEAMEZHAMAEEE S -

BR14B  AEBEEMABEREKP
BREH - Ll — R RRERAT BB
SEORREBRFBMR - WA
AREBWTEMN - MBRERNTISHR
FHLS BEREBRIIREREKRE
HAEEELEENSERFEENARRE
RAVERYIHAE -

REARK  AEEERE—EAEZME
REH RMEFRINENE2017
FRRHEZE  URRNERZ WS
T BREREREIARATESZH
R RTEERR - BRBZLEE
BAFERR  RMNBREBBREHAE
ENGEMRRRYE  BEPELEXEE
SERERNGE > BITHEEE XK
BEIXNUFERRE FRRERTE
RMEBREMUNLETRE  AEEE
ERATIEGK  FRR—REE &
RERMEERESRBEAE 16
MIRBEERESE—E BRTAATH
BRABEHFE - AU AEEA
BHENRMTMEEIREEEEE
2 RRBREEOTRE -

PERREERRAT FEHE 2016

7



8

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

Ten years ago, we built industrial parks just simply to recycle water;
ten years later, we have invested in the Guangxi industrial park, with
comprehensive eco-friendly services covering industrial wastewater
treatment, industrial water supply, sludge treatment and power-heat
supply, the wide areas involved has realized both energy efficiency and
environmental protection. In geographical terms, we have developed
from a green enterprise in Guangzhou, to an influential and leading
corporation in Guangdong province, and within South China districts.
This is due to our judicious approach to geographical development,
carefully assessing opportunities in new areas.

Finally, | would like to express my sincerest gratitude to our shareholders
and all stakeholders for your support in our development and progress. |
would also like to take this opportunity to thank all my colleagues for their
ongoing efforts and contribution to make our dream possible.

Tsui Cham To
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 31 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWED M

I.  FINANCIAL SUMMARY — MHHE
The particulars of the revenue comparison by business segment rEEERE-_ZE-—X<E+=A
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 =+—BAR=ZZE-HF+=A
were as follows: =S+-BLFEREBIHE D 2
WA LB EDHESIWT ¢
Revenue
—EL DN
2016 2015 Increase/(Decrease)
—F—RE —E-AF wan, GR L)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®ETT ARBTT

Water treatment services Ik I8 AR 7% 556,337 424,484 131,853 31%
Heating services HEBRTE 120,752 65,518 55,234 84%
Sludge and solid waste K Efe
treatment services EEY) R IR AR TS 439,790 361,332 78,458 22%
Construction services 18 B 2R RE 287,549 274,501 13,048 5%
Finance income BE WA 17,768 13,164 4,604 35%
Provision of entrusted REZREERS
operation services 8,589 131,356 (122,767) (93%)
Hazardous waste treatment services & EEYIEIE R 435,155 164,604 270,551 164%
1,865,940 1,434,959 430,981 30%

10 CT Environmental Group Limited Annual Report 2016



Management Discussion and Analysis

Il. BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

1.

General Review

In 2016, China has made great efforts to promote
various reforms against a backdrop of China’s economic
development entering a new normal, creating a favourable
macro environment and condition for improving the quality
of economic growth, driving economic structure optimization
and promoting energy conservation and emission reduction.

In the first year of the “13th Five-Year Plan”, China has
visibly accelerated the strategic development of ecological
civilization construction and environmental protection,
issued the “13.5” Eco-Environmental Protection Plan
(+=e A |4EREBRERERE]) and the “13.5” Development
Plan for National Strategic Emerging Industries (+ = # |
BB M EEZEZERERE), and passed the Amendment
to the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution (Draft) (F 3 A B H M E K5
FBh 34518 EE (E X)), the Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China (1 # A B £ ME R B R
# B %) and the Interpretation of the Supreme People’s
Court and the Supreme People’s Procuratorate on Several
Issues concerning the Application of Law in the Handling
of Criminal Cases of Environmental Pollution (& & A R &
R BReARBERENIVERRSRANERGERERSE
T R 7 19 £ %2). These further clarified the responsibilities
of environmental protection entities, enabled increasing
improvement of environmental laws and regulations, and
brought unprecedented opportunities for development in the
environmental protection industry in the PRC.

Meanwhile, environmental law enforcement has also turned
into a mechanism to help China promote the supply-side
structural reform, which has effectively resolved excess
capacity of steel, cement, coal and other heavily polluting
industries. As the costs of violating environmental laws by
pollution emission entities are surging, where the macro-
economy in the PRC is facing structural adjustment
and seeking transformation and upgrading, third-party
management of environmental pollution is the most cost-
effective way out.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWED M

Last year, the Group further strengthened the solid
foundation for the formation of the three core business
segments. Internally, the Group continued to strengthen the
business connections between different segments in order
to achieve business integration, while externally it continued
to expand into newly explored markets and enhanced its
influence in the industry, paving the way for the next stage of
development and expansion.

For business expansion, the Group commenced construction
of six new projects during the year. Among them, the first
comprehensive flagship project, being the Yulin (Fumian)
Energy-saving Environmental Protection Industrial Park (&
(R B REIRRAE % E) (“Guangxi Yulin Project”, including
three sub-projects in the first phase), established by the
Group in the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, received
full support from the Municipal Government of Yulin and the
Government of the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region and
is progressing smoothly. On this basis, the Group has further
entered into an investment intention with the local government
for the development of solid waste and hazardous waste
treatment and disposal projects, and has formed a strategic
cooperation framework for comprehensive treatment and
management of the Nanliujiang River Basin, with a potential
investment scale of billions of Renminbi. With regard to solid
waste, the Guangdong Longtao Recycling Economic Industrial
Park (B BIRAEEE%£E) (“Longmen Industrial Base (BP9 E
FE 1)) built by the Group in Longmen County, Guangdong
Province, covering seamless integrated treatment of urban and
rural domestic waste and centralized disposal of solid wastes,
will be developed into an integrated solid waste environmental
protection base. With regard to hazardous waste, the Group
has established Guangdong Province’s largest third-party
vessel and port sewage treatment centre, CT (Nansha) Ocean
Protection Centre (A& FRRA L) in Nansha District,
Guangzhou City to carry out treatment and disposal of oily
wastewater and oily sludge, setting the precedent for domestic
marine environmental protection. During 2016, the Group’s
projects in operation actively expanded their market share,
developed new customers and signed large-scale enterprise
customers such as Dongguan Lee & Man Paper Factory
Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Water (Group) Co., Ltd. and Baogang
Zhanjiang Iron & Steel Co., Ltd., paving the solid foundation for
achieving organic growth of the Group.

CT Environmental Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

With 13 years of experience in the environmental
protection industry, the Group has always been pragmatic
and constantly develops practical new equipment and
technologies from daily operation which forms its own
technological and cost advantages, thereby receiving
recognition in the industry. During the year under review,
Guangzhou Xintao, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, was awarded two honours as Key Enterprise of
Environmental Protection Industry in Guangdong Province in
the “12th Five-Year” (+ —H |ERERIFREEXER L)
and Service Entity with Excellent Operation for Environmental
Pollution Control Facilities in Guangdong Province (BR&ERE
SRR R BB FETIRISE(L) awarded by the Guangdong
Provincial Environmental Protection Industry Association
(BEREBREBREEZEHS). The Group also won the “Green
Award(# 3 #€)"- enterprise with leading comprehensive
strength in industrial wastewater treatment in the 2016 China
environment enterprise competitive strengths awarded by
the 9th China Environmental Industry Conference (5 fuf@+
BIRIREXAE).

For enterprise management, the Group’s environmental
protection projects had no occurrence of major production
accidents during the year and achieved stable operation,
meeting discharge standards. Learning from the advanced
concepts of international organizations, the Group has
set up a sustainable development department to build a
professional comprehensive environment, social, health and
safety management system and a risk management system
to promote its own sustainable development. The Group also
kept investing in independent research, development, a total
of technological innovation. As at the end of 2016, the Group
was granted 73 patents by the State Intellectual Property
Office (Bl X %1 & = # /&), out of which 12 of them were
utility model patent and 1 of them was an invention patent.
Moreover, the Group actively fulfilled its corporate social
responsibility and consciously subjected itself to public
supervision, and frequently received social groups at several
environment protection projects of the Group. The number
of visitors from the investment community alone was more
than 130 in total for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
Group sponsored “CTEG Scholarship” benefitting students
from the School of Environment and Energy of South China
University of Technology and the School of Environmental
Science and Engineering of Peking University to deepen the
cooperation and exchange among schools and enterprises,
and to promote the closer integration of production and
research.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIEEmE DT

2016 was a year of opportunities and challenges. From the
“Action Plan for Prevention and Control of Water Pollution (7K

FBhsa1TEIFTE)” issued by the Ministry of Environmental
Protect|on in April 2015 to the “Notice on Implementation
of Total Emission Reduction Plan for Industrial Pollution
Sources (BN Bt T SRR EHESH KT EINBEA)
which was further released in December 2016; from the
“Action PIan for Prevention and Control of Soil Pollution (*
BT R1TEIET ) released in May 2016 to the detailed
|nvest|gat|on of soil pollution in China which will kick off in
2017, all of which have created strong policy impetus for the
industrial sewage treatment business as well as the solid
waste and hazardous waste treatment and disposal business
carried out by the Group.

As a Hong Kong listed company, the Group has always been
responsible to the shareholders and carried out open and
positive two-way communication with employees and other
stakeholders. However, the Group unfortunately suffered a
malicious short attack at the end of the year, impacting the
business and its shareholders. At the same time, the storm
of central government environmental protection inspection
has swiped across the Guangdong Province, as a result
thousands of industrial enterprises were ordered to carry
out rectification processes and were penalised with zero
tolerance and flexibility. Hundreds of government officials
and business owners were invited to interviews or to bear
liability. Confronted with such challenges, the Group’s
management and staff at all levels maintained a high
degree of vigilance and cooperated with the authorities to
achieve zero complaints for the production and operation
of environmental protection projects during this challenging
period, paving a more solid foundation for the Group’s
performance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2. Business Review

2.1.

Water Treatment Services

As at 31 December 2016, the Group operated a total
of 13 water treatment plants, including 7 industrial
wastewater treatment plants, 3 municipal wastewater
treatment plants and 3 industrial water supply plants.
Besides, 1 industrial wastewater treatment plant and 1
industrial water supply plant will be put into operation in
2017. The total designed daily capacity of wastewater
treatment facilities was 759,500 m?, representing an
increase of approximately 2% compared to the daily
capacity of 745,000 m® as at 31 December 2015. The
total designed capacity of industrial water supply plants
was 330,000 m®/day, which remained unchanged
compared to that as at 31 December 2015. Across the
three business segments, namely industrial wastewater
treatment, municipal wastewater treatment and industrial
water supply, the Group recorded different levels of
organic growth in terms of total wastewater treatment
volume or total industry water supply volume.

EEEmEED T

RO
2.1. KEEEH

BZE 2016&12)? 31R
AEBEHE 13r“7J<
B ERER7TELE
SSKEER - 3ETH BT
KEEIERR - ST ¥ Ak
HRERR ; 1EE T 55 KE
BRI EAKERE
BMERZZE—LtERA
B TKEBANS
EREH 759,500 K,
H: BEZE2015F128
31 B W4 E 8E 745,000 32
Bk BEM2% ; T%
Akt e &”r?‘ﬁs?%
330,000 2 /3K, A »
2015¢12H 318 E’J,VUE
$£330,0003 /53K A%
¥  FETHESKEIE - T
BUTKER - TERAKE
FEE = (A D5EE  RE
B D BIE%8 T #5KE
BERTEMKEIEETR
ERENEHIER -
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The analysis of projects held as at 31 December 2016

REZB-RF+ZA=+—H

was as follows: BFEEB 22T :

Daily Designed Wastewater  Industrial
Treatment Capacity Industrial Municipal Wastewater ~ Treatment Water
(M*/Day) Wastewater Treatment Treatment Subtotal Supply Total
SRAHRERN KRR IERK
(LH%/8) TERKEE HEKER It fE it
Operational Model Eg Build-Own- Buld-  Tranfer- BOO BOT BOO

Operate  Operate- Build-Transfer

(BOO")  Transfer (TBT")

(HBOT!I)
BR-BR- BR-2E- Bx-
(fBoo))  (fBOT)) ([TBT))

In Operation Eg 530,000 45,000 4,500 10,000 120,000 709,500 280,000 989,500
Pending Operation fEe 50,000 - - - - 50,000 50,000 100,000
Under Construction B 70,000 - - - - 70,000 100,000 170,000
In Planning oF Lo 240000 55000 - - - 295000 200000 495,000
Total st 890,000 100,000 4500 10,000 120000 1,124,500 630,000 1,754,500
Number of Water Plants/Each  KEi&(® /1
In Operation Eg 5 1 1 1 2 10 3 13
Pending Operation fEE 1 - - - - 1 1 2
Under Construction 5 2 - - - - 2 2 4
In Planning R 2 - - - - 2 - 2
Total b 10 1 1 1 2 15 6 21
* Capacity expansion of the existing water plants is not deemed * ERAEKBER LIERER

as any increase in number of water plants.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENmE DT

2.1.1 TETKEZRE

2.1.1 Industrial Wastewater Treatment Services

Industrial wastewater treatment is the core TESKEEAR
business of the Group. The Group focused EEZZOER

on third party centralized processing markets
operated under the BOO model, providing sewage

7 & B LABOOE
ERABINFE=

emission entities in the industrial parks or areas FERXNEED
with professional solutions for third party control 5 ALXEED
of environmental pollution to help enterprises FBERNBESEE
realise separation of “pollution control” and RUHRBSEE=
“pollution generation”, thereby effectively solving FRENEEE

the pollution problem. Currently customers
served by the Group cover industries ranging

RAE - BERE
BHRE5 JHEE

from textile, printing and dying, papermaking, FloE feme
food processing to electronic electroplating. The R i R RS 2R
Group will continue to broaden its customer base Ee BAl A&EE
in the foreseeable future to cover industries such AR EF 2 &
as the pharmaceutical industry and fine chemicals TEREHBENZE
industry. I ST
ﬁ&MI%&%
BRI £A7E
RARRGHFER
EEFEEHEZE
BITERBHALT
L7 -
As at 31 December 2016, the Group owned 6 BZE2016F12 A
industrial wastewater treatment plants which are 31 AEEE
in operation in the Guangdong Province and the BERERBEERN
Hunan Province. The Group also took over the EEEEIXS
operation of 1 industrial wastewater treatment KEBR6RE - 1
plant in the Guangdong Province, making the ERERNEZEEE
aggregated designed treatment capacity 579,500 EIXEFKER
m3/day. During the year ended 31 December 2016, RARE > BERETE
the daily average utilisation rate of the industrial B 579,500 5
wastewater treatment plants was approximately KB RBZE=
62% and the total wastewater treatment volume Z-R"E+=ZH
was 8% higher than the corresponding period in =t+t—HALFE-
2015. Projects under construction for the year had THESKEERN
a total designed capacity of 70,000 m?¥/day. These HEERMARY

projects comprise of Phase | of the wastewater
treatment plant in Qingyuan Overseas Chinese
Industrial Park Yingde Yinghong Base (“Yinghong
Base”) (FEEMR/ I XERBERA BT KEEM)
and the wastewater treatment facility in Guangxi
Yulin Project which had designed capacity of

B62% 0 #5355 X
R IE 2 20155
5 2 1% hn 49 8%
REEHEZEHA
R ETEREA 70,000
MEK/ B S

20,000 m®/day and 50,000 m®/day, respectively. HEBREEFRER
They are scheduled to commence operation in I%l“@ﬁ“ﬁll

2017.

5k BB R

AEER |8
(20,0003 /5 3K
BH)REREMHE
H (50,0003 7 ¥

/Ei) REFR=
7 ’tﬂi}-l)\
#Eéo
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2.1.2 Municipal Wastewater Treatment Services

As at 31 December 2016, the Group operated
3 municipal wastewater treatment plants in the
Guangdong Province. The total designed treatment
capacity was 130,000 m3/day. The new capacity for the
period was 10,000 m¥day and was put into operation
in June 2016. Those plants have been running stable
utilisation rates.

2.1.83 Industrial Water Supply

As at 31 December 2016, the Group operated 3
industrial water supply plants in the Guangdong
Province. During 2016, the total designed treatment
capacity of these plants was 280,000 m3/day with
an average daily utilisation rate of approximately
56% and the total industry water supply volume was
approximately 4% higher than the corresponding
period in 2015. These plants are located in industrial
parks with wastewater treatment plants operated by the
Group, and as circular economy models, are connected
to respective wastewater treatment plants in the same
industrial park via grey water recycling facilities for
the provision of industrial water supply services to
clients which have already purchased their wastewater
treatment services. Projects under construction in
2016 had a total designed capacity of 100,000 m3/day.
These projects comprise of Phase | of the water supply
plant in Yinghong Base and the water supply project
in Guangxi Yulin Project, each had designed capacity
of 50,000 m®/day. They are scheduled to commence
operation in 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2.2 Sludge and general solid wastes treatment services

As at 31 December 2016, the Group operated a total
of 3 sludge treatment facilities, one of which was also
able to handle both treatment and disposal of general
industrial solid wastes. The total treatment and disposal
capacity for sludge was 3,442 tonnes/day, representing
an increase of approximately 9.5% as compared to the
total capacity of 3,142 tonnes/day as at 31 December
2015. The increase in the capacity was attributable
to the enhancement of treatment capacity in sludge
treatment facilities within the Group’s existing Heyuan
Solid. The Group’s safety landfill capacity for treatment
and disposal of general industrial solid wastes was
2,000,000 m?, with a planned annual usage of 100,000
m3.

Sludge treatment and disposal projects under
construction in 2016 had a total expected capacity of
700 tonnes/day. These projects comprise of Phase |
of the sludge project in Longmen Industrial Base (REF
EZHE) and the sludge treatment sub-project within
Guangxi Yulin Project which the expected capacity
are 500 tonnes/day and 200 tonnes/day, respectively.
General industrial solid waste treatment and disposal
projects under construction had total expected capacity
of 650,000 tonnes/year. These projects comprise of
the solid waste project in Longmen Industrial Base (3E
FIEZE ) and Xinfeng County Lvzhi Industrial Waste
Reclamation Disposal Centre (¥7 2 S48 T ¥ E Y
U 32 A0 ) which have expected capacity of 300,000
tonnes/year and 350,000 tonnes/year, respectively. In
addition, a seamless integrated treatment project for
urban wastes of the Group in Longmen Industrial Base
(FEP9EZE ) are scheduled to commence operation
in 2017.

22
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The analysis of projects held in 2016 was as follows: —E-REFEEEZY
AT -
General
Industrial Domestic
Approved Treatment Capacity Sludge Solid Waste Waste
—MRIE
HERIBHRE Bk & F&REY 4 EBIR

Tonnes/Day Tonnes/Year Tonnes/Day

mi, A Wi, Wi, H

In Operation EEh 3,442 100,000 —

Under Construction® R 700 650,000 600

In Planning* REIR 889 - -

Total st 5,031 750,000 600

Number of Facilities/Each’ RiEE E

In Operation B 3 1 —

Under Construction F= 5% 2 2 1

In Planning HREH - - -

Total Wt 5 3 1

* Capacity expansion of existing facilities is not deemed as an ¥ R %ﬁij’ﬁ%fét%@ﬁ%ﬁé
increase in number of facilities RATEMREHE

#  This is the capacity which has passed the preliminary # %tﬁlﬁﬁ AAZ\\IEF)E?I%M@\E
review but the final approved capacity will be determined N i%,’%%fle’&éaguiﬁéﬁ
as stipulated in the permit after the granting of completion \IE’&H&{&EHQE’JEE%E}%
acceptance. ;3
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWED M

2.2.1 Sludge Treatment and Disposal 221 SREEEE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group operated

BE-Z-XF

3 sludge treatment facilities in the Guangdong +=ZA=+—8"
Province. The total treatment size was 3,442 AEBETERERN
tonnes/day. The average utilisation rate reached BESREERE
the full production capacity level during 20186, eI BRI
representing an increase as compared with the R 53,4428

average capacity utilisation rate of approximately
93% during 2015, mainly due to the increasing
number of customers. Among the total sludge
agreed to be treated and disposed of by the
Group, approximately 80% comprised of
sludge produced in urban centralized municipal
wastewater treatment plants, and approximately
20% comprised of “dyeing sludge” produced in
dyeing wastewater treatment and “papermaking
sludge” produced in papermaking wastewater
treatment.

H RZZFE— R
F FHERERA
REWMEKT B
—E-HEFEREM
FHEEIAE
RBRBFIER T3
HREFERRE
Fg®EFEREM-
AEEZEWEEER
BEMWSREES -
#180% & ¥ HH &£
PRAETETKERE
RS KEE
SR ESESE
#20% & EN 3 RBE
K R 1 55 el BN &
55 e I i 4T BE K
BEETRIE KT
Tele
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2.2.2 General Industrial Solid Wastes Treatment and

Disposal

As at 31 December 2016, the Group operated
1 general industrial solid wastes treatment and
disposal facility in the Guangdong Province.
There is a landfill for safe disposal of solid wastes
with total designed capacity of 2,000,000 m?.
The landfill is capable of safe treatment and
disposal of category | and Il general industrial
solid wastes and restricted wastes, with a
planned annual usage of 100,000 m?, meaning
the annual treatment volume is approximately
100,000 tonnes. During 2016, this facility
accumulatively received and disposed of
approximately 76,000 tonnes of general industrial
solid wastes, representing a substantial increase
of approximately 29% as compared with
approximately 59,000 tonnes accumulatively
received and disposed of during the same period
in 2015. This increase is due to the securing of
large industrial enterprise customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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2.2.3 Domestic Wastes Treatment 2.2.3 TR ETE
The Group has constructed a seamless project rEBRERER
for urban and rural wastes treatment in the REHEZT —EH
Guangdong Province. The Group has also entered MEENIREEL
into a concession agreement for this project EEMAYHEE
for a term of 30 years with the government of B YWHZzEE N
Longmen County, Guangdong Province. The total B R & B P B BUF
approved treatment capacity was 600 tonnes I THRITKER

for incineration treatment. This project is located
in Longmen Industrial Base (BP9 E % & #tb) and
covers the collection, transition and incineration
of urban and rural domestic wastes to generate
electricity. As at 31 December 2016, the project is
approximately 85% completed.

% BHI0E B
1B R IR AR R
£ 19 B 600ME - %
BEEREMESE
Hith » SREWME
SENIRHEE - R
ERREES - B
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2.3 Hazardous Wastes Treatment and Disposal

Service

In June 2016, the Ministry of Environmental
Protection announced the revised “National
Hazardous Waste List (Bl X f& & BE ¥ & $%)”,
to fully promote the scientific and careful
management of hazardous wastes, increasing
the need for companies to deal with hazardous
waste appropriately, and creating a higher barrier
of entry for operators in the industry. As at 31
December 2016, the Group operated 6 hazardous
wastes treatment facilities in the Guangdong
Province. These facilities altogether cover 20
types of hazardous wastes under the revised
“National Hazardous Waste List” with a total
treatment capacity of approximately 830,000
tonnes per year. Among them, Guangzhou Lvyou
Industrial Waste Reclamation Treatment Company
Limited (“Guangzhou Lvyou”) possessed capacity
for comprehensive harmless treatment and
safe disposal of hazardous wastes and leading
approved treatment scale in the country. Its
services are provided to various industries such
as petroleum, chemical, electronic, automobile
manufacturing, shipbuilding and pharmaceuticals.
Its capacity utilisation rate for receipt and
disposal of hazardous wastes in 2016 amounted
to approximately 67%, representing a growth of
approximately 8% as compared with the same
period in 2015. CT (Nansha) Ocean Protection
Centre specialized in collection, treatment,
disposal, recycling and comprehensive utilisation
of oily wastewater and oily sludge and residues
(HWOQ08) in ports and on ships. The capacity
utilisation rate of oily wastewater received and
treated in 2016 amounted to approximately
31%. The Group expects that it will seize market
opportunities on an ongoing basis and continue
to expand the business scale of hazardous waste
treatment and disposal, so as to enhance its
strength and influence as a professional provider
of comprehensive environmental pollution
management solutions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The analysis of projects held in 2016 was as follows:

BB WD

—E-RFEHEREBZN
T

Approved Treatment Capacity

(tonnes/year) Hazardous waste Total
HAERERE(EF) A2 st
Operation Mode BEEN BOO TBT

In Operation EEH 769,000 61,000 830,000
Total @st 769,000 61,000 830,000
Number of Facilities/Each wiEsE 8

In Operation B 3 3* 6
Total st 3 3 6

For the year ended 31 December 2016, income from one of these
projects was disclosed under the item “provision of entrusted
operation services” in the segment reporting (note 3(a)), while that
from the other two was disclosed under “provision of wastewater
treatment plants operation services” because the remaining
wastewater of them was treated by the Group’s wastewater
treatment facilities.

Future Outlook

“Reinforcement of ecological civilization construction”
is, for the first time, included in the five-year plan. Green
development has become essential to prosperous and
sustainable development in China. At the beginning of 2017,
the Ministry of Environmental Protection had clearly set out
the nine areas of focus for 2017 at the National Conference
on Environmental Protection, with the aim to strengthen
the implementation of various reforms on environmental
protection, to realize all-around coverage of the supervision
and inspection work carried out by the central authorities,
to accelerate the enactment of environmental legislation
and to sustain the strict enforcement of environment-related
laws and regulations. In order to be in line with the country’s
policy and in light of the great potential of the environmental
protection industry in China, the Group will continue to
promote and replicate the existing consistent business model
and fine management to enhance its core competitiveness
as being pragmatic and innovative in 2017. The Group
will also follow the development strategies of the central
and local authorities, and make great efforts in promoting
synergetic development of its three business segments, so

BE_2—H+-A=t—H
HEE > He—EZSEHBRE
WA B B A 0 BB ER 5 (MY 3£ 3(a))
[REZTEERK AT MHE
bR {ETE B AT S WA B R =14
BXEBERELERE AT - R
HABENBTKIIBAREZS
KEIERIEEITRE -

RAREE

[hnsRAERE T AR JE WS
ALFRE  BERRAAE
REXRBRDEABERREN
2 e ZB—FFE
HEZERRRETFSEL
BXRRBABRBET =F
—tFHNNREREE - &R
EAEBRRESZALRE
BRPREREEE2EE -
MIRBERAER - RIFREH
EEBED - BIEREXESD
LUK PBIRRITEE KRB EAT
Z[E - ARER-F-tFH8
HEEREIERER -E0NE
EEARBHAEE  UKEA
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Tr i B4 LB it 75 Y 3% R B
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as to achieve its goal of becoming a leading industrial waste
disposal service provider in the PRC. Meanwhile, the Group
will conduct enhance corporate governance and improve
information disclosure, and to demonstrate its strong sense
of social responsibility to the public.

Financial Review

Turnover

The turnover of the Group increased by approximately 30.0%
to RMB1,865.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2016
from RMB1,435.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2015. Such increase was primarily due to the increase in
treatment volume of the projects of the Group. As a result,
the revenue of the Group from wastewater treatment, sludge
and solid waste treatment as well as hazardous waste
treatment increased by approximately 31%, 22% and 164 %,
respectively, as compared with the year ended 31 December
2015.

Cost of sales

The total cost of sales of the Group increased by
approximately 40.9% to RMB1,013.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 from RMB719.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015, which is in line with the
increased turnover.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group increased by approximately
19.1% to RMB852.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2016 from RMB715.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, primarily as a result of the factors described
above.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The overall gross profit margin of the Group decreased to
approximately 45.7% for the year ended 31 December 2016
from approximately 49.9% for the year ended 31 December
2015, primarily due to:

1) the VAT (value-added tax) reform which came
into effect on 1 July 2015. Since then, wastewater
treatment, sludge treatment and part of the hazardous
waste treatment business of the Group fall within the
policy of “70% refund of VAT levied”, the applicable
VAT rate is 17%. Hence the selling price per unit has
decreased since 1 July 2015; and

2) changes of revenue structure.

Gross profit margin of construction services income and
provision of heating services are approximately 17% and
7% respectively (2015: 21% and 7%). For the year ended
31 December 2016, the aggregate revenue from provision
of construction services and heating services contributed to
approximately RMB408.3 million (2015: RMB340.0 million)
of the Group’s total turnover, hence the overall gross profit
margin of the Group was brought down.

If the refund of VAT levied is added back to the revenue, and
only the gross profits from treatment-related businesses of
the Group are included in calculation (excluding construction
income), the gross profit margin of the Group would be
54.5% (2015: 54.8%).

Other net (loss)/income

Other net loss for 2016 mainly included net foreign exchange
loss of RMB55.5 million (2015: RMB43.3 million). The net
foreign exchange loss primarily arose from receivables and
bank loans that were denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the relevant entities. Other net
income recognised in the year ended 31 December 2015
also includes gain on bargain acquisition of Guangzhou
Lvyou of RMB138.5 million.
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Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by
approximately 83.9% to RMB256.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 from RMB139.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015. This was primarily due to the
increase in staff costs and administrative expenses of the
newly acquired subsidiaries by the Group in 2015.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group increased by approximately
25.6% to RMB88.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2016 from RMB70.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2015, primarily due to an increase in bank borrowings in
2016. The effective interest rate was 4.2% and 4.5% during
the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Profit before taxation

The profit before taxation of the Group decreased by
approximately 8.0% to RMB616.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2016 from RMB670.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015 primarily due to the negative
goodwill as a result of the Group’s acquisition of Guangzhou
Lvyou in 2015 (which was stated as profit) of approximately
RMB138.5 million, and no profit from such transaction in
2016. Excluding the above factors, the pre-tax profit in 2016
increased by 15.9% as compared with that in 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Income tax

The income tax expenses of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 increased by approximately 47.8% as
compared with the corresponding period last year, which
was mainly due to the increase in the effective tax rate from
approximately 10.3% to approximately 16.6%, which was
mainly due to the expiry of an income tax incentive enjoyed
by certain operating subsidiaries of the Company.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
has decreased by approximately 13.3% to RMB519.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016 from RMB598.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2015, primarily as a
result of the factors described above.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The principal liquidity and capital requirements of the Group primarily
relate to the acquisition of projects, construction of properties, plant
and equipment and operation expenses.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the Group’s cash
and bank deposits was approximately RMB1,033.9 million (2015:
RMB382.5 million), representing an increase of approximately 170.3%
as compared to that at 31 December 2015.

BANK LOANS

As at 31 December 2016, the total amount of bank loans of the
Group was RMB2,837.2 million (2015: RMB2,009.6 million), in which
approximately 66.5% (2015: 58.1%) were denominated in RMB. All of
the Group’s bank borrowings carry floating interest rates. The unutilised
bank facilities amounted to RMB1,864.3 million as at 31 December
2016 (2015: RMB259.7 million).

As at 31 December 2016, the secured bank loans amounted to
RMB2,584.1 million, and unsecured bank loans amounted to RMB253.1
million.

BB WD

iz

AEBFEHAIREBZE=Z
—ANE+ZA=+—AHLEE
BEFERHLEFA478% B
HRZZE—AFERBEHY
10.3% £ # = 8916.6% » Uit
DNEBERANREEHEES

FATKIFESHESRER -

L AR IFEANE L F

FEHREXFREZE - AQ
AREEEABGENHER
—E2-RFE+ZA=+-—H
It FEMNS5989FBTARKE
BAL1B3INEHEZZE—
F+-A=+—-—HILEFEEH
519.1 BB TARY -

REBEERMBER

FEEFENRBESRELFAEFREER
HEEMPEEWRE  ZRYE  BER
REUAR BEE BN AR -

R=Z-R"E+=A=t—-0 &xKH
HEeENBITHERVEREENS1,03398
BETARB(ZZ—HF 38258
ARE) B -E-AF+=-A=+—H
#41170.3% °

RITEK

RZE-RE+ZA=+—-H ' &X&E
EBRRITERAIEE28372H5E TA
RE(ZE—HF 12,0006BBTAR
) ZEERMNE65%(ZE—HEF:
581%) U ARMGHE - AEBEFRER
TEFREBRIZIHAERTE - RZZ2—X
F+ZA=+—8 > BAKRSDHNRT
EREEA18643BBETARE(ZE
—HF 250.7THETARE) -

RZB-RF+ZA=+—-H BER
ZBITERB25841HETARB TR
EERAZRITERD2B1IBETAR

e"_ﬁgo

PERREERRAT FEHE 2016

29



30

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWED M

As at 31 December 2016, the debt to assets ratio, as calculated by
dividing the total borrowings by the total assets of the Group, was
approximately 41.3% (2015: 36.5%).

FUNDING AND TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative funding and treasury policies and
controls tightly over its cash and risk management. The long term
funding and working capital required by the Company are primarily
derived from income generated from core business operations and
cash proceeds raised from bank and other borrowings.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio as defined as bank loans net of cash and cash
equivalents, divided by the total equity was 55.8% as at 31 December
2016 (31 December 2015: 56.2%).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities or guarantees.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group pledged certain of its property,
plant and machinery and lease prepayments with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately RMB259.1 million (2015: RMB133.7
million) to certain banks to secure certain credit facilities granted to
the Group. In addition, the Group’s equity interests in Qingyuan Lvyou
Environmental Proctection Technology Company Limited (“Qingyuan
Lvyou”), Guangzhou Yinglong Wastewater Treatment Company Limited
(“Guangzhou Yinglong”) and Guangzhou Liangang Vessel Wastewater
Treatment Company Limited (“Guangzhou Liangang”) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The major capital expenditures of the Group primarily consist of
expenditures to acquire lease prepayments, purchase of property, plant
and equipment and BOT construction project.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the capital expenditures (mainly
including additions in property, plant and equipment, additions in lease
prepayments and additions in BOT construction cost) amounted to
approximately RMB669.1 million (2015: RMB1,197.0 million). These
capital expenditures were funded by bank borrowings, funds generated
from the operating activities of the Group.

The Group expects to incur additional capital expenditures in view of
the various acquisition opportunities in the sector and in view of the
scheduled construction of facilities for the current project portfolio.
These capital expenditures are expected to be funded mainly by
operation cash flows and bank borrowings.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s assets, borrowings and major transactions are mainly
denominated in RMB. The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
arising from receivables and bank loans that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the relevant entities. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily RMB, USD and HKD. The
Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed 1,941 employees
(2015: 1,982 employees). Employee costs amounted to approximately
RMB159.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
approximately RMB98.7 million). The Group will endeavor to ensure
that the employees’ salary levels are in line with industry practice and
prevailing market conditions, and that employees’ remuneration is
based on their performance.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was adopted by
the Board on 24 September 2015 in order to recognize and motivate
the contributions of employees and to provide them with the incentives
or awards for their commitment and contribution to the Group. By
providing a competitive incentive package, the Share Award Scheme
also serves to retain and attract suitable personnel for the further
development of the Group, and to align the interests of the employees
with those of the shareholders of the Company in attaining long-term
business objectives of the Group.
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The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10
years commencing on the date of adoption.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, shares will be acquired by the
trustee at the cost of the Company by way of subscription of new
Shares (whether pursuant to general mandate or specific mandate
granted by the shareholders of the Company or otherwise) and/or
purchase of Shares from the market out of cash contributed by the
Group and be held on trust for the employees until such awarded
shares are vested in the relevant selected employees in accordance
with the provisions of the Share Award Scheme.

Subject to the rules relating to the Share Award Scheme, the Board
may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion select any employee
(other than any excluded employee) for participation in the Share Award
Scheme as a selected employee, and grant such number of awarded
shares to the selected employee at no consideration and in such
number and on and subject to such terms and conditions as it may in
its absolute discretion determine.

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares which
will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded under the Share
Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the time of such award. The maximum number of awarded
shares which may be awarded to a selected employee under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the time of such award. Details of the rules of the Share
Award Scheme are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
12 November 2015.

On 19 July 2016, at the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, the Board resolved to grant an aggregate of 1,652,000
Shares (the “Awarded Shares’’) under the Share Award Scheme to 72
selected employees pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme,
including (i) Mr. Tsui Cham To, Mr. Lu Yili, Mr. Xu Shubiao and Mr. Xu
Juwen, each an executive director of the Company; (ii) Mr. Xu Zitao,
an employee of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group and a former
executive Director who has resigned on 23 November 2015 (“Mr. Xu”’);
and (iii) 67 other selected employees (together, ‘““Awardees’’). The
vesting date of the Awarded Shares is 19 July 2016 and the vesting of
the Awarded Shares is subject to the conditions as set out in the Share
Award Scheme and the fulfillment of such conditions as specified by
the Board. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 19
July 2016 for details of the grant.

Further details of the Share Award Scheme is set out in note 23 to the
financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any
material acquisition or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures.

GUARANTEE IN RELATION TO ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

Acquisition of Guangzhou Lvyou

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement dated 1 December 2014
entered into between the Company, Mr. Gu Yaokun and other vendors,
Mr. Gu Yaokun has provided the following profit guarantee that the
net profit after taxation of Guangzhou Lvyou attributable to the Group
for each of the financial years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016
(the “Guaranteed Period”) shall not be less than RMB100.0 million and
RMB110.0 million, respectively.

If Guangzhou Lvyou fails to meet the aforesaid profit guarantee in any
of the two years, Mr. Gu Yaokun will, within the first six months of the
year immediately after the year in respect of which a shortfall occurs,
pay to Guangzhou Lvyou a compensation in cash equal to 10 times of
the shortfall provided that the total compensation payable by Mr. Gu
Yaokun will not exceed RMB100.0 million in respect of each of the two
years. For the year ended 31 December 2016, Guangzhou Lvyou has
met the above condition.

Acquisition of Qingyuan Lvyou

In connection with the acquisition of the entire equity interest in
Qingyuan Lvyou (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group), Mr. Gu
Yaokun entered into a supplemental agreement on 30 April 2014
pursuant to which Mr. Gu Yaokun agreed to provide a profit guarantee
that the net profit after taxation of Qingyuan Lvyou attributable to the
Group for each of the financial years ending 31 December 2014, 2015
and 2016 (the “Guarantee Period”) are not less than HKD80.0 million,
HKD100.0 million and HKD120.0 million, respectively. If Qingyuan
Lvyou fails to meet the aforesaid profit guarantee in any of the three
years, Mr. Gu Yaokun will, within the first six months of the year
immediately after the year in respect of which a shortfall occurs, pay
to Qingyuan Lvyou a compensation in cash equal to 10 times of the
shortfall; and if, during the Guaranteed Period, Qingyuan Lvyou invests
in any new project and the annual net profit after tax commencing from
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operation is less than 20% of the investment amount, Mr. Gu Yaokun
will pay Qingyuan Lvyou a compensation in cash equal to 10 times
of the shortfall. The total compensation of the aforesaid guarantees
payable by Mr. Gu Yaokun will not exceed RMB100.0 million during the
Guarantee Period.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Qingyuan Lvyou has met the
above conditions.

EVENTS AFTER 31 DECEMBER 2016

Below are important events affecting the Group which occurred after
31 December 2016:

On 26 December 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a third party buyer, pursuant to which the Group agreed
to sell and the third party buyer agreed to purchase 99% equity interest
in Guangzhou Xintao Environmental Technology Company Limited (&
MFE R R B AR A7) (“Xintao Environmental”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, with a consideration of RMB100,000,000.

Xintao Environmental possessed land in Tangmei Village in Xintang
Town, Zengcheng City (the “Land”), occupying an area of 19,777.47m?.
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, upon completion of the
equity transfer, the third party buyer and the Group will develop the
Land together. The Group has naming rights of buildings on the Land.

Registration procedures in relation to the equity transfer were completed
on 27 March 2017. The net asset value of Xintao Environmental as at 27
March 2017 was approximately RMB43,000,000. Subject to fully receipt
of the proceed, the Board expects that the net proceeds (approximately
RMB48 million) generated from this transfer of equity interest will be fully
used to pay the special dividend to its shareholders.

CT Environmental Group Limited Annual Report 2016

K#IEE BEERNFERREARND
RIRESE20% @ Al H B EEBED
BESHAXNEERERI0ENRERE
& HEmEENRBDEEMH LR
REFBELEGTSHEB1000EETA
R -

BE-ZE—ARE+ZA=+—HL#F
- BREHCHS DGR -

R-FB—AREF+-A=+—HEMNEH

LTARZE—-RE+=ZBA=+—H%
BAEHAREBRENTENEESE !

RZB-—RF+ZA=+xH  £KE
BE=ZFEFR(ZERNDEIT —OE
B Bt AEERSHERSE=
FEZXEARBEAREHZFLR B
EMNHFERRBNEAERAACHER
RN MRERMZERER - HER
100,000,000 JT A RR#5 -

FEBRREBENMREN T EEES
Nt (EE®R ] HhmiE
19,777.47F 73K - RIBEEWZE » 5%
RREEZER FZHERRAERK
HEMBEER - BEMRNEREY
TWEERAREEFE -

HENREEZRELFER-ZT -t
F=ZRA-t+tHZEK - HERR=-F
—tE=ZAZTLtHNFEENR
43,000,000 7T A R ¥ - #FUN EI 2 B0 AR A
EENE ESEETREEERELN
FrEREFR(NBEETARE) KR
BARBRRSFRIRE -



Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tsui Cham To, aged 50, is one of the founders of the Group,
and the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company appointed
on 30 November 2010. He is a cousin of Mr. Xu Juwen. Mr. Tsui
is mainly responsible for leading the Board in setting the Group’s
overall directions, strategies, agendas and priorities. Mr. Tsui has
approximately 14 years of experience in the wastewater treatment
and industrial water supply industry. Mr. Tsui was the vice president
of the Guangdong Foundation for Justice and Courage (BR&EALZE
£ &). From April 2000 to March 2001 and April 2002 to March 2006,
Mr. Tsui was a director of Hong Kong Yan Chai Hospital. Mr. Tsui was
also an adviser to the Board of Directors of the Scientific Decision
and Promotion Association of Guangdong Province Village and Town
Heads in 2004. Mr. Tsui was appointed as the chair professor at
Faculty of Management of Shenzhen University. Furthermore, Mr. Tsui
was the vice president of the Guangzhou Overseas Chinese Chamber
of Commerce in 2006 as well as the vice president of the 10th, 11th
and 12th Zengcheng Federation of Commerce and Industry (383 T
BEBASE (BB D). He was an excellent member (BE Z &) of the
Standing Committee of the 6th, 7th and 8th Zengcheng City Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (3w~ ~ £+ NfEH
BARBGAHEEREHMTZEEEEZ). He was also a member of the
Standing Committee of the 9th Huizhou City Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (B EMMENEZEFEE). In addition,
Mr. Tsui was an honorary citizen of the Guangzhou Municipality and
Huizhou Municipality as well as the honorary chairman of the 8th
Committee of the Federation of the Zengcheng City Returned Chinese
(BHTREERHSS).

Mr. Lu Yili, aged 42, is an Executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. He joined us in June 2010 and was appointed
as an Executive Director on 12 January 2011. Mr. Lu is in charge of
leading and overseeing the implementation of the Group’s long and
short term strategies set by the Board. He has to ensure the effective
communication with shareholders, employees, government authorities
and other stakeholders. Mr. Lu also has experience in corporate
investment and business finance and has involved in the listing of
Chinese companies on an overseas stock exchange. He also has
seven years of experience in the wastewater treatment industry. From
1997 to 2009, Mr. Lu served as a member of the management of
various Singapore private companies, responsible for venture capital
investments and consultancy on initial public offerings in China. Mr.
Lu received a bachelor’s degree in science majoring in chemistry at
the National University of Singapore in 1997. He also holds a PhD in
Economics from Jinan University (R X&), China.
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Mr. Gu Yaokun, aged 53, is the founder of Guangzhou Lvyou Industrial
Waste Reclamation Treatment Company Limited and Qingyuan
Lvyou Environmental Protection Technology Company Limited,
the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Gu was then appointed as
an Executive Director and Co-Chief Operating Officer of the Group
since 23 November 2015 and is now in charge of the operation of our
solid waste treatment and hazardous waste treatment businesses.
Mr. Gu has over 30 years of experience in the venture capital and
operation management of petrochemical engineering, environmental
protection and resource recycling industry. Mr. Gu is currently the vice
chairman of solid waste branch of Chinese Society for Environmental
Sciences (7 B 1% 5 £1 2 # &), the managing director of Guangdong
Environmental Protection Association, a member of the Political
Consultative Committee of Nansha District in Guangdong province,
the vice chairman of manufacturers association of Panyu District in
Guangdong province, the vice chairman of Associations of Renewable
Resources industry in Panyu District. Mr. Gu was awarded the title of
“2010 Excellent Entrepreneur in Environment Protection Industry of
Guangdong” R01I0FEERERREXEEFTLER) in 2011. Mr. Gu
obtained the Executive Master of Business Administration qualifications
from Sun Yat- sen University in 2009.

Mr. Xu Shubiao, aged 51, is one of the founders of the Group and
an Executive Director appointed since 12 January 2011. Mr. Xu has
approximately 14 years of experience in the wastewater treatment
industry. Mr. Xu is our Co-Chief Operating Officer, responsible for
the construction and operation of all the water projects the Company
undertakes. Mr. Xu is experienced in the engineering, trading and
processing industries. Mr. Xu was an assistant general manager
at Guangzhou To Kee from 1995 to 2003. Mr. Xu has led the
development, operation and management of our wastewater treatment
facilities and industrial water supply facilities in our Guangzhou Xinzhou
Industrial Park since 2003. Mr. Xu is not related to other Directors of
the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Xu Juwen, aged 42, is an Executive Director and Vice President
of the Group. He joined us in September 2003 and has served as an
Executive Director since 12 January 2011. Mr. Xu is a cousin of Mr. Tsui
Cham To. Mr. Xu is in charge of the Group’s business development
and inter-departmental coordination. From 2001 to 2005, Mr. Xu was
the assistant general manager of Guangzhou To Kee Enterprises
Development Group Limited (“Guangzhou To Kee”), a related company
of the Group, where he oversaw its general operation. From 2005 to
2007, Mr. Xu was the general manager of Guangzhou Zhugang Pier
Company Limited (/& /N 2k 8 5% 558 PR 2 7]), a private company in the
PRC, and from 2009 to 2011, Mr. Xu has been its executive director. In
2010, Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from Open
University of China (R REBEE R KE).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent, aged 56, was appointed on 15 April
2014 as an Independent Non-executive Director. Mr. Lien is currently
a director of Wah Hin & Company, a Singapore incorporated private
investment holding company, an independent non-executive director
of Viva China Holdings Limited (stock code: 8032) which is listed on
The Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Lien is also a director of The
Maritime and Port Authority of Singapore and a non-executive director
of Primeline Energy Holdings Inc. (a company listed in Canada). He
has over 29 years of experience in the banking industry, specialized in
corporate finance and capital management. Mr. Lien graduated from
the University of New Brunswick with a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration. Mr. Lien started his career in the financial industry
first in Merrill Lynch & Company. In the past years, Mr. Lien had been
working in senior positions in financial institutions such as Swiss Bank
Corporation and Bankers Trust & Company. In year 2000, he became
the director of Wah Hin & Company, managing the financial assets of
the group. He also served as the managing director in the Financial
Institutions & Public Sector division of ABN AMRO Bank from 2007 to
2008.
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Dr. Du Hequn, aged 41, has been our Independent Non-executive
Director since 21 August 2014, at the same time being the managing
director of Venture Markit International Capital Management Group, a
company mainly engaged in Greater China capital growth investment.
Dr. Du has approximately 18 years of experience in the finance industry
specializing in debt capital markets and structured financing. From 2011
to 2013, Dr. Du was the managing director of Macquarie Group, as well
as the head of its private & structured finance in Greater China. In the
past years, Dr. Du worked in various senior positions with renowned
international financial institutions and investment banks including
Deutsche Bank, Credit Suisse and Commonwealth Bank of Australia.
Dr. Du graduated from the National University of Singapore and was
awarded a Bachelor of Business Administration (Hons) majoring in
Finance and Banking and later granted a PhD in Economics from
Jinan University (2™ KX £) in China. Dr. Du was previously a council
member of China Federation of Overseas Chinese Entrepreneurs (9
B Bt & 2), also of Heilongjiang Overseas Friendship Association
(2 8 I & 5 B 3H /), a senior economic consultant of Nantong
Municipal Government and an economic consultant of Yaan Municipal
Government, an investment committee member of Shenzhen Zhongke
Aiscent Intelligent Equipment Research Institute associated to the
Chinese Academy of Sciences (* EIRHEpR).

Mr. Liu Yung Chau, aged 63, was appointed on 14 June 2011 as
an Independent Non-executive Director. Mr. Liu is a director of
Huashang Education Group Company Limited and Guangzhou Sun
City Group Limited. Mr. Liu was the chief president of the Hong Kong
Industrial & Commercial General Association, member of the standing
committee of Guangdong Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, member of the standing committee of Guangdong
Federation of Industry, vice chairman of the Guangdong Chamber
of Foreign Investors and chairman of the Zengcheng Federation of
Industry. In addition, Mr. Liu has been awarded the “World Outstanding
Chinese Award” (52 HZE A 58) in May 2010 and was awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia (BBS) by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region on 25 October 2013. Mr. Liu has established
the Guangzhou Sun City Group Limited and its affiliates covers a wide
range of business areas including education, hotel and tourism, textile
and apparel, real estate and financial investment industry. Mr. Liu was
given the honorary title of “May 1st Model Worker” in 2009.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ma Chun Kei, aged 38, joined us as the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary since September 2015. He is mainly responsible
for overseeing the Group’s financial and company secretarial matters.
Mr. Ma joined us in 2015. Mr. Ma graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Accountancy. He is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ma worked in KPMG Huazhen LLP.
He has over 10 years of experience in auditing, accounting and has
been involved in a number of initial public offering transactions and
capital market transactions.

Mr. Zhao Keyin, aged 42, is our Chief Engineer. Mr. Zhao joined us
in March 2004 and is currently responsible for the daily operation,
technical supervision and implementation of the wastewater treatment
business the Group. Mr. Zhao implements national policies relating
to technology and advanced technology management policies.
Mr. Zhao has approximately 13 years of experience in wastewater
treatment, with a special focus on industrial wastewater treatment
technology. He also leads the technical implementation aspects of
the Group’s projects, devise work plans to make sure the processing
technologies and procedures are in sync with various technical
standards, regulations and legal procedures in the industry. Mr. Zhao
is the Group’s key liaison with regulatory authorities. In 1998, Mr.
Zhao obtained a Diploma in Environmental Protection Monitoring and
Implementation from Shenyang Polytechnic University (&R T 3#2f5z).
He also obtained a Wastewater Treatment Training Certificate issued
by Guangdong Environmental Association Environmental Protection
Vocational Training Centre (/& 3R IR 7 IR {R B 3£ 5 8235 3 A 0v). He has
passed the environmental protection training accredited by Guangzhou
Environmental Protection Promotion and Education Centre (F& /M 71 38
BREEEHE 1) and Guangzhou Environmental Protection Bureau
(BNTIRZRER) as well.

Mr. Lu Xiao’an, aged 53, is the Vice President of the Group. He is
mainly responsible for the daily operation of the Group’s hazardous
waste treatment business. Mr. Lu joined the Group in August
2015 (after the acquisition of Guangzhou Lvyou Industrial Waste
Reclamation Treatment Co., Limited by the Group). He graduated from
Environmental Science Department of Sun Yat-sen University in 1987.
During 1987 to 2004, he worked chronologically as an environmental
impact inspector at Guangzhou Environmental Monitoring Station, an
environmental impact monitor at Guangzhou Environmental Protection
Bureau, then back to Guangzhou Environmental Monitoring Station as
a head of office, head of motor vehicle emission inspection team, head
of motor vehicle emission monitoring division, the head of motor vehicle
emission supervision division, and a head of analysis office. In May
2004, Mr. Lu joined Guangzhou Lvyou Industrial Waste Reclamation
Treatment Co., Limited as an assistant to director, the deputy manager,
and then the general manager.

EEREREEE

BREEANER
FRBEE 38m  R-FE-—ALFNA
MARBBRERNAWE  TBEE

EEAXAKEENBRATAMEEE - T
ER-ZZE-AFMARM - EREEE
REBEIKRE . BISEFELEM -
RAEBSMAEEE - BAERS
E-RAFMAEM - FERERMARR
A BRESRERS TSR (4
HREBER)ER - WREAREFAE
BEEBI0F 2K B2RZEEAD
MBEREREATERZIRE °

RETEEREE > 4205 0 ATHER - A&
RZZEZNFE=ZAMALRQXT > BAIA
EXEESKEEEKNAEEE - &
MEEERHIT - HAEBEHTERM
EHENERBERLERNEEBER -
HETERSKEBFTAEEN T =K
B BRIRE T E 5 KEBREMN - K-8
EEERTAEEEENEMIME KU
REFTITEFESIUBREERMRBRE
FETERMNEZE - EARER - #HE
TAREEHEEERBNEIEZHEA
HEER—NANFEEREER TEER
RREBRATNE - BEESERRH
RRBERIZI PO HENTKERE
EIEFE - A BEBBEMNTRERE
EEHEFLREMNTRERERRT
FIRIE(RELZ T -

BEhRESE 535 BIRAKEBRNE
BE FEEELEECREBEYEEE
BHWHEEEIk BEEAER-ZT—H
FENRAMAREE(AAEETRNEE
NERTEEZEREYLINEEERQT
%) e BR—ANEERPLREBRER
BEE¥SX - BEALER-NANLEEZ
ZEMFHE BEEAREEMNTRE
EERRLMTTEERE BMNTRERE
EEERNE  HERZEMNTREER
ROEERAEEE  EBEISHRA
BEE - B EHSEEMRNER - #H
HHSEBRMRERGEINEETRSE
B FEER_SZNFHEAMARE
NERTEEZEREYLNEEERQT
FEBETEESRPE  BIEALE . 4K
.

PERREERRAT FEHE 2016

39



40

Directors and Senior Management
EERGEREEE

Mr. Gan Yongxiong, aged 48, is the Vice President of the Group. He
is mainly responsible for the daily operation of the Group’s sludge
treatment business. Mr. Gan has devoted himself to the sludge
treatment industry since year 2002, and has accumulated 14 years of
experience in the sludge and solid waste integrated resource utilization
industry. Mr. Gan has successfully developed technologies such as the
Solar Reclaimed-water Dual-Heat Source Heat-pumping Sludge Drying
System (KFGEEF KB ERARITIRFE(AL RGFT) and Fully-enclosed
Fertilizer Generating Sludge Drum System (& ¥ B =X, 55 8 /& &) # IE %
fl7). Not only has these technologies been registered utility patents by
the Intellectual Property Office, but are also included in the National
Key Model Environmental Protection Technologies Project (Bl & =
ZHIR SRR E A i R & T #2). Besides, Mr. Gan owns several other
registered patents for technologies such as the High-pressure Sludge
Drying System (& B’5E#z1t), applications of industrial waste residue
and construction garbage and sludge in green bricks baking system
as well. Mr. Gan joined us in 2009 and is currently responsible for the
market development of our sludge treatment business. He is the head
of technical implementations of the Group’s sludge treatment projects,
who devises work plans to ensure the processing technologies and
procedures comply with various technical standards, regulations and
legal procedures in the industry.

Mr. Zhou Yongquan, aged 52, is the general manager of Qingyuan
Lvyou Environmental Protection Technology Company Limited.
Mr. Zhou joined the Group in May 2014 (after the completion of the
acquisition of Qingyuan Lvyou Environmental Protection Technology
Company Limited by the Group). He has ever worked as a teacher in
middle school after graduating from Guangzhou Institute of Education
(BN EPEE = R 2 Bx) in 1987, and then joined companies founded by
Mr. Gu Yao Kun in 1997. The business scope of those companies
includes petrochemical engineering, environmental protection and
resource recycling and utilization industry. Mr. Zhou serves as the
general manager of these companies, Mr. Zhou has been involving
in the construction and subsequent daily operation and management
of sludge and solid waste treatment project of Qingyuan Lvyou
Environmental Protection Technology Company Limited since 2009.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG)
POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As a comprehensive environmental service provider, not only did the
Group create values for the Company, shareholders and investors,
but also actively take its responsibilities in environment protection by
enhancing operation efficiency, perfecting relevant company policies
and systems, and adopting innovative technology. The Group dedicates
to improving its performance in environmental protection fields such as
wastewater treatment, waste management and energy consumption.

The Group has always strictly complied with all the national and
regional environmental laws and regulations applicable to it. The Group
possesses Class A operational qualification for environmental pollution
control facilities (for both domestic and industrial wastewater) and all
water discharged after undergoing wastewater treatment conforms
to relevant national and regional discharge standards. In addition, the
Group is one of the most sizable hazardous waste disposal enterprises
in Guangdong Province, possessing licenses for treating solid waste
(including regulated waste) and for treating and disposing dozens
of types of hazardous waste. The Group is regarded as a high-tech
enterprise and a certified enterprise with comprehensive utilization
of resources. All sludge, solid and hazardous wastes treated comply
strictly with relevant environmental protection and safety standards in
order to achieve qualified detoxification. Sludge, solid and hazardous
wastes after treatment will be recycled and transformed into green
bricks, ceramsites, etc.

The Group established the environmental and social management
systems applicable to the headquarter and project subsidiaries,
specifying the environmental policies of the Group, emphasizing
the requirements of relevant environmental laws and regulations.
The Group is always aware of precautions during stages like project
approval, design, construction and operation to ensure no substantial
impacts would be brought the surrounding environment and
communities. The Group will constantly improve its environmental and
social management systems, review and update relevant policies.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - ERERBE

In order to improve the environmental performance of the Group, it has
invested massive resources in scientific research and development,
especially in the technology application in wastewater treatment and
utilization of sludge as a resource. Moreover, the Group attaches
great importance of the environmental performance of suppliers
and contractors. During the selection process of suppliers, the
environmental performance of tender companies is one of the key
consideration factors. If necessary, the Group will invite independent
bodies to conduct authoritative inspection to ensure that the products
and services comply with the national standards of safety and
environmental protection.

The Group regards its employees as the most valuable asset of the
Company and aims at building an excellent team. The remuneration
packages of staff are regularly reviewed to attract and retain talents
by providing competitive remuneration and fringe benefits. The health
and safety of staff is also of crucial importance to the Group. Through
continuous improvement of relevant prevention mechanisms and
measures, such as establishing Contingency Plan for Environmental
Emergencies, providing regular relevant occupational safety training to
strengthen safety awareness, so that our employees can fully grasp the
operational processes and reduce the chance of accidents.

As a pioneer environment protection corporation in China, the Group
will put its strengths into play in the industry, and will also continue to
care about the society by encouraging employees to actively participate
in volunteering activities and building a more interactive relationship
with communities. As the Group values the development of education,
it set up 10-year CTEG Scholarships in School of Environmental
Science and Engineering of Sun Yat-sen University and College of
Environment and Energy of South China University of Technology.
Further, the Group also founded a Joint Lab of CTEG and College of
Environmental Sciences and Engineering of Peking University and set
up Peking University-CTEG Educational Fund to make a contribution
to the cultivation of professionals in environmental protection industry
and to the promotion of environmental protection for long-term
development. Through cooperation with higher education institutions,
the Group looks for more opportunities for both parties to exchange
comments in the fields of environmental protection, development and
public welfare.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group has always valued opinions from each stakeholder and
has proactively maintained a close relationship with them as it is one
of the important elements that facilitates the continuous growth of
the Company. The Group has been conducting two-way, transparent
and regular communication with different stakeholders, including
employees, shareholders/investors, government departments,
suppliers/contractors, customers, partners, community members and
the media, to collect their comments and expectations towards the
Group, and understand their issues in concern. The Group regularly
inspects the existing communication channels and reviews their
effectiveness to continuously improves the relevant arrangements
to collect opinions from stakeholders more effectively and response

promptly.

Since the ESG Report is being published separately starting from this
year, the Group have commissioned an independent consultant firm
to conduct a questionnaire survey and interview with stakeholders.
The resulis helped to understand the expectations of stakeholders on
the Group’s first ESG report, identify ESG issues that they consider
particularly important to the Group, and assist in formulating the
frameworks of the ESG Report.

ESG REPORT

Please refer to the Group’s ESG Report for the performance on
environmental protection, occupational safety and health, relationships
with employees, community investment and the strategic objectives
in practicing corporate social responsibility (“CSR”). The report will be
uploaded to the Group’s official website within three months after the
publication of this Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in
the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company focuses on maintaining high standard of corporate
governance in order to achieve sustainable development and enhance
corporate performance. The Board strives for adhering to the principles
of corporate governance and has adopted sound corporate governance
practices to meet the legal and commercial standards, focusing on
areas such as internal control, fair disclosure and accountability to
all shareholders to ensure the transparency and accountability of all
operations of the Company. The Company believes that effective
corporate governance is an essential factor to create more values for
its shareholders. The Board will continue to review and improve the
corporate governance practices of the Group from time to time to
ensure that the Group is led by an effective Board in order to optimize
return for shareholders.

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Company has adopted the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate
governance. The Board considers that the Company has complied
with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code for the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises five executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The Directors who held office during the year
and up to the date of publication of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Cham To
Mr. Lu Yili

Mr. Gu Yaokun
Mr. Xu Shubiao
Mr. Xu Juwen

(Chairman)
(Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent
Mr. Du Hequn
Mr. Liu Yung Chau

The list of Directors has been published on the website of the
Company and the website of the Stock Exchange, and is disclosed in
all corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board had met the
requirement of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors with at least one
possessing appropriate qualification, or accounting or related financial
management expertise (in compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules).

The Board has a balance of skill, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are essential to and would promote the business
of the Group. The Board, with the assistance from the senior
management, forms the core management team of the Company.
The Board takes the overall responsibility for management of the
Company, formulating the business strategies and development plan of
the Company, decision making on important issues, including but not
limited to substantial mergers and acquisitions and disposals, directors’
appointments and significant operational and financial matters. The
senior management are responsible for supervising and executing the
Board policies and strategies, including the provision of updates of
the Group’s performance to the Board to enable the Board to deliver
and discharge their duties. Daily management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to the senior management of
the Company.
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Mr. Tsui Cham To is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Lu Yili is the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Responsibilities between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are clearly divided and segregated to ensure a balance of power and
authority and to reinforce their independence and accountability.

BOARD MEETINGS

It is intended that the Board should meet regularly so that all Directors
are kept up to date with the business development of the Group.
Special meetings of the Board will be convened if the situation requires
so. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board had convened
13 board meetings and 1 general meeting. The individual attendance
record of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2016 is
tabulated as follows:

WEBELTERESEXE MECLE
ERANBDERHITE ESEXRFHE
ARBEFHUTENRERARED K2
BA + LAHE fRBE 0 B A Y F 187 % N3 1K
LB HEEEMN -

EEEEH

RBFTE ESSREHEMTZIUE
FEESERKTHRASENEBERR
HER - MERER EBSKEHS
HER - -BE_Z-—RE+ZA=+—
ALFE ESEHERT=ZRESS
FRER-ARRERZ - BEZE—ARF
TZA=1t—-BLFE ESRELFE
SRNRHEAT

Attendance/ Attendance/
Total number Total number

of board of general
meetings meetings
H R e, HE R e
EEgER BRRE%
FEE R e
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Tsui Cham To (Chairman) WEBEE(FE) 13/13 1/1
Mr. Lu Yili (Chief Executive Officer) EEY %4 (EEHTE) 13/13 1/1
Mr. Xu Shubiao BmENELE 13/13 11
Mr. Xu Juwen BB kA 13/13 11
Mr. Gu Yaokun B2k 13/13 1/1

Independent Non-executive Directors BAEBITES
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent EHIRIEAEAE 13/13 1/1
Mr. Du Hequn MR EE 13/13 11
Mr. Liu Yung Chau BBt 13/13 1/1
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors. Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirms that
the Directors complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2016.

RELATIONSHIP AMONG THE DIRECTORS

Among the members of the Board, Mr. Tsui Cham To, the Chairman is
a cousin of Mr. Xu Juwen. Save for the above, there is no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material relationship)
between any members of the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, for the purpose
of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process, review risks management and internal controls
systems. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated
financial information for the year ended 31 December 2016, including
the accounting principles adopted by the Group, with the Company’s
management. The Audit Committee, together with the management,
has reviewed constantly the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters and reviewed the financial results of the Group. As of
the date of publication of this report, the Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely,
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent (the chairman of the Audit Committee). Mr.
Du Hequn and Mr. Liu Yung Chau.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee had held three meetings during the year ended
31 December 2016 for considering the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2015, interim results of the Group for the
six months ended 30 June 2016, and reviewing the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems issues regarding internal
audit. All the members (Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent, Mr. Du Hequn and
Mr. Liu Yung Chau) of the Audit Committee have attended all the above
meetings.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary responsibilities of the remuneration committee of
the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) are to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure of the
Company for remuneration of all Directors and senior management,
to assess performance of executive directors and to review and
recommend to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Director and senior management, by reference to the duties,
responsibilities, experience and qualifications of each candidate.

In accordance with the written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, majority of members of the Remuneration Committee
should be Independent Non-executive Directors, and the chairman
must be an Independent Non-executive Director. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s
website and the website of the Stock Exchange. As of the date of
publication of this report, Mr. Du Hequn (Chairman) (Independent Non-
executive Director), Mr. Liu Yung Chau (Independent Non-executive
Director) and Mr. Tsui Cham To (Executive Director) are members of the
Remuneration Committee. One meeting was held by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2016 to review and
approve the remuneration packages of certain executive Directors. All
members (Mr. Du Hequn, Mr. Liu Yung Chau and Mr. Tsui Cham To) of
the Remuneration Committee have attended the meeting.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management of the
Group by band for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:

HMESE

rRAFMEEES(HFMEES HNE
EREANESSERAQAMBES
REREZEASNFMBEEKERE - U
TFEATESZIRARSZERREAZ
BE HF CRREBOESSRE
ERESREEAENFHHEE -

REFHNEESNERBEDE - HM
ZEENZHBERARBIFAITE
o MEFLERBALFRATESE - H
MESENRELRETNA DR KRB
POt &R - MTIBARREBH - &
BEAE(EF)BUFHTES) B
BRAEBIFATES) RFEEL
LTBTER)AFHEZEEERE - BE
TE-ARE+ZA=t+—BHLEEHFM
ZESRT-RERUBTLREST
HITESHHMAS - FTHEESENE
ERE(HEBHEE  BRREERBE
BRE)HBEHEZRAGE

BE-ZE—AR"E+-A=+—HL#F
B AEESREEBRENTMAR
YT :

Number of

persons

Remuneration bands (HKD) M AR A (B oT) AN
Nil to 500,000 £ £ 500,000 5
500,001 to 1,000,000 500,001 £ 1,000,000 4
1,000,001 to 2,500,000 1,000,001 £ 2,500,000 1
2,500,001 to 3,000,000 2,500,001 £ 3,000,000 —
3,000,001 to 5,000,000 3,000,001 Z 5,000,000 -
5,000,001 to 5,500,000 5,000,001 £ 5,500,000 -
5,500,000 to 10,000,000 5,500,000 Z 10,000,000 2
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board had set up its nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) to, among others, review the structure, size and
composition of the Board to determine the policy for the nomination of
directors and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of Directors. As at the date of publication of this report, Mr. Liu Yung
Chau (Chairman) (Independent Non-executive Director), Mr. Lien Jown
Jing, Vincent (Independent Non-executive Director) and Mr. Tsui Cham
To (Executive Director) are members of the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee has also adopted a policy of diversity for
memberships of the Board which aims to achieve diversity in the Board
against a range of different perspectives, including but not limited to
professional and industry experience, skills and knowledge, cultural
and educational background. These criteria will be considered in
determining the optimum composition of the Board and when possible
should be balanced appropriately. In reviewing and assessing the
composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee will consider
all different perspectives, including the aforesaid criteria, in order to
maintain a diverse Board. And when recommending new appointment
to the Board, the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on
merit against objective criteria including the ones set out above, with
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

One meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during the year
ended 31 December 2016 to review the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and to assess
the independence of independent non-executive directors. All members
(Mr. Liu Yung Chau, Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent and Mr. Tsui Cham
To) of the Nomination Committee have attended the meeting.
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The Company recognizes the importance of keeping the Directors
updated with latest information of duties and obligations of a director
of a company which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and
the general regulatory requirements and environment for such listed
company. To meet this goal, each newly appointed Director would
receive an introductory training regarding the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company in Hong Kong. As part of
the continuous professional development program pursuant to A.6.5
of the CG Code, the Company has also updated the directors of the
Company of any material changes in the Listing Rules and corporate
governance practices from time to time. All directors of the Company
are provided with reading materials summarizing the duties and
responsibilities in acting as directors from time to time to keep the
directors of the Company abreast of such duties and responsibilities.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the directors of
the Company received the following training during the year ended 31
December 2016:

HESMEIIRIF

ARBFRA - BRESTHRERROGR
BXFTETN AR ESNRBREEU
Rzttt RAa-—REERERBRENR
HENZRER - REALER  H
ZEESEKELRTRARNMERATELT R
AEBNEEREEEEZBNEI -
RBEEREFTRNALSK  EREE
EXZRBEN -2 A2FLFER
BEARARAESEMNLTRAREXE
BEBRNERNEAES AQFEEE
ETRERHEEFAESHEREENE
BN BARRAESTHARERSE
£ -

REARNTREFNTE  AARAESR
BE-Z-—RF+-A=+t-HLEE
BT T

Attending internally-facilitated S EBLH SR EY

briefings or training/attending R EEEAN2m
Name of Directors EENA seminars/reading materials et REA R
Mr. Tsui Cham To mEEEE Relevant trainings received 2z HEEI
Mr. Lu Yili ECM%E Relevant trainings received 22 EEEI
Mr. Gu Yaokun R EE Relevant trainings received 22 EEEI
Mr. Xu Shubiao BREELE Relevant trainings received B2IZZ RS
Mr. Xu Juwen BIEXEE Relevant trainings received S22 EEEEI
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent HREIE&RE Relevant trainings received SEZHEEEN
Mr. Du Hequn HER L Relevant trainings received B2 HEE
Mr. Liu Yung Chau BAST & Relevant trainings received 2 EEEI

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ma Chun Kei, the company secretary appointed by the Board and
an employee of the Company, in the opinion of the Board, possesses
the necessary qualification and experience, capable of performance
of the functions of the company secretary and the Company will
provide fund for Mr. Ma to take not less than 15 hours of appropriate
professional training in each financial year as required under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an
ongoing basis.

Such risk management and internal control systems are designed for
managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board
has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of risk
management and internal control to the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee (on behalf of the Board) oversees management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems, and management has provided a confirmation
to the Audit Committee (and the Board) on the effectiveness of these
systems for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Group’s risk management framework is guided by the “Three
Lines of Defense” model. The Risk Management function co-ordinates
risk management activities and reviews significant aspects of risk
management for the Group, reports to the Audit Committee at each
regularly scheduled meeting, significant risks of the Group and the
appropriate mitigation and/or transfer of identified risks. The operating
units of the Group, as risk owners, identify, evaluate, mitigate and
monitor their own risks, and report such risk management activities to
Risk Management function on an annual basis. The Risk Management
function assesses and presents regular reports to the Audit Committee
at each regularly scheduled meeting.

The internal control system of the Company is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
to identify and manage risks and to safeguard the assets of the
Company against loss or fraud. The main features of internal control
system consist of five elements including, internal environment, risk
assessment, monitoring activities, information and communication and
internal monitoring. However, any internal control system can provide
only reasonable but not absolute assurance of full protection against
material errors, losses, fraud or failure to meet its business objectives.
The Audit Committee has engaged an external consultant to perform
internal audit services and has discussed the scope of work and
internal control findings with the external consultant.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside information in
accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group has taken
various procedures and measures, including arousing the awareness to
preserve confidentiality of inside information within the Group, sending
blackout period and securities dealing restrictions notification to the
relevant directors and employees regularly, disseminating information
to specified persons on a need-to-know basis and regarding closely
to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission in June 2012.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

This section lists out the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group. This is a non-exhaustive list and there may be other risks and
uncertainties further to the principal areas of risk outlined below.

Business development risk

Each of the Group’s projects has been or will be built to a specified
designed capacity. The utilization rate of its treatment facilities depends
on a number of factors including the size of the population, the types
of industries of its customers, the general economic conditions and
the level of industrialization in the area served by the relevant facilities.
If the facilities the Group operates are not utilized to their designed
capacity, the Group may not generate the turnover and profit it had
expected from the relevant projects, which could have a material
and adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of
operations. It is therefore important that the Group perform careful
market research and project planning before implementing with any
investment decisions.

Credit risk

The Group may suffer from financial loss if a customer or counterparty
fails to meet the obligations under a contract. Customers requiring a
credit over certain amount must undergo an individual credit evaluation.
These evaluations are based on a customer’s records of payment due
and current ability to repay. The corporate information and economic
situation of the customer are also taken into account. Debtors with
debts expiring more than 12 months are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is granted.
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Change of regulatory environment risk

The Group’s business and operations in the PRC are subject to
the PRC government standards, rules and regulations. Change of
regulatory environment risk means the risk of failure in response to
change over government regulations, which may have a negative
impact on the Group’s business. Changes in regulatory environment
are monitored regularly in order to respond to the changes on a timely
and effective manner.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT ON
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the accounts
of the Company in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Board is accountable to the
shareholders for a clear and balanced assessment of the Company’s
financial position and prospects.

The management provides all relevant information and records to the
Board, which enable it to prepare the accounts and to make above
assessments. The Audit Committee had reviewed and recommended
the Board to adopt the audited accounts for the year ended 31
December 2016. The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to the events or condition that may undermine the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The statement of the auditor
of the Company on its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Auditor’'s Report from pages
74 to 80.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the fees payable to KPMG
in respect of its audit services provided to the Group was RMB4.2
million (2015: RMB3.9 million). There is no fees paid and payable to
KPMG during the year for the reporting accountant service in respect
of certain notifiable transactions under the Listing Rules (2015: RMB1.2
million).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company’s shareholders’ communication policy is to maintain
transparency and provide timely information of the Group’s material
developments to shareholders and investors. General meetings
of the Company are formal channels for communication between
shareholders and the Board. The chairman of the Board is invited to
attend the general meetings to have direct communication with the
shareholders.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong situated at Room 804, 8/F, Empire Centre, 68 Mody Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meeting of the
Company may by written requisition request to the Board convene
an extraordinary general meeting. There are no provisions under the
Company’s articles of association governing shareholder’s right to put
forward proposals at general meetings. However, the shareholders
may follow the procedures as stated below to put forward proposals
in general meetings. The procedures for shareholders to convene
extraordinary general meetings and put forward proposal are as
follows:

1. The requisitionist(s) must sign a written request stating the objects
of the meeting to be convened, and deposit the same at the
principal place of business of the Company situated at Room
804, 8/F, Empire Centre, 68 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary. The
written request may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionist(s).

2. The Company will then verify the particulars of the requisitionist(s)
in their written request with the Company’s share registrar, and
upon confirmation from the Company’s share registrar that the
written request is in order, the Company Secretary will arrange
with the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting
by serving sufficient notice to all the registered shareholders
in accordance with all the relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and the provisions in the articles of association of
the Company.
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3. In the event that the written request has been verified as not in
order, the shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, an extraordinary general meeting will not be
convened as requested.

4.  If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the written request proceed duly to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, the requisitionist(s) may themselves convene
an extraordinary general meeting, but any extraordinary general
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the date of deposit of the written request.

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and communications by conducting analysts’
briefings, road shows, participating in investors’ conferences and
making corporate presentations during the conferences, arranging
company visits to the Company and maintaining regular meetings with
institutional shareholders and analysts. The Company’s annual general
meeting provides a good opportunity for communications between the
Board and its shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company to express their view and
make enquiries on the business or operation of the Company.

The investor relations department of the Company maintains regular
communication and dialogue with shareholders, investors and analysts.
It can be accessed during normal business hour by phone (Telephone
number: 86 (20) 8883 6077). Shareholders and investors can also
visit the Company’s website at www.chongto.com and the Stock
Exchange’s website for the Company’s announcements, circulars,
financial information, corporate governance practices, annual reports,
interim reports and other corporate information and updates of
business development and operations.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no change in the
constitutional documents of the Company.

The latest memorandum and articles of association of the Company are
available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the
Company.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance for
the year by business segments is set out in note 3 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 81. The Directors recommended
the payment of a final dividend of HK0.67 cents per share (2015: final
dividend of HKO0.73 cents per ordinary share and special dividend of
HK1.01 cents per ordinary share) for the year ended 31 December
2016, to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 6 June 2017.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has waived
or agreed to waive any dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 26 to the financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent the share
premium, shares held under Share Award Scheme, accumulated losses
and capital reserve which in aggregate amounted to RMB1,258.6
million as at 31 December 2016 (as at 31 December 2015: RMB1,470.8
million). Under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its articles of association
and provided that immediately following the distribution or payment of
dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results for the year ended and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and for the previous
four financial years are set out on page 204.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
publication of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Cham To (Chairman)

Mr. Lu Yili (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Gu Yaokun

Mr. Xu Shubiao

Mr. Xu Juwen

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent
Mr. Du Hequn
Mr. Liu Yung Chau

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director a confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company considers such directors to be
independent.

In accordance with Article 83(3) and 84 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Xu Juwen, Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent and Mr. Liu
Yung Chau will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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NE+—A=+=H

—tFNA=+H

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS EERBEL

Executive Directors Terms of service contract

BiITES BR %5 & B #A IR

Mr. Tsui Cham To 3 years from 4 September 2016 to 3 September 2019

BREEEE =FR-E-R"EANANBE=Z—

Mr. Lu Yili 3 years from 4 September 2016 to 3 September 2019

EEY %% =EFR-FE-RENANBE=Z—

Mr. Xu Shubiao 3 years from 4 September 2016 to 3 September 2019

BEREEE =FR-E-R"FENANBE=Z

Mr. Xu Juwen 3 years from 4 September 2016 to 3 September 2019

BIEX K% =EFR-FE-RENANBE=Z—

Mr. Gu Yaokun 3 years from 23 November 2015 to 22 November 2018

B2k ZFHIE-AF+-AZ+=HE=Z—

Independent Non-executive Directors Terms of letters of appointment

BIAEPITES ZEEHIR

Mr Lien Jown Jing, Vincent 3 years from 15 April 2017 to 14 April 2020
ERIERE =FH-E—tFNA+REHEZE-ZE-ZFMA+THEA

Mr. Du Hequn 3 years from 21 August 2014 to 20 August 2017

HEREELE =FR-FE-NMENAZ+—HE=Z

Mr. Liu Yung Chau 3 years from 4 September 2016 to 3 September 2019

BRmEE =FR-E-R"FEANANBE=Z

None of the Directors has entered or has proposed to enter into any
service agreements with the Company or any other member of the
Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the directors’ fees are
reviewed and revised by the Board based on the recommendations
of the Remuneration Committee and with reference to the directors’
duties, responsibilities and performances and the results of the Group.

Information relating to the changes in remuneration of directors are set
out in note 7 of the financial statement.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year except as disclosed
under the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” and
note 29 to the financial statements.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management as of
the date of publication of this report are set out on pages 35 to 40.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the Directors and chief executives of the
Company and their associates had the following interests in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:
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AAFREEELIH(EERFSRPE
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- EEROREEZEPEENERD
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Approximate
percentage of

Total number  shareholding in

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest of shares the Company
G E R

EEna B EmtE Bz 9 428 =R

Mr. Tsui Cham To Corporate Interest® 3,439,732,000 (L) 54.45%

®mEEEE NEERO

Mr. Lu Yili Corporate Interest® 52,206,000 (L) 0.83%

EEM %% NEER®

Mr. Gu Yao Kun Personal Interest 328,560,000 (L) 5.20%

HRE L B A=

Mr. Xu Shu Biao Personal Interest 84,000(L) 0.001%

BEEEE B AR

Mr. Xu Juwen Personal Interest 42,000(L) 0.001%

BIEX KL EARE R

(L) denotes a long position in the shares
Notes:

(1)  Mr. Tsui Cham To is deemed under the SFO to be interested in
3,439,626,000 shares of the Company held by Keen Vast Holdings
Limited, and 106,000 shares directly held by Mr. Tsui Cham To.

(2)  Mr. LuYiliis deemed under the SFO to be interested in 52,100,000 shares
of the Company held by Great Nation Finance Limited, and 106,000
shares directly held by Mr. Lu Yili.

L  ERROTHFE

(1) REJBEHERBERSG  REELERR
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which had been recorded in the
register maintained by the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO or which had been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. At no time
during the year was the Company, or any of its holding companies,
its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold any interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or its associated corporation.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 4 September 2013. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to provide an incentive to motivate, attract and retain
eligible persons, and to encourage them to optimise their performance
efficiency, enhance the value of the Company and promote the long-
term growth of the Company. This scheme will provide the eligible
participants, including employees, consultants, executives and officers
of the Company, a personal stake in the Company to achieve its
intended purpose.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from 4 September 2013 subject to the early termination provisions
contained in the Share Option Scheme, after which no further options
will be granted or offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect
to the exercise of any subsisting options granted prior to the expiry of
the 10- year period or otherwise as may be required in accordance with
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 544,000,000, being 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue immediately after IPO on the Listing Date (i.e. 25 September
2013) which is the effective date of such scheme and representing
approximately 8.6% of the issued shares of the Company as at the
date of this annual report. An option shall be deemed to have been
granted and accepted by the grantee and to have taken effect when
the duplicate offer document constituting acceptances of the options
duly signed by the grantee, together with a remittance in favor of the
Company of HKD1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance date.
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The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to any eligible person under the Share
Option Scheme shall not in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to the issue of a circular and shareholders’ approval in
general meeting. The period within which an option may be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme will be determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised later than 10
years from the date of grant of the particular option. Under the Share
Option Scheme, the exercise price in relation to each option shall be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, but in any event
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant of such option, (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of such option,
and (i) the nominal value of a share on the date of grant of such option.

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed, and there
was no outstanding option under the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2016.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND COMPLIANCE WITH
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental sustainability.
As a professional environmental solutions provider in the PRC, the
Group is subject to various environmental laws and regulations set by
the PRC national, provincial and municipal governments. These include
laws and regulations on air and noise pollution and discharge of waste
and water into the environment. Compliance procedures are in place
to ensure adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations. During
the year under review, the Group has complied with relevant laws and
regulations that have significant impact on the operations of the Group.
Further, any changes in applicable laws, rules and regulations are
brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant operation
units from time to time.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and business
partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is
committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Company provides a
fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity to our staff, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group also
puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings and development
resources to the employees so that they can keep abreast of the latest
development of the market and the industry and, at the same time,
improve their performance and self-fulfillment in their positions.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide the services in a way that
satisfy needs and requirements of the customers. The Group has also
established procedures in place for handling customers’ complaints
to ensure customers’ complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely
manner.

The Group is also dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers
and contractors as long-term business partners to ensure stability
of the Group’s business. We reinforce business partnerships with
suppliers and contractors by ongoing communication in a proactive
and effective manner so as to ensure quality and timely delivery.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules, on 22 March 2016, the
Company entered into a facility agreement with Asian Development
Bank as lender (the “Lender”), pursuant to which the Lender agreed to
make available to the Company loan facilities in an aggregate principal
amount of up to USD250 million, which comprise of (i) a dollar term
loan facility in the aggregate principal amount of up to USD100 million
(the “Initial Facility’’); and (i) subject to (among others) the entering into
of an amendment agreement between the Lender and the Company
(the “Complementary Facility Agreement”), a further dollar term loan
facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to USD150 million
(the “Complementary Facility”’, together with the Initial Facility, the
“Facilities”).
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Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it is a condition precedent for the
Company'’s right to deliver a disbursement request in respect of the
Facilities to the Lender and demand for drawdown of the Facilities that
each of Keen Vast Holdings Limited (“Keen Vast”), Mr. Tsui Cham To
and the Company shall enter into a share retention deed (the “Deed”).
Pursuant to the Deed, among others, Mr. Tsui Cham To shall at all
times through its shareholding in Keen Vast, maintain not less than
35% of the legal and beneficial ownership of all of the issued shares of
the Company free from all prohibited transfers as set out in the Deed.
Any non-compliance with the Deed by, among others, each of Keen
Vast and Mr. Tsui Cham To shall constitute an event of default under
the Facility Agreement.

Furthermore, it is also an event of default under the Facility Agreement
in the event that Mr. Tsui Cham To issues, sells, assigns, gives,
hypothecates, pledges, encumbers or otherwise transfers (directly or
indirectly through an intermediate holding company) any shares of the
Company to any of the persons or entities named on specific lists set
out in the Facility Agreement.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, on and at any time after the
occurrence of an event of default which is continuing, the Lender may
(among others) cancel all or any part of the amount of loan advanced
to the Company pursuant to the Facilities, declare all or any part of
the amount of loan advanced to the Company, together with accrued
interest, and all other amounts accrued or outstanding under the
finance documents as set out in the Facility Agreement be immediately
due and payable or be payable on demand.

Further details of the Facility Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 March 2016.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the persons (not being a Director or chief
executive of the Company) who have interests in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or have otherwise notified to
the Company were as follows:

FERERBRMG RAERRMDAIER

RZZBE-—ARF+=ZA=1+—0  BREHF
SERBEEHEINCIKEFTENZ M
FFEsEMERATE  RAQTRHG
NAEERD P EEREZIARNAL(L
AR TESHEETHAE)NT

Approximate

Total number percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest of shares shareholding
EEEE B BRpEE  RESAESLL
Keen Vast Holdings Limited™ Beneficial owner 3,439,626,000 (L) 54.45%

BARERERATO BEREBA
(L) denotes a long position in the shares
Note:

(1)  Keen Vast Holdings Limited is controlled by Mr. Tsui Cham To.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors are
not aware of any other person having an interest or short position in
shares and underlying shares of the Company representing 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company did not enter into any contract in respect
of the management or administration of the entire business or any
significant business of the Group nor any such contract subsisting.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this report of the Directors:

()  no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted
during the year or at the end of the year; and

(i)  no contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted during the year
or at the end of the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 56.2%
(2015: 26.8%) of the Group’s total cost of purchase for the year ended
31 December 2016. The largest supplier accounted for approximately
39.0% (2015: 16.4%) of the Group’s total cost of purchase for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

The Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
27.9% (2015: 25.6%) of the Group’s total turnover for the year ended
31 December 2016. The largest customer accounted for approximately
15.7% (2015: 7.5%) of the Group’s total turnover for the year ended 31
December 2016.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or any shareholder (who to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any
interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers at all times.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors had any interest in any competing business
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2016.

The Controlling Shareholders of the Company have confirmed to
the Company that they have complied with the non-competition
undertaking under the Non-competition Deed.
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COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The Company has entered into a deed of non-competition dated 4
September 2013 (the “Non-competition Deed”) with Keen Vast Holdings
Limited and Mr. Tsui Cham To, both being the controlling shareholders
of the Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”), and pursuant to
which the Controlling Shareholders procure its/his/her associates (other
than members of the Group) not to, engage in any business involving
the development of wastewater treatment facilities and the provision of
wastewater treatment and industrial water supply services. Details of
the Non-competition Deed are set out in the paragraph headed “Non-
competition Undertaking” in the section headed “Relationship with
Controlling Shareholders” of the prospectus of the Company dated 12
September 2013.

The Company has received the annual confirmation from each of
the Controlling Shareholders that each of them has fully complied
with their respective obligations under the Non-Competition Deed.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the annual
confirmation from the Controlling Shareholders relating to their
compliance with the non-competition undertaking by the Controlling
Shareholder under the Non-competition Deed and are satisfied that the
same has been complied with by the Controlling Shareholders under
the Non-competition Deed.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered into
certain connected transactions as below:

(@) Advisory Service Agreements with Haiqin Tiancheng
Consultancy

During the years 2015 and 2016, Guangzhou Haiqgin Tiancheng
Environmental Consultancy Company Limited (“Haigin Tiancheng
Consultancy”), entered into 6 advisory service agreements
(collectively, the “Advisory Service Agreements”) with four (4)
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group.

Pursuant to the Advisory Service Agreements, Haiqgin Tiancheng
Consultancy agreed to provide a series of advisory services to the
Group, including detecting quality of treated water and reports
issuing, designing contingency plans for sudden environmental
incidents. The total fees for the advisory services provided to the
Group by Haigin Tiancheng Consultancy in 2016 amounted to
approximately RMB1.4 million.
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(b)

Haigin Tiancheng Consultancy is a joint venture in which Mr.
Tsui Cham To, the controlling shareholder of the Group, directly
or indirectly holds 50% equity interest. Accordingly, pursuant to
Chapter 14A of Listing Rules, Haiqgin Tiancheng Consultancy is a
connected persons of the Company. The above-said transactions
contemplated under the Advisory Service Agreements between
Haiqgin Tiancheng Consultancy and the Group, constitute
connected transactions for the Group.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Advisory Service Agreements are more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, the entering into the Advisory Service
Agreements are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but exempted from shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Cooperation Service Contracts

On 1 January 2016, Guangzhou Lvyou entered into cooperation
service contracts (collectively, the “Cooperation Service
Contracts”) with six (6) companies, including Guangzhou Nansha
Development Zone Lvjie Disposal Recycling Store, Guangzhou
Panyu Luopu Kunrun Information Technology and Consulting
Services Department, Guangzhou Wofeng Biological Technology
Company Limited, Guangzhou Lvchi Environmental Protection
Technology Company Limited, Guangzhou Lvhao Technology
Services Company Limited, Guangzhou Anjing Environmental
Protection Technology Company Limited (collectively, the
“Cooperating Companies”). The Cooperation Service Contracts
have a term of one year.

(b)
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Pursuant to the Cooperation Service Contracts, the Cooperating
Companies will use their respective resources to assist
Guangzhou Lvyou to develop markets and look for potential
customers. Upon target customers being identified, the
Cooperating Companies shall act as the agent of Guangzhou
Lvyou to handle waste treatment matters with relevant target
customers in the name of Guangzhou Lvyou, to assist Guangzhou
Lvyou with negotiating contract terms with target customers, and
to help monitoring the parties’ respective obligations thereunder
the contract upon the target customers having entered into
agreements with Guangzhou Lvyou. Pursuant to the Cooperation
Service Contracts, the Cooperating Companies shall also provide
services such as consultation, training and guidance to the
relevant target customers for and on behalf of Guangzhou Lvyou.

Pursuant to the Cooperation Service Contracts, the Cooperating
Companies will charge Guangzhou Lvyou service fees based
the actual scale and numbers of customers who actually enter
into contracts with Guangzhou Lvyou. For the year ended 31
December 2016, the Cooperating Companies charged Guangzhou
Lvyou a total service fee amounted to approximately RMB7.8
million.

Each of the Cooperating Companies is an entity controlled by Mr.
Gu Yaokun, an executive director of the Company. Accordingly,
each of the Cooperating Companies is connected person of the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and the
transactions contemplated thereunder the Cooperation Service
Contracts constitute connected transactions for the Company.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Cooperation Service Contracts are more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, the entering into the Cooperation
Service Contracts are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but exempted from shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(c)

Advances to connected persons

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group remitted a
total of RMB105.6 million of interest-free advances (collectively,

the “Advances”) to the following connected persons.

The details of the Advances are as follows:
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Advances to

RMB

Date of transfer FER

ESXHHA AR#®T

Guangzhou Lvcheng [&E M £ 348 2016.01.31 62,000,000
2016.07.28 37,000,000

99,000,000

Zhuhai Yingrun HEEH 2016 1st half L& 537,000
2016 2nd half T 586,000

1,123,000

Guangzhou Yanchen Zhili BENERERIE 2016.04.30 2,300,000
2016.05.31 2,200,000

4,500,000

Haigin Tiancheng Consultancy SN A 2016.08.31 1,000,000
Total a3 105,623,000
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Guangzhou Lvcheng is a company owned, directly or indirectly, as
to 90% by Mr. Gu Yaokun (“Mr. Gu”), an executive director of the
Company. Zhuhai Yingrun Environmental Protection Technology
Company Limited (“Zhuhai Yingrun”) is held as to 51% by Mr.
Gu Jiajian, being a close family member of Mr. Gu. Guangzhou
Yanchen Zhili Professional Company Limited (“Guangzhou
Yanchen Zhili”) is a company owned, directly or indirectly, as
to 30% by Mr. Tsui Cham To, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Haiqin Tiancheng Consultancy is a joint venture in
which Mr. Tsui Cham To, the controlling shareholder of the Group,
directly or indirectly holds 50% equity interest. Accordingly, each
of Guangzhou Lvcheng, Zhuhai Yingrun, Guangzhou Yanchen Zhili
and Haigin Tiancheng Consultancy (collectively, the “Connected
Persons”) is a connected person of the Company pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and the Advances made to
these Connected Persons constituted a connected transaction for
the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, all the Advances made to the
aforesaid Connected Persons have been repaid to the Group in
full.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, certain related party
transactions were entered into by the Group which is disclosed in
note 29 to the financial statements. These related party transactions
constituted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules
which are required to be disclosed in this report in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules has been complied with.
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As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 12 September
2013, Guangzhou Haitao Environmental Protection Technology
Company Limited (“Guangzhou Haitao”), a subsidiary of the Group,
entered into a service agreement with Guangzhou Tian Tian Cleaning
and Washing Company Limited (“Tian Tian”) as part of its ordinary and
usual course of business on 4 September 2013, pursuant to which
Guangzhou Haitao agreed to provide wastewater treatment services
to Tian Tian for a term of three years from the date of listing of the
Company on 25 September 2013 (the “Tian Tian Agreement”).

The term of the Tian Tian Agreement was subsequently extended by
an agreement entered into between Guangzhou Haitao and Tian Tian
on 17 May 2016, pursuant to which the Tian Tian Agreement was
renewed to a term of three years commencing from the date of the
2016 Tian Tian Agreement to 31 December 2018 (both days inclusive)
(the “2016 Tian Tian Agreement”). It was expected that the annual caps
of the services contemplated under the 2016 Tian Tian Agreement for
each of the financial years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018
will not exceed HKD7,900,000, HKD8,900,000 and HKD9,900,000,
respectively. Further details of the 2016 Tian Tian Agreement is set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 17 May 2016.

As Tian Tian is a sino-foreign joint venture of which 49% of its capital
is contributed by To Kee Holdings Limited, a company controlled by
Mr. Tsui Cham To, a Director and a substantial shareholder of the
Company, and his family, Tian Tian is a connected company of Mr.
Tsui and hence a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. The transactions under this agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company which are subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but are
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the amount of wastewater
treatment services provided by Guangzhou Haitao to Tian Tian was
approximately RMB4.1 million (2014: RMB5.5 million).
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The Directors (including all independent non-executive Directors) have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms; and

(3) in accordance with the agreement entered into on terms which
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. For the propose to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
auditors of the Company has provided a letter to the Board, confirmed
that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions:

()  bave not been approved by the Board;

(i)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group for transactions involving the provision of
services by the Group;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the cap.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2016, no
related party transaction or continuing related party transaction as
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements falls under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SHARES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2016.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained adequate public
float for the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
annual report.

On behalf of the Board
Tsui Cham To
Chairman

31 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RS

Independent Auditor’s Report to the shareholders
of CT Environmental Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CT
Environmental Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 81 to 203, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B ENR S

FREER

FRERESEERERMNERE
ARETYPEEMNBHRRNEARSD
EENSR - ELEHEAERMENE
GRSV BRRNHARRKETRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

0o RMAISHELSEEBRRIR -

Recoverability of trade receivables

| & 5 Mk I8 B AT B 1

BB S BEIREN T 19 RE I8 ERETIBE °

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 98.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REEEE

EEFFNTEREZER

The carrying value of the Group’s trade receivables
totalled RMB554,850,000 as at 31 December 2016,
which represented 8.07% of the Group’s total assets
as at that date. Allowance for doubtful debts of
RMB29,835,000 was recorded as at 31 December
2016.

R-EBE—RE+-A=+—HB EKEEZEKFIEN
IREEA R A ARMK554,850,0007T  HEEERZA
BWEEMNS.07T% - R=ZFB—RE+=ZA=+t—H BEA
BRRERFEE A R 29,835,000 7T °

Management estimates the required allowance for
doubtful debts, if any, based on an assessment
estimate of the recoverability of individual trade
receivables with reference to the ageing of overdue
balances, repayment histories of individual debtors,
existing customer-specific and market conditions and
the fulfilment of repayment arrangements agreed with
specific debtors.

B ERIEE B E 5 FE U FRIE AY AT U B 14 A9 R 44 £k 5T
SEZEPERERR - BREBANERTE REEF
BEBRETRUAKRERSEGBAMENERZHNE
ITERREETRIR () WP ERE -

Management is required to exercise significant
judgement in assessing the allowance for doubtful
debts for individual trade receivables. The ability of
the debtors to repay the Group depends on customer-
specific and market conditions which involves inherent
uncertainty.
EEENRECENEZBRRFENRERERETRE
KK - EEANEEBEEFTENEDERNE P15
EERRTR - MEFREETEEN -

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of
trade receivables included the following:

BMAEES ERREATREENETEFEETIE
15 :

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating
to customer acceptance, credit control, debt
collection and the calculation of the allowance for
doubtful debts;

s ERKIEBHEFEZ  FEEH - GEWE KT
BERRBHEEBNREEANIMEIZNRT - HTRE
EBRIE

° assessing the classification of individual balances
in the trade receivables ageing report by
comparing details in the trade receivables ageing
report with underlying invoices on a sample basis;

o EBMRLLERESRWFURRERREHEERESR

Ak E 5 WA R | E AE R AR 0 B

AN
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BB AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

RESEERE)

Recoverability of trade receivables

8% BUWRIRRY AT W E 1

BRI E I ERANE 19 RE I8 B ST HR -

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 98.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEE

EBPNEHZEER

management judgement.

B) R RERBOFEFEEERBITEERAL -

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as
a key audit matter because of the inherent uncertainty
in assessing if trade receivables will be recovered in
full and because the assessment of the allowance
for doubtful debts requires the exercise of significant

HMRAEZRUFEN AR EEERENSE |
B = FHE B A E A T ER R R & (fid B 5 R IR S AR B

obtaining an understanding of the basis
of management’s judgements about the
recoverability of individual overdue balances
and evaluating management’s assessment of
recoverability of these individual balances with
reference to the industry in which the debtors
are operating, the ageing of overdue balances,
historical and post year-end payment records and
repayment arrangements agreed with specific
debtors. This included inspecting relevant
correspondence with individual debtors;

W% 5 TR i 7 128 1B ) 38 P 4 Bk T LA [ 14 Y e L
%2 URSZEBANBHMRR - EBALERE
7% - BHERIRER  BLRFEAEBNARGEHE
RERHEEBAMENERZH  FTEEEBRZ
Z{E B A RRA T W B M VR - WEFEER
BEEREBANRERRE ;

assessing the historical accuracy of the estimates
made by the management for the allowance for
doubtful debts by comparing the level of provision
made by management as at 31 December 2015
with the actual new provisions, write offs and
recoveries in respect of trade receivables as at 31
December 2015 during the current year; and
ZBUREEER-_ZE-AF+-A=+—HL
MBHEEAFENERNERE  MERER=-Z
—hAF+ZA=+—-HBNEZERFERRBENKE
IR ARG E IR E R SRR A TR ST A B £ 2ERR
E Rk

comparing material cash receipts from debtors
subsequent to the financial year end relating to
trade receivable balances at 31 December 2016
with bank statements and relevant underlying
documentation on a sample basis.
MELRZVMBFEFEREAREBEAKRDNRE
(BER—ZB-R"E+ZA=+—-BNEZEWNIA
fEEREEE) BRERTHIBREE IR ARRE A -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

CT Environmental Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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BB AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lam Kai Wa.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

31 March 2017
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —E—NF+-H=1—HI-FE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (KA B#25))

2016 2015
ZE—RE —E-RE
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
FiEE AR¥FT ARET T
Turnover EER 3 1,865,940 1,434,959
Cost of sales SHERA (1,013,679) (719,459)
Gross profit EF 852,261 715,500
Other revenue H At % 4(a) 166,024 68,701
Administrative expenses THAX (256,208) (139,257)
Other net (loss)/income HihF(E58) ks 4(b) (59,050) 94,312
Profit from operations REE T 703,027 739,256
Finance costs A& AN 5(a) (88,159) (70,157)
Share of profits of associates DAEBEE R R ER 1,527 1,115
Share of profit of a joint venture DI —REELEMNRF 533 361
Profit before taxation [ F58 B 25 5 616,928 670,575
Income tax FriS®t 6 (102,468) (69,323)
Profit for the year FENHEF 514,460 601,252
Attributable to: T EIREWN:
Equity shareholders of the Company RAGERFRA 519,137 598,916
Non-controlling interests =R R A (4,677) 2,336
Profit for the year FEWiEH 514,460 601,252
Earnings per share SREEF 9
Basic R 0.08 0.10
Diluted e 0.08 0.10

The notes on pages 88 to 203 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 26(d).

E8BE203HFIHMERZAF U HRK
HW—&7 - BIKBETAQRREREEA
Z R EEAGF RIERFIBE N MEE 26(d) °
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
meBEaRkHEMEEKER
for the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —E—NF+-H=1—HI- FEZ

(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA B#Z2 %))

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-HF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥FT ARET T
Profit for the year £ P F 514,460 601,252
Other comprehensive income for the year £ P9 H it & EUg 2=
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently ~HETEEFH D EEEHMER :
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation BRESIEAARBTARED
of financial statements of entities ERREEBMNERIMEHREK
not using Renminbi (‘RMB”) as EENEREZR
functional currency (6,723) 8,858
Total comprehensive income for the year F£R&EX AT 507,737 610,110
Attributable to: LT EIHEWN:
Equity shareholders of the Company AARERFEA 512,414 607,774
Non-controlling interests AR RS (4,677) 2,336
Total comprehensive income for the year $£HW£E AT 507,737 610,110
The notes on pages 88 to 203 form part of these financial statements. % 88E203HFIEMETAZEMKEHRE
H—E5 °
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Consolidated statement of financial position
RE BRI &

(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA R Z5])

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
ZE—RE —E-HF
+=ZA=+—H +=B=+—H
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
I EE AR¥ET T ARET T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERZE 10 2,412,287 2,150,651
Lease prepayments FEEERIE 11 286,977 294,128
Intangible assets BEEE 12 1,318,390 1,150,611
Goodwill HE 13 142,305 144,331
Interest in associates R N B R 15 6,061 4,534
Interest in a joint venture R—REEDLENER 16 2,856 2,323
Gross amounts due from customers EREFEHIRE
for contract work FRIEZAZE 17 259,206 231,302
Other receivables H b FEWFRIE 19 331,612 277,604
Deferred tax assets BERIBEEE 24(b) 8,387 2,958
4,768,081 4,258,442
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 23,718 29,914
Trade and other receivables B R EMEWFIE 19 1,001,691 794,340
Gross amounts due from customers BREFEHTIRER
for contract work THAAZR 17 38,454 33,971
Deposits with a bank with original FHRIRITRBEIH AR
maturity date over three months B=@A 277X 5,837 5,626
Cash and cash equivalents BENRRESEEY 20 1,033,907 382,500
2,103,607 1,246,351
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B RHMEMRIE 21 486,066 321,551
Bank loans RITER 22 1,047,659 642,276
Current taxation BNEARH I8 24(a) 71,817 22,642
1,605,542 986,469
Net current assets REEEFE 498,065 259,882
FEHIRREBEBRAS FEHE 2016
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Consolidated statement of financial position (cont’a)
mEMBERRER @

(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA R#Z5])

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
ZE—AE —E-HF
+=A=+—H t=A=t—H
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
I EE AR®F T AR¥T T
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARE 5,266,146 4,518,324
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Bank loans RITER 22 1,789,554 1,367,290
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 24(b) 227,183 239,360
Deferred income IEFEUA 25 14,842 15,119
2,031,579 1,621,769
Net assets BEZRE 3,234,567 2,896,555
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B Bk 26
Share capital BRAR 125,392 125,392
Reserves & 3,099,989 2,757,300
Total equity attributable to equity ARREFFEA
shareholders of the Company FE (L #E S4B R 3,225,381 2,882,692
Non-controlling interests FEIERR RS 9,186 13,863
Total equity W 3,234,567 2,896,555

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 R-ZB—ttF=ZA=Z+—HEESSH#

March 2017. ERIRRETIE
)
)
) Directors
) B
)
The notes on pages 88 to 203 form part of these financial statements. %8B E203HFIHM T AZEMBRE
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
mEEREER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 BlZ —E—F+ A =+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (XA R#FIT)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
AAREHEAEENTER

Shares
held under
the Share Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Statutory Award  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  Scheme reserve profits Total interests equity
RiER

TEE%  REET
BE  BhEE  EARE 0 ARE HERG BRRE  REEH @ FEREE  G@d
RMB'0OD  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OOO  RMB'OOD  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARMTR ARMTR AR%Tn ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR
(note 26(a))  (note 26(b)) (note 26(b)) (note 26(b))  (note 23)  (note 26(b)
(MeEoe) (MfsEoeb) (WiiToel) (MEoe)  (ME29)  (HizE26(b)

Balance at 1 January 2015 REE-RE-B-AMER 114403 528,765 (75) 79,299 - 5900 743103 1,471,3% 23234 1,494,629
Changesin equity for 2015:  ZF-TEMEREE:

Profitforthe year ) — - —~ - - — 5896 598916 23% 601252

Other comprehensiveincome ~ Eft2ElE = = = = = 8,858 = 8,858 - 8,858
Total comprehensive income  2EREEE - - - - - 8858 598916 607,774 233% 610,110
Acquisition of subsidiaries Lt = = = = = = = = 13473 13473
Acquisition of non-controlling

iterests BB ERER - - = - — —BRN (RN 5180 (880
Shares issuance (note 26(a) (i)) BT (Hf&E26(a) () 10989 896,346 = = = = - 9073% - 90733%
Share purchased under the RERMRETEER

Share Award Scheme (note 23) R/ (Hf3F23) = = = = (8.411) = = (8.411) = (8411)
Transfer to statutory reserve. ~ EZEERE - = - 04% = - 049 = = =
Dividends declared in respectof ~ iBEEEEERMRE

the previous years (note 26(d)  (Ff3E26(d)) - (O,8) = = = = - 178) - O78)

RZE-EF+-A=1-H

Balance at 31 December 2015 Hiiéh 125392 1,333,330 (75) 99,793 (8.411) 14758 1317905 2,882,692 13,863 2,896,555
Balance at 1 January 2016 WoE-RE-A-BH&E 125302 1,333,330 (79) 99,793 (8,411) 14758 1,317,905 2,882,692 13,863 2,896,555
Changesin equity for 2016:  ZF-n~EMEREE .

Profit for the year i = = = = = — 519137 519,137 (4677) 514460

Other comprehensive income ~ Eft2E W& = = = = = (6,729) = (6,723) = (6,729)
Total comprehensive income ~ 2TUNEA5E = = = = = (6,723) 519137 512414 (4677) 507,737
Share purchased under the RERBREHHBERD

Share Award Scheme (note 23)  (ff323) = = = — (20,00 = — (20,00 —  (20001)
Equity settled share-based NEREENRAA

transactions (note 23) (Hfzk23) = 143 = = 3210 = = 3413 = 343
Transfer to statutory reserve EZITRE = = = 65,258 = - (65259 - - -
Dividends declared in respectof ~ BEEEEERNRE

the previous years (note 26(d) (& 26(d) —  (153,137) = = = = —  (153,137) - (153,137)

R=Z-7"E+A=1-H
Balance at 31 December 2016 iif 125392 1,180,336 (759 165,051 (25,142) 8035 1,771,784 3,225,381 9,186 3,234,567
The notes on pages 88 to 203 form part of these financial statements. %8B E203HFTHIM T AZZM B MK
H—&D °
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Consolidated cash flow statement
l|‘l-\éiﬁg$\;ﬁ§§%
for the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —E—NF+-H=1—HI- FEZ

(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA B#Z2 %))

2016 2015
“E-RE —ZET-hF
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Bt EE ARBT T ARBT T
Operating activities REFEy
Cash generated from operations REXEKMBRE 20(b) 804,876 559,641
Income tax paid 2SS 24(a) (70,899) (59,420)
Net cash generated from operating REFENBEREZHE
activities 733,977 500,221
Investing activities BEFED
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, WEBFT S A BT FR
net of cash acquired HRWERE (3,301) (832,251)
Prepayment of acquisition deposits WS IR A RIE 19(ii) (55,000) (88,124)
Settlement of acquisition deposits HEWEZRS 19(ii) 88,124 —
Repayment of loans from former equity EBERBAEENEAR
owners of the Group’s subsidiaries AIEREEAER — (126,976)
Payment for purchase of lease prepayments FHEFENREEEYE -
and property, plant and equipment ) Y AN EN (621,138) (580,722)
Placement of deposits with a bank with EFRREIHABB=EA
original maturity date over three months HERATIERK — (5,626)
Proceeds from/(payment for) disposal HEVE  MERZE
of property, plant and equipment FR8FE, (4:K) 5,135 (49)
Finance income received 2UELE WA 569 483
Advance to third parties ME=FER 19()) (164,201) —
Repayment from third parties REFE=HER 19(i) 50,000 —
Net cash used in investing activities BERBTAREEE (699,812) (1,633,265)
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Consolidated cash flow statement (cont’q)

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —E—NF+-H=1—HI-FE

HERERER®

(Expressed in Renminbi) (KA B#25))

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-HF
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Bt EE ARBT T ARET T
Financing activities MEES
Proceeds from bank loans RITERMERE 1,730,741 1,016,572
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (945,475) (311,163)
Net proceed from share issuance R BITAERIEFEEE 26/(a)(ii) — 907,335
Payment for purchase of shares under T E R D REETE
Share Award Scheme EHTRHPZAR 23 (20,001) (8,411)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests U BB FE I AR R — (28,800)
Advance to related parties o) B 5 B 29(c) (105,873) (58,506)
Repayment from related parties RE B ER 194,436 40,465
Advance from related parties 3R B B 2R 29(c) 50,000 —
Repayment to related parties Bk apetN (50,000) —
Advance from a third party RE—BE=FER 84,000 —
Repayment to a third party B—BE=FEX (84,000) —
Interests paid 2FFE (86,549) (67,181)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders EAARREFEA
of the Company IRTIRE (153,137) (91,781)
Net cash generated from MERBEREEHE
financing activities 614,142 1,398,530
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R&RE&ZEYW
1 n;F%5E 648,307 265,486
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HNERER
HEZEY 382,500 116,593
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEEXRSETE 3,100 421
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+ H=+—HH
RERBREEEY 1,033,907 382,500
The notes on pages 88 to 203 form part of these financial statements. E8BE203EFrHMzTFAZETKERE
H—&D °
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Notes to the financial statements
i E e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by the

Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest

in associates and a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the

financial statements is the historical cost basis.
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Cont’d)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. None of these developments have had
a material effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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Notes to the financial statements
i E e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to

the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate

share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Cont’d)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(1)).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.
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Notes to the financial statements
i E e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if
any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see notes 1(f) and (l)). Any acquisition-date excess over
cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint venture are stated at
cost less impairment losses (see note 1(1)).

CT Environmental Group Limited Annual Report 2016

1

EXERBRAE)
() BMERARSEREA)
REEERRHEERENRE

FREZ LT AGE TR
® o RIBERE  ZRENS
BRAANER » WAAEE D1
WIRE QAT THRBFEERK
BHHRNAFEBHIRERK
(MB)NHBLIELAE - &
% ZRERAEEIEHIR
BRRAFEERNBRNSE

REMAEBRZRENREREE
1B A (R M 10 & () °
W B B HA B R A B A ] 5B
2 AEBFERSGEERERD
ARKBERBRRENEER
EREEEYNGEEER
RTERR - MAEB DG HIRE
DARKEBERBRTZ I E M
2HEWEIEBERINRGEEER
Htt2mRERAER -

AEBEARENRREGED
ENRZELERRES RGN R
BERAEENIIRE QTN
REREE  HARSREER
HATEREERENERE - Bl
RET RN K E RN ER
Wﬁﬁiu\ °

EEBEMBER - HMAEERE
B N RIS EES —
BERENAHETEATE A
AREBHERZBIRE QT
MR ERELS - ALEERN KRS
FEIRAIRNE R AR -

EARRBFBEMRRRA - A
ENAREGELENRER
PN 3k ek AL U5 18\ B (R B =
1) °



Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

U]

(9)

Goodwill
Gooduwill represents the excess of

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(l)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Gross amounts due from customers for contract work

The Group recognises a financial asset arising from a service
concession arrangement when it has an unconditional
contractual right to receive cash or other financial asset
from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction
services provided. Such financial assets are measured at fair
value on initial recognition and classified as gross amounts
due from customers for contract work. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the financial assets are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by
a financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, then
each component of the consideration is accounted for
separately and is initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration.
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Notes to the financial statements
B RS R TR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(1)):

— buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating leases
(note 1(k)); and

— other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

= Buildings and other infrastructure held for own use
which are situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being 20 - 25 years after
the date of completion.

- Machinery 5-15years
- Motor vehicles 3 - 5years
- Office equipment and others 3 -10 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable (see note
1(x)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
1(l)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

1 EXEFBRE)

(h)

Y3 - MR KRt ()

M3~ BERRBITEEZT
EETRIEREH - EMERE(
SRISEE(WNE)E  UES
EMEEE AR ERE ¢

- fREESELTHEBHER
ANEFREMERR
HEIR R 2 M B FR A R A
ST EAFHITE
LEEBREERE . A
RIEHB20E25%F

—  HES 5-15 4
— 8= 3-5%F
- WAEREBER

Hib 3-10%F

BENAEAFHRANGE
B (B IR FEETRE

B EE (FERM)

M EE 2B IR ELHIE
RREMX - MEmIBREE
Blf LR L A4T - BARK
B ERERMEREE TR
BTF - AIREEE 2B
TR - BNz B
MBRA BEESETUREE
e Bz B R AR E & KA
(B A ) (RE1KX) - BA
L 2B RATIERANMERR
st R MR ERE R (R M
AE1() 58k - HABA S TY
RELHEEREMS -

PERREERRAT FEHE 2016

95



96

Notes to the financial statements
i E e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Cont’d)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(l)).

The Group recognises an intangible asset arising from a
service concession arrangement when it has a right to
charge for use of the concession infrastructure. An intangible
asset received as consideration for providing construction
or upgrade services in a service concession arrangement is
measured at fair value on initial recognition with reference
to the fair value of the services provided. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the intangible asset is measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (see note 1(1)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life of an
intangible asset in a service concession arrangement is the
period from when the Group is able to charge the end user
for the use of the infrastructure to the end of the concession
period. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for use and
their estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Supply of industrial water operation right

- HETERKEERE

= Wastewater treatment plants operation rights
—  EKEERELERE

- Sludge and solid waste treatment operation rights

- SRREREVEEEERE

= Hazardous waste treatment operation rights

- REVERELRE

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

)]

(k)

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of land use rights paid
to the PRC’s government authorities. Land use rights are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (note 1(l). Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the respective period of the
rights which are 35 years to 50 years.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
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Notes to the financial statements
B RS R TR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

U

Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of investment in associates, joint ventures,
trade and other receivables and gross amounts due
from customers for contract work.

Investment in associates, joint ventures, other current
and non-current receivables and gross amounts due
from customers for contract work that are stated at
cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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Notes to the financial statements

PR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

() Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

()

Impairment of investment in associates, joint ventures,
trade and other receivables and gross amounts due
from customers for contract work. (Cont’d)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in associates and joint ventures
accounted for under the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements (see note 1(g)),
the impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 1(I)(ii).
The impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance
with note 1(1)(ii).

1 EXEFBRE)

) EERE#HE

()

RBEZLAREELF
HRE  BEZRAME
UHEUREREF &
A T 72 % 5 48 6 6 12
(4&)

M EM LR
AlgEERBERRES
BT :

- WEARRERER
EHBHRERARN
REE QAT REE
TENREERER
F1e)ms  FE
BEEBIREME
1)L LB E MW
A Y [B] 2 R EE H AR
EEMmETE - iR
& M &A1) E E
AT Uiz [5] 24 28 B AT A
W ET IR A R 2
B - Al EREE
Eo

PERREERRAT FEHE 2016

99



100

Notes to the financial statements

PR AR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

() Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

() Impairment of investment in associates, joint ventures,
trade and other receivables and gross amounts due
from customers for contract work. (Cont’d)

For trade and other current receivables, gross
amounts due from customers for contract work
and other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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Notes to the financial statements
B R SRR &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 1 EREBR(E)
() Impairment of assets (Cont’d) () EBEEREGE)
() Impairment of investment in associates, joint ventures, () REEZNFGREELFE

trade and other receivables and gross amounts due
from customers for contract work. (Cont’d)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors
included within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the financial statements
i E e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognized no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- intangible assets;
- lease prepayments;
- goodwill;

- interests in associates and joint ventures; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

() Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Cont’d)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the financial statements

g B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

() Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Cont’d)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit
(or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 1

U

(m)

Notes to the financial statements
B R SRR &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

EXERBRAE)

Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
notes 1(I)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment loss recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill carried at cost is not reversed in
a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
writedown of inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs.
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Notes to the financial statements
i E e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically negotiated
with a customer for the construction of an asset or a group
of assets under a service concession arrangement. The
accounting policy for contract revenue is set out in note
1(v)(i). When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as
an expense by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract at the end of the reporting period. When it is
probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately. When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(l), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(q)

r)

(s)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(u)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

()  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.
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Notes to the financial statements
B RS R TR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(s)

(®)

Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of shares granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date by reference to the market
price of the Company’s shares.

(i)~ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(t)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the financial statements
i E e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(t)

Income tax (Cont’d)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(t)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the financial statements
i E e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(0

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. The fair value
of financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance
is determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is
made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information
can be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Cont’d)

(0

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (Cont’d)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 1(u)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (i)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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Notes to the financial statements
i E e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(v)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Service concession arrangement

Revenue relating to construction services under a
service concession arrangement is recognised based
on the stage of completion of the work performed.
When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract revenue and expenses are
recognised in profit or loss in proportion to the stage
of completion of the contract. The stage of completion
is assessed by reference to the percentage of contract
costs incurred to date to estimated total contract costs
for the contract. When the outcome of a construction
contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue
is recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that are likely to be recoverable. An expected
loss on a contract is recognised immediately in profit
or loss. Operation or service turnover is recognised in
the period in which services are provided by the Group.
When the Group provides more than one service in a
service concession arrangement, the consideration
received is allocated by reference to the relative fair
values of the services delivered when the amounts are
separately identifiable.
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(v) Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Revenue from supply of industrial water

Revenue from supply of industrial water is recognised
when industrial water is supplied to customers.

Revenue from provision of other services

Revenue from provision of other services is recognised
when the service is rendered.

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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Notes to the financial statements
i E e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and

losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction

dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Renminbi
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into Renminbi at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in

equity in the exchange reserve.

(x) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its

intended use are interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(y) Related parties

(@

®)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

()  bhas control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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Notes to the financial statements

PR AR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(y) Related parties (Cont’d)

(b) (Contd)

v)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(2)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, the
key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i)

Service concession arrangements

The Group entered into BOT arrangements in wastewater
treatment. The Group concluded that the BOT arrangements
are service concession arrangements under HK (IFRIC) 12,
because the local government controls and regulates the
services that the Group must provide with the infrastructure
at a pre-determined service charge. In addition, upon expiry
of concession right agreement, the infrastructure has to be
transferred to the local government at nil consideration.
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Notes to the financial statements
i E e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The Group reviews
periodically the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any. The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous estimation.

Impairment

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
certain property, plant and equipment, lease prepayments,
recoverable amount of these assets needs to be determined.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling
price and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate
selling price because quoted market prices for these assets
may not be readily available. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires significant judgment
relating to items such as level of turnover and amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items such as
turnover and operating costs.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are assessed
and provided based on the management’s regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability.
A considerable level of judgment is exercised by the
management when assessing the credit worthiness and past
collection history of each individual customer. An increase
or decrease in the above impairment losses would affect the
profit or loss in future periods.
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions, which are
organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following seven reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

Supply of industrial water: this segment supplies industrial
water.

Provision of wastewater treatment plants operation services:
this segment operates wastewater treatment plants under
BOO arrangement.

BOT project construction and operation services: this
segment constructs and operates wastewater and solid
waste treatment plants under BOT arrangement to generate
turnover from construction, operation services and finance
income.

Provision of heating services: this segment provides heating
services.

Provision of sludge and solid waste treatment services:
this segment provides sludge and solid waste treatment
services.

Provision of entrusted operation services: this segment
operates and maintains industrial water supply, wastewater
treatment, sludge and solid waste treatment and hazardous
waste treatment facilities in return for service fees.

Provision of hazardous waste treatment services: this
segment provides hazardous waste treatment services.
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Notes to the financial statements
B RS R TR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

3

(a)

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont’d) 3 WANRSTEZHR(E)
Segment reporting (@) ZHE2H
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as BE-Z—XR"ERZZ—HF
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management +TZA=t+t—HLEFEXREE
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of SREEERERIBE DS
segment performance for the year ended 31 December 2016 FETE T REZ 28RS H
and 2015 is set out below. BREZEREHIIMT :
Provision of BOT
wastewater project Provision of Provision of
treatment  construction sludgeand  Provisionof hazardous
Supply of plants and  Provisionof  solid waste entrusted waste
industrial operation operation heating treatment operation treatment
water services services services services services services Total
REEK REGR fRf
R ERER REREY RiET fEREY
HEIZRK SERE  REERE  RUAEH RERH 2ERE RERH o
For the year ended HECE-"E RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
31 December 2016 TZRZ+-ALER ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AREFn  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETR
Revenue from RENPEFHNE
external customers 57,666 470,425 333,563 120,752 439,790 8,589 435,155 1,865,940
Inter-segment revenue 2 HEYRE = 74,608 = = 89,200 = 10,438 174,255
Reportable DEED R
segment revenue 57,666 545,033 333,563 120,752 528,999 8,589 445,593 2,040,195
Reportable segment  WEHAEHEF)
profit (adjusted (FBE%EBITDA)
EBITDA) 46,639 321,172 86,730 8,252 246,791 8,589 307,848 1,032,021
Share of profits of AMEBERT/-F
associates/ BELENER
ajoint venture - 533 - - - - 1,527 2,060
Depreciation and ERTEREH
amortisation for the year (13,340) (77,145) (508) (1,220) (58,249) - (76,012) (226,474)
Impairment of WTEIBHE :
- intangible assets -ByEE - - - = = = (12911) (12911)
- goodwil -8 - = = = = = (2,0%) (2,026)
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Notes to the financial statements
B R SRR &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont’d) 3 WARTHERE)
Segment reporting (Cont’d) (@) AWBE2IF|(E)
Provision of
wastewater ~ BOT project Provision of Provision of
treatment  construction sludgeand  Provision of hazardous
Supply of plants and  Provisionof  solid waste entrusted waste
industrial operation operation heating treatment operation treatment
water services services services services services services Total
RUK Rt it
fitfe R BARH REEEYN REE R
IEAk SERE REERE  RUARE RRR EERH RERH &%
For the year ended HE-Z-1fE RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
31 December 2015 TZR=+-BLEE  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Revenue from REMPEF NG
external customers 40,204 353,077 318,869 65,518 361,332 131,356 164,603 1,434,959
Inter-segment revenue 2 HELE = 36,212 = = 21,970 = 8,383 66,565
Reportable DEED R
segment revenue 40,204 389,289 318,869 65,518 383,302 131,356 172,986 1,501,524
Reportable segment ~ WEHAEEF)
profit (adjusted (FBE%EBITDA)
EBITDA) 29411 262,472 79,389 4,325 210,963 130,945 106,791 824,356
Share of profits of HMBERT/-F
associates/ SEbEMNER
ajoint venture — 361 — — - — 1,115 1,476
Depreciation and ERTEREH
amortisation for the year (2,678) (52,365) (555) (1,220) (54,534) = (33,224) (144,576)
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Notes to the financial statements
B RS R TR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont’d)

(a) Segment reporting (Cont’d)

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “adjusted
EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation”. To arrive at adjusted
EBITDA the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items
not specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ remuneration, finance costs and other head office

or corporate administration costs.

The Group has transactions with the PRC local
government authorities (under common control from
the PRC government) which in aggregate exceeded
10% of the Group’s turnover. Turnover from provision
of wastewater treatment plants operation services, BOT
project construction and operation services and provision
of sludge and solid waste treatment services derived from
local government authorities in the PRC for the year ended
31 December 2016 amounted to RMB484,296,000 (2015:
RMB226,437,000). Details of concentrations of credit risk

arising from customers are set out in note 27(a).
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

3 WARSHEIFHAE)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues and (b) T2 ITBUA RIEF KL R
profits
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-0F
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
FiEE ARBT T ARET T
Reportable segment profit B eyl 1,032,021 824,356
Elimination of inter-segment profits 7] 2 ¥} 7 55 & K% £5 (4,954) (3,070)
Reportable segment profit derived R B A& @ /% F 1Y
from Group’s external customers A 22 2h=A 1,027,067 821,286
Share of profits of associates/ PEBE QT —R
a joint venture BEDENERN 2,060 1,476
Finance costs BE AN 5(a) (88,159) (70,157)
Interest income AEUA 4(a) 4,727 483
Depreciation and amortisation mERE#E 5(c) (226,474) (144,576)
Impairment losses on FRBEENRERE
non-current assets (14,937) —
Gain on bargain acquisition REWRE-—RWEAR
of a subsidiary pdl & 4(b) = 138,461
Net foreign exchange loss HNE B 1R RE 4(b) (55,517) (43,254)
Unallocated head office ROTMARR AT
and corporate expenses (31,839) (83,144)
Consolidated profit before taxation #r& BREATEF] 616,928 670,575
Geographic information (c) HEER

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and assets by geographical
market has not been presented as substantially all of the
Group’s revenue and assets are generated and located in

the PRC.
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Notes to the financial statements
B RS R TR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET (LOSS)/INCOME 4 HiplEkHEMF(EE) WS
(a) Other revenue (a) Httwz=

2016 2015

—-xE —F-E1F

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBTT ARET T

Government grants BUS#EED 8,506 11,423

— Unconditional subsidies* — SRR AL 8,129 11,313

- Conditional subsidies (note 25) — B EL (FEE 25) 377 110

Value-added tax refund** ERIRR 124,428 55,652

Interest income FEWA 4,727 483

Others Hith 28,363 1,143

166,024 68,701

* Government grants represent various forms of incentives 2 BF B gt H HEE IS FAAE
and subsidies granted to the Group by the local government TRAFAzEELER -
authorities in the PRC.

* The Group was entitled to value-added tax refund of o5 BE-_ZE—XE+=-A=+—8H
RMB124,428,000 (2015: RMB55,652,000) during the year IHFEE XREFBEEFAEFER
ended 31 December 2016 in relation to the provisions of RERERNTK - TR EREREE
wastewater, sludge and solid waste treatment services of YR IE AR A E I E R R A R
the Group in the PRC. There were no unfulfilled conditions 124,428,000 L(ZFE—HF : A
and other contingencies attached to the receipts of such tax R %% 55,652,000 7T ) » & 5 d
refund. W B 5% 25 3R B4 TR TR 2 AR 4 AR AR 1

REMHAEIER -
(b) Other net (loss)/income (b) HAE(EHE) WE
2016 2015
—B-xE CB-EF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®FT ARETT

Gain on bargain acquisition of a subsidiary  EEUEE — BB L 7

Al E — 138,461
Net foreign exchange loss [E i E5 18R 5 (55,517) (43,254)
Others Hith (3,533) (895)
(59,050) 94,312
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a)

(b)

Bt B i 7

BREBADRFLMBRGEA) THE
hi=

Finance costs (@) WERAK
2016 2015
—B—xE —Z-HE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EF T AR¥TT
Interest on bank loans RITERNE 93,989 75,838
Less: interest expenses capitalised into B ERME AR
properties under development* HF SR (5,830) (5,681)
Total finance costs BE R A48 58 88,159 70,157

*

- 5.61% per annum (2015: 6.23%).

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at rates of 4.16%

BERAERFFNEII6%E

561%& K {L(Z & — f F:

6.23%) °
Staff costs (b) BEIRA
2016 2015
ZE—RE —E-HF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT AR®T T
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHMER 147,093 93,369
Contributions to defined contribution AEMFGRIRFT BRI
retirement plan 8,492 5,380
Equity-settled share-based payment LR EENRG
expenses (note 23) B (Fff=£23) 3,413 —
158,998 98,749

The employees of the companies in the PRC participate in
a defined contribution retirement scheme operated by the
local government authorities whereby the Group is required
to contribute to the scheme at rate of 13% to 20% of the
eligible employees’ basic salary (2015: 13% to 15%). The
local government authorities are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

RHEBERARNEESERL S
BT HEEE R EHRFREK
BRI E > AXEEAREER
EEEXRFLSH13%E20%
BEEEEER(ZZE -5
F I 13% E15%) » A B
HEBERTRRESNEI
BIREME -
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Notes to the financial statements
i E e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Cont’d) 5 M ARF ()
(b) Staff costs (Cont’d) (b) EIRAK(E)
Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) are BEREME AT ERHIR
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund EREHMELAEE ((RES])
Schemes Ordinance. The Group and its employees in Hong EHMER - AEEREFERE
Kong make monthly mandatory contributions to the MPF Ef ARAttE A BT AR
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined BITARAENEEHEBERAN
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. 5% [ & & 5t B1F L i@ 5
The contributions from employees and employers are MR - EEREEHREZR
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HKD30,000 MBS mE M HARNE A E
(2015: HKD30,000). WA £ PBR A 30,0008 (=
Z—HF : 30,000/87T) °
B BTSN REE IR
The Group has no other material obligations for payments of T EERKEHMBRARER
retirement and other post-retirement benefits of employees FIAREEMEBERET -
other than the contributions described above.
(c) Otheritems (c) HfthiEH
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-0F
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
g AR¥T T ARET T
Cost of construction service R IRIE AN 239,622 216,329
Cost of inventories* FERA 18 111,603 78,214
Depreciation and amortisation TEREHE 10,11,12 226,474 144,576
Impairment losses 5FJZ1EJ§?T§
— Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMERRIE 19(b) 29,835 —
— Intangible assets —,ﬁé\ﬂ/ﬁig 12 12,911 —
— Goodwill -8 13 2,026 —
Operating lease charges ReEHEMY 8,399 7,087
Research and HERFEX
development expenses 13,408 2,013
Auditors’ remuneration BRI & 4,180 5,096
* Cost of inventories represented raw materials consumed S FERAIEHETIZRKR

during the supply of industrial water, provision of wastewater

RACSKEER L ERY

treatment plants operation services, provision of sludge and AR RS R N E RS R R
solid waste treatment services and provision of hazardous IR RIEHGHREZEYE
waste treatment services. BRI TR M R AR} o
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 6

PROFIT OR LOSS

(a)

(b)

Notes to the financial statements
B R SRR &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

FEHEAERNAREH

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) #HFEBFZRANFIERS :
represents:
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-HF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARKT T ARBT T
Current tax - PRC income tax BIEAFLIE — PRI TSR
Provision for the year FERE 119,732 62,410
Under — provision in respect of prior years ~ BEFERETE 342 115
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal ERMERNEERER
of temporary differences (17,606) 6,798
Income tax expenses Efr 15 %t B 32 102,468 69,323
Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting (b) REAHRETEMNFEREX
profit at applicable tax rates: HEHEREIER
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE-hF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Profit before taxation BRI AR 616,928 670,575
Notional tax on profit before taxation, RREAEBREEREA
calculated at the rates applicable PR RIRY B Z R BRE AT
to profits in the jurisdictions concerned (i)  SERAFTERZZHBIE () 170,161 175,123
Effect of non-deductible expenses AR R E 8,848 5,244
Effect of non-taxable income FEFHRIMANEE (515) (34,985)
Effect of preferential tax treatments (ji) BEHIEFBNEE (i) (79,099) (86,127)
Effect of tax losses not recognised (iii) R MR TE 5 18 Y 222 (iii) 14,760 10,093
Effect of reversal of previous accrued B e FREFT TR
with-holding tax expense (note 24(d)) B X S22 (FIEE 24(d)) (11,494) —
Use of previously unrecognised tax losses £/ LAl R R IBEE B (193) (25)
Income tax expenses Frsfi X 102,468 69,323
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Notes to the financial statements
B RS R TR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS (Cont’d)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates: (Cont’d)

Note:

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the Biritish Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made as the
Group did not earn income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the years ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

The statutory income tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries is
25%.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are entitled to the following
PRC preferential tax treatments:

Guangzhou Xintao Wastewater Treatment Company Limited
(“Guangzhou Xintao”) was approved as a High and New
Technology Enterprise in September 2015, which entitled it to
the preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2015 to 2017.

Guangzhou Lvyou was approved as a High and New
Technology Enterprise in September 2015, which entitled it to
the preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2015 to 2017.

CT Environmental Group Limited Annual Report 2016

6 HSRERIRAMEAEHRE)

(b)

BERB R ENRERAX
HEETHRFHR : (F)

¥ &E -

(i)

REMSHERABE L
E(RBELZHS ) HEE
BRARER  AEERFES
HEREBEZHSBAR
MRS -

HREBZE-ZT—RF+=8
=+ —HIEFEREE L E
BREVEM AR E BFIEH
WA - BB EBRE
BEHBEBE(CER-—RF:

)

o BB B X B YA E AT S Bt
R525% °

REENETHBARER
AT REIE SR RS ¢

EMNFEAEFECLERAT
TEMNFEDR=—Z—8F
hWBEREASHEM L
¥ RZE-—HEEF_ZFT
—tEZH15% B EFT
BE=E-.

EMNERR=-ZE—HFhA
WREASHEMEE B
—E-HEE-Z—tFH
MEE15%NEEFRESHR



Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS (Cont’d)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates: (Cont’d)

Note: (Cont’d)

(i

(Cont’d)

Guangzhou Haitao Environmental Protection Technology
Company Limited (“Guangzhou Haitao”), being an entity
engaged in wastewater treatment and sludge treatment, is
entitled to a tax holiday of 3-year exemption and 3-year 50%
reduction on income derived from its principal activities (the
“3+3 tax holiday”) starting from the year in which the project
starts to generate operating revenue. There are three phases
of waste treatment facilities under Guangzhou Haitao. Phase
| and Phase Il facilities are subject to income tax at 0% from
2010 to 2012, 12.5% from 2013 to 2015, and 25% from 2016
onwards; while Phase Il facilities are subject to income tax at
0% from 2013 to 2015, 12.5% from 2016 to 2018, and 25%
from 2019 onwards.

Huaihua Tianyuan Wastewater Treatment Company Limited
(“Huaihua Tianyuan”) and Guangzhou Yinglong Wastewater
Treatment Company Limited (“Guangzhou Yinglong”), being
entities engaged in wastewater treatment, are each entitled
to the 3+3 tax holiday starting from the year in which the
project first generates operating revenue. Huaihua Tianyuan is
subject to income tax at 0% from 2011 to 2013, 12.5% from
2014 to 2016, and 25% from 2017 onwards; and Guangzhou
Yinglong is subject to income tax at 0% from 2012 to 2014,
12.5% from 2015 to 2017, and 25% from 2018 onwards.

6 &RE

(b)

HERNBIASHR(E)

BERB R ENRERAX
HEERFNER  (F)

MicE : (&)
iy (#&)

EMNEERARZERAT
(TEMEE ] BRrEBEKE
BRSERENSE 51
EFRELLBERZFER
EH=FEERYHRRFEESR
UR=ZFE8ETEITHN
AZFBBHERE 2ER
(M3+3FEERE]) - EME
ﬂmlﬁfﬁ L = (B
B} o FE—HIR S HARRIE R
—E— ii —E——F .
—E-=HEF-E-RFR
B-ZZ—-ANERD AR
E0% - 12.5% K% 25% &
TS %_%&mv_
E-=FEZ-_F-HF- =
E-REEZZE-N\ERKH
—E-NERD BRI E
0% ~ 12.5% & 25% 4 Fir
BH -

FALRIRKEFEBR D H
(MEfERR REMNZEES
KEBERABTEMNER
BB )IEREEKER  £8
REBEXELEREFER
ZE+3FIBEEE - 12t
ABER=ZBE——FZ_-F
—ZF - —F-NFE-F
—~"ERBZZE—tHF#E
DARBIE0Y  12.5% K
5% WM IER  BMNE
BR-Z——FZ_F—@
F .ZEBE-RAFE-ZT—+
ERBE=ZZE—NFEELDH
BHE0%  12.5% & 25%
BARFTBRL -
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Notes to the financial statements
B RS R TR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS (Cont’d)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates: (Cont’d)

Note: (Cont’d)

(i

(il

(Cont’d)

Heyuan Solid Waste Centralized Treatment Centre Company
Limited (“Heyuan Solid”), being an entity engaged in solid
waste treatment, is entitled to the 3+3 tax holiday starting
from the year in which the project starts to generate operating
revenue. Heyuan Solid is subject to income tax at 0% from
2010 to 2012, 12.5% from 2013 to 2015, and 25% from 2016
onwards. In December 2016, Heyuan Solid was approved as
a High and New Technology Enterprise, which then entitled it
to the preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2017 to 2019.

Qingyuan Lvyou Environmental Protection Technology
Company Limited (“Qingyuan Lvyou”), being an entity
engaged in solid waste treatment, is entitled to the 3+3 tax
holiday starting from the year in which the project starts to
generate operating revenue. Qingyuan Lvyou is subject to
income tax at 0% from 2014 to 2016, 12.5% from 2017 to
2019, and 25% from 2020 onwards.

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(t), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of
RMB11,595,000 (2015: RMB9,344,000) and RMB3,165,000
(2015: RMB749,000), in respect of cumulative tax losses of
certain subsidiaries located in Hong Kong and subsidiaries in
the PRC, respectively.
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ABREEEEVEENE
i2 HEAMRELEZEER
AWFEREEZZ 3+3%
WEE - AR EEE m:g—
SEFEZEE-—"F.C
—= ﬁ:ﬂ:— = — fﬁi& 5
—ANFREDBIZEBE
o% + 12.5% K 25% 4 Fir

BB R=F—AFE+=
A - STREEER AN
BiRHE  R=F— LTS

—E-NAFZF15%HE
EERE -

BREHRANEERAT
(r,atii'-EEJ) REEBEREY
BE ®EEBRBKREENK
ﬁir‘ i;ﬁmsﬁlﬁ{%@
BERSAN-ZE—NEF
E—g—/\$ - ‘t
FE-Z-hERKAEZ=
—EFED EU?kﬁtO%
12.5% K 25% B FrSH: -

RIEMEE 1) e 2 25T
xR AEBEL A2 BT
REBRHEZE THEB
AEZENBEBEAR
11,595,000t (=2 —F
F: AR #9,344,0007T )
% A K #3,165,000 t(=
E—F%F: AR#749,000
TU)MERIELERIBEE ©



DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation are as follows:

EEME

RA5E 8 D BRAGI 3 383(1) IR K& A
A(MBEESFEER)BRHIE 230
KENESHMEMOT :

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—7E+-RA=t+—-HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme payments
fees in kind bonuses contributions  Sub-Total (note 23) Total
NRBA
R ERIA
ESHE  REVER  BRETL BRGEER et (WE2) @t
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ABETR ARMTR
Executive directors HES
Mr. Tsui Cham To HEELE = 7,700 15 31 7,746 218 7,964
Mr. Lu il ECu%E — 4813 — 3 4,844 218 5,062
Mr. Xu Shubiao BEELE - 156 3 19 198 173 3N
Mr. Gu Yaokun (note (i) DA (R () = 559 = 4 563 = 563
Mr. Xu Juwen HEXEE — 325 20 9 354 86 440
Sub-total Nt — 13,553 58 % 13,705 695 14,400
Independent non-executive BiIknnES
directors
Mr. Liu Yung Chau BRREE = 114 = = 114 - 114
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent BRERE - 343 - - 343 - 343
Mr. Du Hequn HBELE = 257 = = 257 = 257
Sub-total et - 4 - - 4 = 14
Total &z - 14,267 58 % 14,419 695 15,114
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i E e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont’d) 7 EEMe#E)

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE-Z-RE+-A=t-HLEE

Salaries, Retirement
Directors’ allowances and  Discretionary scheme
fees benefits in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2HR
i BNEA BiEa  REGHEHES At

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRBTR  ARRTR ARERTR ARETR  ARETR

Executive directors nrEs

Mr. Tsui Cham To HEELE — 4,105 8 14 4127
Mr. Lu Yili EBV%E — 2,022 — 15 2,037
Mr. Xu Shubiao )oY - 17 13 15 145
Mr. Xu Juwen BIEEE — — — — —
Mr. Xu Zitao (note (i) HFBAE (FEE () = 63 = 7 70
Mr. Gu Yaokun (note (i) RS (MR i) = 688 = 17 705
Sub-total Nt — 6,995 21 68 7,084

Independent non-executive directors ~ BILIEHTEE

Mr. Liu Yung Chau BRRHLE — 81 - — 81
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent EREE - 243 - - 243
Mr. Du Hequn REHLE = 162 = = 162
Sub-total Nt — 486 — - 4_ 8_6_ )
Total @t — 7,481 21 68 7,570
Notes: FfsE

()  Mr. Xu Zitao was resigned on 23 November 2015. () ®BIFEEER=-Z—-HF+—AH

—+=HBHE-
(i)  Mr. Gu Yaokun was appointed as executive director on 23 iy HRHMEER-Z—FHF+—A
November 2015. ZH=BERZERFTES -

There were no amounts paid during the year ended 31 December RBE-_ZE—R"E+=-A=+—H
2016 (2015: Nil) to the directors as inducement to join or upon LEFE $ERESMMEARE
joining the Company or the Group or as compensation for loss EAWRSI E M AR MAZ DT HAR
of office. No Directors waived or agreed to waive any emolument SERZRBSEAHBBME(Z
during the year. Z-—HF %) FRABBESHE

HEBREEMHN -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8 = A T
Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, three (2015: AEBSHFMATHHNEF=R(Z=
Three) are the directors whose emolument are disclosed in note 7. Z—HF  ZB)FRERQAES
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2015: HEigERME7 - Rt & (=
Two) individuals are as follows: T—HF WA ATHBEEZEN
T
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-0F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARBTT
Salaries and other benefits FERHMER 1,917 1,071
Share-based payments R4S 86 —
Retirement scheme contributions ERETEIHER 35 15
Total #Et 2,038 1,086
The emoluments of these remaining individuals with the highest BTEESHFMA TSI LT
emoluments are within the following bands: HEMX :
2016 2015
—E-RE —Z-0F
Number of Number of
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) #Erx(#Exl) individuals individuals
A& AE
Nil - 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 1 2
1,500,000 - 2,000,000 1,500,000 £ 2,000,000 1 —
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE 9

(@) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of RMB519,137,000 (2015: RMB598,916,000) and the
weighted average of 6,304,775,000 ordinary shares (2015:
6,100,875,000 shares) in issue during the year, calculated as

BREF

(a) EBREFRF

BREABRNAERETIR
BEARDFARREMSEER
A R #519,137,000 (= &
—hF : AR% 598,916,000
T UAREBITEBR 2 NE

follows: F 13 #6,304,775,000 B (=
Z—H%F :6,100,875,000 %)
STEMBNT
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-1F
’000 000
T T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—HEBTEBER 6,316,792 5,768,328
Effect of issuance of shares (note 26(a)(ii)) P EX TRV &
(B 26(2)(i)) = 109,535
Effect of the share subdivision (note26(a)(ii)) AR IF AR5/ &
(F=E 26(a)(ii)) — 223,399
Effect of purchase of shares under the RERMDRBTEEE
Share Award Scheme (note 23) R E
(FfzE 23) (12,737) (387)
Effect of grant of shares under the Share RERMEBERT
Award Scheme (note 23) %10 0 522 (it = 23) 720 —
Weighted average number of ordinary shares A+ =B =+—B#H
at 31 December HERINEFIIH 6,304,775 6,100,875

(b) Diluted earnings per share

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there
were no dilutive potential ordinary shares issued.
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Notes to the financial statements

PR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

10 % - BB RHR

Buildings Office
and other equipment  Construction
infrastructure Machinery ~ Motor vehicles and others in progress Total
BEREM Bt
Bl E - Rty FEIR a3t
RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETT AEETT ARBTT ARBFT ARBTT ARETT
Cost: BA:
At 1 January 2015 RZE-2E-F-H 633,905 426,755 9,616 2849 288,208 1,387,000
Additions through acquisition of subsidiaries FRNENEATETRE 229338 164,680 819 13,200 240,344 648,381
Additions - 14410 9,356 1,263 4,607 332,683 362,319
Transfer from construction in progress HEEIREY 346,908 196,074 = = (542,977) =
Disposals RE = = = (346) = (346)
At 31 December 2015 R=B-2E+ZR=1-H 1,024,556 796,865 11,698 45,957 318218 2,397,354
At 1 January 2016 RZE-7~¥-5-A 1,224,556 796,865 11,698 45957 318218 2,397,354
Additions hE 924 18,671 1,185 3,778 406,984 431,542
Transfer from construction in progress BhEIREY 1625516 143,846 = — (296,362) —
Disposals RE (305) (8,285) - @] - (8,59)
At 31 December 2016 R=B-~ETZR=1-H 1,377,691 951,007 12,883 49731 428,900 2,820,302
Accumulated depreciation: ZAHE:
At 1 January 2015 WZE-1%-5-A (56,828) (73,993) (4,078) (3,293) - (138,192)
Charge for the year ERi% (40,209) (58,882) (2,173 (7,560) = (108,844)
Written back on disposals RERHH - = = 383 = 333
At 31 December 2015 RZE-E%F+ZB=1-A (97,057) (132,875) (6,251) (10,520 = (246,709)
At 1 January 2016 RZE-7~¥-5-A (97,057) (182,875) (6,251) (10,520) - (246,703)
Charge for the year Rk (53,350) (102,316) (4,544) (4,314) = (164,524)
Written back on disposals RERHE 7 3,13 = 4 — 3212
At 31 December 2016 R=B-~ETZR=1-H (150,335) (232,055 (10,795) (14,830) = (408,015)
Carrying amount: REfE:
At 31 December 2016 R=E-AEtZR=1-A 1,227,356 719,042 2,088 34901 428,900 2,412,287
At 31 December 2015 REB-AETZA=1-8 1,127,499 663,990 5447 35,437 318,218 2,150,651

Certain property, plant and equipment with carrying value of
RMB157,182,000 were pledged to secure the Group’s bank loans
as at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB69,991,000)(note 22).

R-ZEBE—XRE+=ZA=+—H' K@
EH AR%157,182,000 T I & T 4
¥ BMERRECHEBEELAER 2
RITERMNER(CE—EF ARE
69,991,000 7o) (KfizE22) -
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PR AR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

11 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 11 HEAFHERE
Land use rights
T i fE A
RMB’ 000
ARBTT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2015 R-E—HF—HF—H 116,109
Additions through acquisition of subsidiaries EBWHENEARETRIE 186,338
At 31 December 2015 R-E—HFE+-A=+—H 302,447
At 1 January 2016 R-B—X"F—A—H 302,447
Additions e —
At 31 December 2016 REZE-RE+ZA=1+—H 302,447
Accumulated amortisation: Hetigsy ¢
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—HF—HF—H (3,492)
Charge for the year FRHR (4,827)
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RF&+=A=+—H (8,319)
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—XE—H—H (8,319)
Charge for the year FRNER (7,151)
At 31 December 2016 R-E—RE+=A=+—H (15,470)
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31 December 2016 R=ZB—XRFE+=HA=+—H 286,977
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—HF+=ZA=+—H 294,128
Lease prepayments represent the Group’s land use rights on BN EEFREERERERBNVRNT
leasehold land located in the PRC. At 31 December 2016, the BMESE L L mERE - BR=
remaining period of the land use rights ranges from 16 to 48 years E—RE+ZA=+—H LihfE
(2015: 17 to 49 years). AENRSGIRNF16 E48F (=
Z—RF A7TFE49F) -
As at 31 December 2016, lease prepayments with net book R—BE-—XRNE+=-HA=+—H"
value of RMB101,862,000 were pledged for bank loans (2015: BRMEFEA A K %101,862,000
RMB63,753,000)(note 22). THFEMAEERES T LLE

BRITER(=T—HEF: ARY
63,753,000 7t ) (fisE22) °

The amortisation charge of lease prepayments for the year is FARAFENEERENEEERTTA
included in “cost of sales” and “administrative expenses” in the GEBERNMEERAN IR 1T
consolidated statement of profit or loss. e
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B R SRR &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 EREE
Supply of Wastewater Sludge and Hazardous
industrial treatment solid waste waste
water plants treatment treatment
operation right  operation rights  operation rights operation rights Total
eI FRRER SRREREYN fEIREY
BkiEgE BEE REGKODEE RESZE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'’000 RMB'000
N e ARETT ARETR ARETT ARET T
Cost: Bk
At1 January 2015 R-E-1%-5-A - 117,623 124,946 - 242,569
Additions through acquisition of FRWBETAE
- Shunde Hanyang Industrial -BLTBEEREAE IR
Water Supply Company Limited ERAF(#HKE))
(*Hanyang Shuiwu’) 40,000 — — — 40,000
- Guangzhou Liangang Vessel -BNmEANRER
Wastewater Treatment Company ERAF(EMER))
Limited (“Guangzhou Liangang”) — - - 57,000 57,000
- Foshan Shunde Ganghui Wastewater -BUTEEEEERRTK
Treatment Company Limited RRERA
(‘Ganghui Huanbo') (HEER) — 16,000 - - 16,000
- Zhongshan Hailan Water Resources -RLTEEkERRE
Development Company Limited BRAR(hILEE])
(Zhongshan Hallan”) = 10,000 = = 10,000
- Guangzhou Kangxiang Metal -ENERNELBER
Reclamation Company Limited ERAR(ENER)
(“Guangzhou Kangxiang”) — — 17,000 — 17,000
- Guangzhou Lvyou -E&m = = = 696,000 696,000
- Guangdong Longtao Circular -ERERERGELR
Economy Development Company ERAR(ERER))
Limited (*Guangdong Longtao”) - — 33,613 — 33613
- Foshan Haoying Solid Waste -BUmERERENEE
Centralized Treatment Centre POERAR
Company Limited (*Haoying Solid”) (ERER) - = 7,000 = 7,000
- Foshan Sanshui Zhaofeng Energy ~fhlm=kEEER
Company Limited ERAR(=kEE))
(“Sanshui Zhaofeng’) — — — 14,000 14,000
- Xinfeng Lvzhi Industrial Waste -HERREIXBNEL
Reclamation Treatment Co., Limited REERAA(HERE ]
(*Xinfeng Lzhi") - — 23,900 — 23,900
40,000 26,000 81,513 767,000 914,513
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PR AR EE

12

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d) 12 EEEEE)
Supply of Wastewater Sludge and Hazardous
industrial treatment solid waste waste
water plants treatment treatment
operation right  operation rights  operation rights operation rights Total
HEIX SRKREE SRREREY fEREN
ipSUiy Geg REGROLE RESSE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ABMTR  ARMTR  ABMTR  ARMTR
Additions HE — 121,384 81,284 — 202,668
Derecognition upon acquisition RUGERB A RBR LB
of subsidiaries - (171,898) — — (171,898)
At 31 December 2015 R=Z-RFTZB=1-H 40,000 93,109 287,743 767,000 1,187,852
At 1 January 2016 WZE-RE-F-H 40,000 93,109 287,743 767,000 1,187,852
Additions (note 12(a)) E (i 12() — — 235,489 — 235,489
At 31 December 2016 RZB-7"E+ZA=1-A 40,000 93,109 523,232 767,000 1,423,341
Accumulative amortisation Zrrgs
At 1 January 2015 WZE-RE-f-A - (3,587) (5,122) — (8,709)
Amortisation 6 (222) (5,750) (7,744) (17,189) (30,905)
Derecognition upon acquisition REERBLRER LB
of subsidiaries — 2,378 — — 2,373
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RETZR=1-H (222) (6,964) (12,866) (17,189) (37,241)
At 1 January 2016 WZE-RE-f-H (222) (6,964) (12,866) (17,189) (37,241)
Amortisation B (2,667) (5,006) (7,599) (39,533) (54,799)
Impairment Loss HERSE = = = (12,911) (12.911)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AETZR=1-H (2,889) (11,970) (20459) (69,633) (104,951)
Carrying amount; LR
At 31 December 2016 R=B-R"ETZA=T-A 37,111 81,139 502,773 697,367 1,318,390
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-BFtZR=1-H 39,778 86,145 214,817 749,811 1,150,611
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)
Notes:

(@ In June 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity interests in
Guangdong Longtao, whose principle activities are provision of
sludge and solid waste treatment services in the PRC under BOT
arrangement with a grantor. Under the above BOT arrangement,
Guangdong Longtao will operate the facilities for a period of 30
years. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has
recognised revenue of RMB285,015,000 (2015: RMB94,452,000)
and profit of RMB47,502,000 (2015: RMB15,742,000) on
construction of the sludge and solid waste treatment facilities
of Guangdong Longtao. The revenue recognised in relation to
construction represents the fair value of the construction services
provided in constructing the wastewater treatment and sludge and
solid waste treatment facilities.

The Group has the right to charge the grantor a fee for using the
facilities. At the end of the concession period, the facilities will
become the property of the grantor and the Group will have no
further involvement in its operation or maintenance requirements.

(b) The income approach was used for measuring the fair value of
the intangible assets acquired. The recoverable amounts of these
intangible assets were estimated based on its cash flow forecast
and using after-tax discount rates ranging from 14% to 16%.

Amortisation of intangible assets is included in cost of sales in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss.

Impairment loss

During the year ended 31 December 2016, operation right of
hazardous waste treatment services of Sanshui Zhaofeng was
fully impaired. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
operation of Sanshui Zhaofeng was temporarily suspended. The
Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating
unit of Sanshui Zhaofeng and as a result the carrying amounts of
the intangible asset and goodwill (note 13) were fully written down
based on the valuation by the independent valuer. Impairment
losses of RMB12,911,000 and RMB2,026,000 of corresponding
intangible asset and goodwill (note 13) were recognised in
“Administrative expenses”.

12

BREEE)
Bf&E

(@ MRZZE—RERA KEBWE
EREN2100% BRAERS B
RESNFEXBEEREERT
AT M HIBOT % 8k 7£ & B 12 i
FREEREYEERRLE - R
fttmﬁﬁﬁ & R 58 8 7%

BEREAHIFE - BE-ZF
A$+_H_+ HIEFE
AEECHREREEERSTRER
EREEYEERERIARE
285,015,000 (= & — & F:
ANR#94,452,0007T ) Bk 3% &
A R #47,502,000 (=8 —H
£ AR %15,742,000 7T ) #Y5%
Fle MIBBIAZEBERZEE
RIS K R IR R b N 05 e K [ A BE
VBB REMEHERR®E 22

FE -

rEBERMRERBRREER
FAREER - RISETREMK
BRRESEBRTANIE
MAKEETBE-—SSRHEE

B AEE -

(b) WEEDAREFRKBERE
EZAVE - ZEEBREE2T
EWEBEDRELRESRETER
I 1 A 14% E16% = Br %1 1% Bh
REEITET -

B EEBHET AGEERRNE

ERAN o

HEEE

BE-_Z—X~"E+-“HA=+—HL

FE - ZKEENRHRERYEE
REELEERE2HREE - BE=-F
—A"F+ZA=t+-HLFE =
KELHEEERDIE - REEFF
= KELREELEMHNTRD
B BREEEREE(
13 MREECERN B HER
MEEZBME - HERETLEER
BAEMEIBNREBEARY
12,911,000 T & A K # 2,026,000
TUR TR 7 11T »
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Notes to the financial statements
i E e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

13 GOODWILL 13 H&E
RMB’ 000
ARBT T
Cost A
At 1 January 2015 R-ZZE-HE—H—H 76,566
Additions through acquisition of subsidiaries BRWEKRBARRE 67,765
At 31 December 2015, 1 January 2016 and R-E—HFE+=-A=+—H "
31 December 2016 —2-R"E-A—-BK
—E-RE+=ZA=t+—H 144,331
Accumulated impairment losses Zetipl{EEE
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 R=Z-HF—A—HK
—E-FHF+=A=+—H —
Impairment loss BEEE (2,026)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—XRFE+=H E+—|_E| _________________________ (_2,_02_6?
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2016 R-E—R"E+=ZHA=+—H 142,305
At 31 December 2015 R-ZF—HF+=-A=+—H 144,331
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BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

13 GOODWILL (Cont’d)

Goodwill acquired through acquisition of subsidiaries is allocated
to the Group’s cash-generating unit (‘CGU”) identified as follows:

e (E)

BRWBEHELRESZHERA
SEZERBRREELBENV(RE
EEEM DETIENT :

2016 2015
—g-x§ —T-IF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EFT ARBT T
Water supply services T MK
- Hanyang Shuiwu —BBIFKK 23,141 23,141
Wastewater treatment services 57K R 3R AR 75
— Guangzhou Yinglong -BEMNEE 17,034 17,034
— Ganghui Huanbao —BERR 4,879 4,879
— Zhongshan Hailan — e 6,422 6,422
Sludge and solid waste treatment services 75 % [ B8 B ) B2 T2 AR 7%
- Qingyuan Lvyou — AN 49,945 49,945
— Heyuan Solid — DR E EE 9,587 9,587
- Guangzhou Kangxiang — BEMEA 5,172 5172
- Haoying Solid —ER[ERE 1,877 1,877
Hazardous waste treatment services fe bR Y R 3R AR A
- Guangzhou Liangang —EMEE 24,248 24,248
- Sanshui Zhaofeng —=KEEE = 2,026
142,305 144,331

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a period from 15 to 20 years. Cash flows beyond the
period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average
growth rate of 3% which is consistent with the forecasts included
in industry reports. The growth rates used do not exceed the
long-term average growth rates for the business in which the CGU
operates. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate
of 14% to 16%. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

The impairment loss recognised during the year solely relates to
Sanshui Zhaofeng (note 12).

BEeELBEU 2T RESEIRE
EREEMETE  ZFATEREE
BEEMECMBRREERARERA
B BT EE-+F - BHES
HYIR &M E T fE A (4 5 A P 1548
RE3%HEE  HETEREFH
TR -3 FTABRRWEEBR
TELBENEENEXBNREY
HIRRER - BERBURRE14%
E16% B3 - BRI EAHAT - I
SEBEDMER S ERR

FAEINREESEEHE = KEE
BE(MFE12) -
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PR AR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(@) List of subsidiaries

14 RHBARBIKRE

The following list contains only the particulars of major
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or

(a) MEBLAREE

TREBRIEZELEEE
B EEREBENTENBR

liabilities of the Group. AFtE -
Proportion of
ownership interest
BHE L)
Place of Particulars of ~ Group’s
incorporation and issued and paid  effective Heldbya Principal
Name of company business up capital interest subsidiary activities
ERITREH A£EM Hi
NE &R AEMAS R B R i BAFE HREZ LFARF ITEXH
Guangzhou Kaizhou Water Guangzhou, the PRC HKD?20,000,000 100% 100% Supply of
Supply Company Limited (i)(i) industrial water
BN B ARARERAE (i) e - B 20,000,000 7 100% 100% RUTEAK
Guangzhou Xintao (i)(ii) Guangzhou, the PRC HKD730,000,000 100% 100% Provision of
wastewater
processing and
heating service
MRS (i) e B 730,000,000 87 100% 100% RAEDSKRERMEHRE
Guangzhou Haitao (i) Guangzhou, the PRC RMB80,000,000 100% 100% Design,
construction,
operation and
maintenance of
wastewater
treatment plant
NS () e B AE# 80,000,000 100% 100% Rit - HEEER
ERTKEER
Guangzhou Yinglong (i) Guangzhou, the PRC RMB80,000,000 100% 100% Provision of
wastewater
treatment plants
operation services
BMEE () e - B AR¥80,000,0007 100% 100% RASKEEREERS
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BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

14 REBARKRE (&)

List of subsidiaries (Cont’d) (a) KMIBATIRE(E)
Proportion of
ownership interest
B
Place of Particulars of ~ Group’s
incorporation and issued and paid  effective Held by a Principal
Name of company business up capital interest subsidiary activities
BREGREH AEEH H
PNEER AEMA RS X B BARE  EREZ  NARF IEEH
Qingyuan Lvyou (i) Qingyuan, the PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Provision of sludge

and solid waste

treatment services
BEREH () HE - FE AE#10,000,000 T 100% 100% RETERER
BYEERSE
Guangzhou Lvyou (i)ii) Guangzhou, the PRC RMB81,870,000 100% 100% Provision of sludge
and solid waste
and hazardous waste
treatment services
FE 45 (i) i) e B AEK# 81,870,000 ¢ 100% 100%  REHSRREEED
RiEREMER RS

Note: P EE -

0} These are private limited liability companies in the PRC. The
official names of these entities are in Chinese. The English
translation of the names is for reference only.

(i)  These are wholly foreign owned enterprises in the PRC. The
official names of these entities are in Chinese. The English
translation of the names is for reference only.

The following table lists out the information relating to (b)
Sanshui Zhaofeng, the only subsidiary of the Group which

has a material non-controlling interest (NCI) as at 31

December 2016. The summarised financial information

presented below represents the amounts before any inter-

company elimination.

() ZEQXARNUNTENER
BEAEAT - ZEQANERS
BEBPX  EXEBEHR
Wl e

(i) ZLRATENIIEEELR
¥ ZELQRZERERS
PN ERE  RGERERS
£

TREFR=-Z—RE+=H
=t—HEBE=KEE(—F
BEEAFERERCAER
W—HMEBAR)NTHEER -
TXE2IzHEERMEST
AN EIKER 258 -
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B RS R TR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

14

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 14 KRB ARBIKRE (&)
From the
date of
acquisition to
31 December
2016 2015
g =R
—E—RE
—F-7x"F t=ZA=1+-—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
NCI percentage FERERFIEEDL 30% 30%
Current assets RBEE 12,297 16,356
Non-current assets FEREEE 26,177 42,949
Current liabilities REaE (15,596) (16,895)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE = (3,461)
Net assets BEEE 22,878 38,949
Carrying amount of NCI R ERREE 6,863 11,685
Revenue PN 1,404 1,789
Loss for the year FREE (16,069) (1,015)
Total comprehensive income 2 HEUKR LR (16,069) (1,015)
Loss allocated to NCI R ERDEEER (4,821) (305)
Net cash generated from operating activities KESEEEE 2B S FEE 517 58
Net cash generated from investing activities RETBEE RS FE — —
Net cash used in financing activities RETBAMAZREFEE (688) —
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Notes to the financial statements

BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 15 REEQFRER
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-1F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Share of net assets PMEEEFE
- Guangzhou Huayue Environmental Protection — &M ZE#ER (R 5 4l
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Huayue”)  AFR2A F ([ EMEEH ) 2,754 1,840
— Guangzhou Suigin Dangerous Waste —-EMNESRREER
Transportation Co., Ltd. (‘Guangzhou Suiqin”) BFE2A 3 ([EMEEZ 1) 3,307 2,694
Carrying amount in the consolidated FEMBRKREREE
financial statements 6,061 4,534

The following list contains the particulars of the associates, both TRI|IMB AT Z2F1E > mMEHEASIE
of which are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market FH AR ERBEYERE :

price is not available:

Proportion of
ownership interest
BAEEESLD
Place of Particulars of Group’s
Form of business incorporation issued and paid effective Held by a Principal
Name structure and operation up capital interest  subsidiary activity
BRTREM AEEN  HMELAR
RELRER 3151 AMRLRE RS B EBER 2] TERH
Guangzhou Huayue (i Limited liability company ~ Guangzhou, the PRC RMB3,000,000 41% 41% Provision of
environmental
protection
consulting service
B () ERERLA R ARE3,0000007 1% 0% REBREARE
Guangzhou Suigin (i Limited liability company ~ Guangzhou, the PRC RMB5,000,000 41% 41% Transportation of
hazardous wastes
BNER() ERELLT hE - B AR5,000,0007 1% H% BERENHH
Note: MIEE

(i) Guangzhou Huayue and Guangzhou Suiqin are private limited
liability companies in the PRC. The official names of the entities are
in Chinese. The English translation of the names is for reference
only.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

() BEMNEBEMEMNEHRTESDS
BABREMERR - ZEBER
BRB/PX - HGERERSE -

LA E N R RN GRS B
MR A EAR ©
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B RS R TR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

16 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 16 MN—REECEZER

2016 2015

ZE—REF —E-hHEF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR#ET T ARET T

Share of net assets MEEEFE 2,439 1,906
Carrying amount in the consolidated FEUBRKRREE

financial statements 2,856 2,323

Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which is it aE N T WRERNEE IR ELL
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated RESEARR BT :
financial statements, are as follows:

Proportion of
ownership interest
BAEEESILD
Place of Particulars of Group’s
Form of business incorporation issued and effective Heldbya Principal
Name structure and operation paid up capital interest  subsidiary activity
BRORESG  AEEY  AWELF
RELRER EBERER MBI RS HE 5% ERER L) IERH
Guangzhou Haigin Tiancheng Limited liability company ~ Guangzhou, the PRG RMB3,000,000 50% 50% Pollutants
Technical Testing Services Co.,Ltd. measurement
(*Haigin Tiancheng”)
BNERARITRARRERAT ERERLR hEl - B ARH3,0000007C 50% 50% SRINE
(DA
Note: FfsE
This is a private limited liability company in the PRC. The official name NN DEEIAGBREELT -
of the entity is in Chinese. The English translation of the name is for BEEHSEBAEBY  BYELZEMS
reference only. o
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PR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

17 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS FOR
CONTRACT WORK

17 BURERSHATIENEER

2016 2015
—$-x% —T-IF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARBT T
Gross amounts due from customers for EBREFEHNTIRER
contract work THAAZE
— Non-current — JEBNHA 259,206 231,302
— Current — BNHE 38,454 33,971
297,660 265,273

Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to the service
concession arrangements, the Group has to design, construct and
operate wastewater and solid waste treatment plants in the PRC,
with operation periods varying from 20 years to 30 years. The
Group has the obligations to maintain the wastewater and solid
waste treatment plants in good condition. The grantors guarantee
that the Group will receive minimum annual payments for certain
service concession arrangements. Upon expiry of the concession
periods, the wastewater and solid waste treatment plants and the
related facilities will be transferred to the grantors.

AEENETHBLRACSER T AR
MBI EZHE - RERBBFAER
B AEEANPER B8 K%
FKREREYEERE  KEHMNF
20E30F - REBEBEBHERITKRE
EEVEERBERRFMRE RTFA
REAEBEEHRE TIRBESFTFEZ IR
NREFEEM REFEHERRE -
75K % B B8 BE W) BR TR R % B A RR B S
ETETA
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B RS R TR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

17

GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS FOR
CONTRACT WORK (Cont’d)

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. The standard rights of the grantors to terminate the
agreements include failure of the Group to construct or operate
the wastewater and solid waste treatment plants and in the event
of a material breach of the terms of the agreements. The standard
rights of the Group to terminate the agreements include failure of
the grantors to make payment under the agreements and in the
event of a material breach of the terms of the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing the wastewater and solid waste treatment plants is
recognized as “Gross amounts due from customers for contract
work” and intangible assets in the financial statements according
to accounting policies as set out in note 1(g) and note 1(i).

“Gross amounts due from customers for contract work” represent
revenue from construction under BOT arrangements and bear
interest at rates ranging from 5.94%-6.80% per annum for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: 5.94%-6.80%). The
amounts for BOT arrangements are not yet due for payment and
will be settled by revenue to be generated during the operating
periods of the BOT arrangements.

CT Environmental Group Limited Annual Report 2016

17 BURERSHNIRENREEE)

R ELZ R AIEDR - RTFAWLT
EREENK EHBENBRERE - A%
EARERERNLE T KREEEYEE
B UARBRIFREERER - A& H
ATEREEFNZL L HRENEREE
BFARERBZHESARIE - AR
BIFHEERNER -

RIEMEE 1(0) R MFRE1() B 5T UK
R #2575 7k K [E] B8 R 4 m 3 AR e T R A4t
BRERBASNEBREETBHRERSD
BRABEREFENIERBLEIR
BIVEE -

BE-Z—R"E+=-A=+—HLHF
B [EREFANIRIIEHALE 15K
EBOTLZHEBETERBEHNWE » iR
FERER594% E6.80%(ZF—FH F:
5.94% % 6.80% )3t B - BOT ZHE I FE
BARBEAR  WHERBOT ZHLEH
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BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

INVENTORIES 18 H#E
2016 2015
—EF—RE —Z2-58F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ART T ARET T
Raw materials GUYES 14,624 18,081
Work in progress T8 3,470 1,239
Finished goods SR M 2,494 7,282
Low value consumables KEBERER 3,130 3,312
Total HEt 23,718 29,914

Inventories mainly comprise materials consumed during the
sludge and solid waste treatment and the hazardous waste

treatment process.

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:

FETTAERNSERERENRRER
BRI TR AT AL AT -

BREEIWFTABRZFESREDN
o

2016 2015

—E—R"E —E-hF

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARKT T ARET T

Carrying amount of inventories consumed SEETFEREE 111,324 77,367
Write down of inventories FERE 279 847
Total et 111,603 78,214
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B RS R TR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 B 5 RHEMEWNRIE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Current B A
Trade debtors BEZEKA 584,685 411,363
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (note 19(b)) R REREE (FIEE 19(b)) (29,835) —
554,850 411,363
Advances to third parties and BYE=ZFNERR
interest receivables (i) JE W R 2. (i) 118,359 —
Prepayment of acquisition deposits (i) W BB 1% £ TR FR (ii) 25,000 —
Other prepayments and other receivables HuFa Sk Eit
FEWRIR 166,462 155,348
Amounts due from related parties (note 29(d)())  FEUREIEE 5 718
(Bt EE29(a)(i)) 137,020 227,629
1,001,691 794,340
Non-current JERNHA
Prepayments for purchase of lease prepayments BEHEFENFKR
and equipment RAERNRIER 205,977 105,192
Prepayments of acquisition deposits (ji) FEAS YR BB FRIE (ii) 30,000 88,124
Other prepayments and other receivables HFENS R H A
PR FRIE 95,635 84,288
331,612 277,604
Total et 1,333,303 1,071,944
All of the prepayments and other receivables (including amounts BTN FE R H YR (B
due from related parties), apart from those classified as non- FEUS BB ) TEHAAS I — F Al EI=R
current portion, are expected to be recovered or recognised as BRAEBEX  ETEEIEAER
expense within one year. HNED -
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BA RS ER R &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(i)

As at 31 December 2016, short-term advances of
RMB114,201,000 were paid by the Group to certain third-
party individuals. Annualised interest rates of these advances
were fixed and ranged from 9% to 10%. As at 31 December
2016, interest receivables of RMB4,158,000 were recognised
by the Group. Up to 31 March 2017, except for interest
receivable of RMB1,500,000, advances to third parties and
interest receivables had been fully refunded to the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, prepayment
of RMB25,000,000 and RMB30,000,000 were paid as
acquisition deposits for the Group’s acquisition intention
on two companies, whose principle activities include
provision of sludge, solid waste and hazardous waste
treatment services. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
decided to carry out acquisition of only one of these two
companies. Hence, the prepayment of acquisition deposit
of RMB25,000,000 for the target company that the Group
finally decided not to acquire was classified as current
receivables which would be refunded to the Group.

As at 31 December 2015, the prepayment of RMB88,124,000
were paid as acquisition deposits for 3 target companies
which are principally engaged in hazardous waste treatment
services and recycling businesses. During the year ended
31 December 2016, the Group decided to terminate the
acquisition process and RMB88,214,000 was fully refunded to
the Group.

19 EH5REMBYRIEE)

(i)

R-B—RE+ZRA=+—
H A"EKERBILE=FH
ATTRNEHBRRARE
114,201,000 7T ° ZZE B
REFEBEE  NFHR9%
Z10% - RZE—RE+Z
B=1+—8 ZTEEBEIAR
%5 4,158,000 7T HY FE UK I . ©
BEE-ZE—t+tHE=A=+-—
B ' B AR% 1,500,000t F&E
WFRES  REECEZEER
EE=FEARERFER -

BE—B—XRFt+=-A=1+—
BEEE AEBXTAR
#25,000,000T & A B #
30,000,000 7t K9 78 1 7k 8 1
AXEEEERERRAT
(EEBEKBERHESE B
BEEKEREYEERE)
BB - R=Z2—RE+=
B=+—HB ' AEEREE
WHRZMEX DA RNEF—
RAT - Al ZEBEKE
BEEARBENUEBRARKE
25,000,000 JT (7N & @ & KR
EIRETHE)EREAS
B B F A 5 B /9 7 B R UK
I °

R-E—FEFE+=-A=+—
B AEBXHF AR
88,124,000 LT RIEES
WE=xBEAT(EEXER
ERMEYEERS RO
BINKWBER BE=Z—X
F+A=1+—HILEFE &K
EBERTER I NIBREFIEE
BURE A R%5 88,214,000 7T °
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade debtors, based on the invoice date and net of

19 B RHMEWKIEE)
(a) PFRERDAT

BEREHKR - EZRURR
BB E A RAEHBRR IR A

A E yaN N
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: HYRRER D ATAI T

2016 2015
ZE—AREF —E—HF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#ET T AR¥T T
Within 1 month —EBAR 189,774 201,508
1 to 3 months —Z={EA 156,037 111,216
Over 3 months but within 1 year ZHR=ERE—ER 209,039 98,639
554,850 411,363

Trade debtors are usually due within 30 days from the date
of billing. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 27(a).

Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors directly
(see note 1(I)(i).
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Notes to the financial statements
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Impairment of trade debtors (Cont’d)

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components,
is as follows:

(b)

19 EH5REMBYRIEE)

B 5 RWRORRE(E)

FARKEBEB(REEH
RARSERID)IWT

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-hF

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR¥T T ARBT T

At 1 January K—A—H — —
Impairment loss recognised ERRREEE 29,835 —
At 31 December B+=-—A=+—H 29,835 —

At 31 December 2016, trade debtors of RMB81,602,000
(2015: Nil) were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers that
were in financial difficulties and management assessed
that only a portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful
debts of RMB29,835,000 (2015: Nil) were recognised.

Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

(c)

RZE—REFE+ZA=+—
H ESEREBERARE
81,602,000 T(=Z— A F :
Z)ERREERE o 185
B Y & UK R 18 BE B A B 7 R
HNEFEHE SEEME
& U E 85 FE U FRIE »
It BRARRBEREARE
29,835,000 (= Z—HF :
£)o

RRME R E 5 B AR R

I (BRI SRR ERERNE
5 RWRIARE DATANT ¢

2016 2015

—ZE—RE —E-hF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®T T ARBT T

Neither past due nor impaired BE AR BRI RO B 185,754 201,508
Less than 3 months past due BH=EB LA 144,287 111,216
Over 3 months but within 1 year past due BHZR=ERE—FRN 173,042 98,639
503,083 411,363
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired (Cont’d)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of local government authorities and industrial
entities in the PRC that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
the past due balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered

fully recoverable.

19 EH5REMBYRIEE)

(c)

RBEH E 5 B AR ()

3 #3802 75 AR B FE WK TR
EZ HINREIERCHRNES
B -

BB i ARORE A FE GRR TR
HZEANAEEERFRZA
SEE P EE TR R T
ERAE ENBELER A
MEEERLEEANE A
BOWRAATZBNE - B
EBRABERZZ BRI
RBERE -

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 RERBREEEY
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BEERBLEEYEE:
2016 2015
ZE—RE —E-5F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBET T AR¥T T
Cash on hand FEES 2,829 4,356
Cash at bank RITBEE 1,031,078 378,144
1,033,907 382,500

At 31 December 2016, cash and cash equivalents
placed with banks in the mainland China amounted to
RMB993,684,000 (2015: RMB287,812,000). Remittance of
funds out of mainland China is subject to the relevant rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by

the PRC government.
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

20 RERR&EEWHE)

(b) BRBIADEFIERKLZBMER

generated from operations: SHEER
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-0F
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
g AR®TT ARET T
Profit before taxation B Bt B A 616,928 670,575
Adjustments for: RABUTEIR :
Depreciation E 10 164,524 108,844
Amortisation of A E IR
lease prepayments 11 7,151 4,827
Amortisation of intangible assets & & E#H 12 54,799 30,905
Impairment loss of B EEREER
intangible assets 12 12,911 —
Impairment of goodwill HERE 13 2,026 —
Finance costs BLE A 5(a) 88,159 70,157
Foreign exchange loss SMNERSIR 35,347 11,710
Interest income FI 2N 4(a) (4,727) (483)
Share of profits of associates b B N R RO F (1,527) (1,115)
Share of profit of a joint venture ~ S{E—RAE L%
BYia (533) (361)
Net loss on disposal of property, BEE¥% - KER
plant and equipment REERZE 247 62
Write down of inventories FEEE 18 279 847
Impairment of trade receivables 8 5 EW R IERE 19(b) 29,835 =
Gain on bargain acquisition HEWNEME AR
of subsidiary bl & 4(b) = (138,461)
Equity settled share A A BB 0 2 4+
based payments 23 3,413 —
Changes in working capital: EEEAES:
Decrease in inventories FERY 5,917 3,891
Increase in trade and B 5 R HEmEWRIE
other receivables 1 0 (29,433) (59,049)
Increase in gross amount due BREREHIE
from customers for RIEAERIE N
contract work (32,387) (58,702)
(Decrease)/increase in IRIEWNCRLD), /1 hn
deferred income (277) 545
Decrease in trade and B 5 R HEtES
other payables RIER D (147,776) (89,551)
Cash generated from operations ~ &E&E£IEFAERE 804,876 559,641
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21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 B RHEMEMKE
2016 2015
—E-RE —_E—-4F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARBT T
Trade payables B S EAFIE 96,347 81,384
Other payables and accruals Hitt gk ETEH 386,815 235,449
Amounts due to related parties (note 29(d)(ii)) FE{S BB B 5 =R IE
(B & 29(al) i) 2,904 4,718
486,066 321,551
All of the trade payables, other payables, accruals and amounts FFEEZENTE  HMENR
due to related parties are expected to be settled within one year 8 EErE AR ENEEE A FIETE
or are repayable on demand. R —FANEERIREREE -
The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 30 days to HEBELENEEEHNFI0RZE
90 days. 90 HF% -
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade HEREHKR » B ENTIEIRE
payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows: ZHHNERBR T -
2016 2015
—E-RE —F-1F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TRT ARBT T
Within 1 month —@BAR 47,305 37,920
1 to 3 months —Z={@A 30,730 24,434
Over 3 months but within 1 year ZR=EAE—FR 11,779 11,236
Over 1 year —FLE 6,533 7,794
96,347 81,384
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22 BANK LOANS

At 31 December 2016, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

22

RITERK

R=FB-—R"E+=-A=+—-H &
EEBERITERAMT :

2016 2015

“E-RE “F-AF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBT

Within 1 year or on demand —FARAFIRER 1,047,659 642,276

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMER 714,496 417,137

After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFR 892,141 751,848

After 5 years HFE#% 182,917 198,305

Sub-total INEE 1,789,554 1,367,290

Total et 2,837,213 2,009,566
Notes it

(i) Bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2016 were floating-
rate loans which carried interest rates ranged from 1.18% to 7.00%
(2015: 1.79% to 7.38%).

(i) At 31 December 2016, the bank loans were secured as follows:

iy MHR=T—R"E+=-BA=+—A81"
AEEZRTERAZEER
2 N F118% E7.00%(= &
—FHF 1 1.79% £ 7.38%) ZF=E
e .

iy R=-ZFB—R"FE+=-A=+—8-
RITEFREFEROT

2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-RE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR#F T ARET T

Secured BRI 2,584,074 1,935,209
Unsecured KA 253,139 74,357
2,837,213 2,009,566

PERREERRAT FEHE 2016



160

Notes to the financial statements
i E e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

22 BANK LOANS (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(i)

(il

(iv)

At 31 December 2016, the bank loans were secured as follows:
(Cont’d)

Secured bank loans as at 31 December 2016 were secured by
certain of the Group’s charge rights of water supply, wastewater
processing, waste processing and electricity supply, property, plant
and equipment (note 10), lease prepayments (note 11), the equity
interests of Qingyuan Lvyou, Guangzhou Yinglong and Guangzhou
Liangang and a minority shareholder’s property (2015: secured by
certain of the Group’s charge rights of water supply and wastewater
processing, property, plant and equipment (note 10), lease
prepayments (note 11), the equity interests of Qingyuan Lvyou,
Guangzhou Yinglong and Guangzhou Liangang and a minority
shareholder’s property).

Bank loans amounted to RMB147,629,000 as at 31 December 2016
were guaranteed by former shareholder of Guangzhou Yinglong
(2015: RMB169,236,000 were guaranteed by former shareholders
of Guangzhou Yinglong and Heyuan Solid).

Bank loans amounted to RMB2,830,213,000 as at 31 December
2016 (2015: RMB1,967,098,000) are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the Group’s balance sheet ratios,
as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. Pursuant to the terms of the bank loan agreements,
certain subsidiaries are not allowed to distribute profit and/or to
obtain other external financing prior to the lender’s approval and/
or to exceed/below the financial ratio. If the Group were to breach
the covenants the drawn down facilities would become payable on
demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 27(b). As at 31 December 2016, none of the
covenants of the Group had been breached (2015: Nil).

As at 31 December 2016, total balance of past due current loan
was RMB7,000,000 (2015: Nil) which was secured by a minority
shareholder’s property.
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(ii)

(il

(iv)
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HEERERE W% BERRK
(M EE10) - MERMN KM
MUK BESH BMNBER
BEMNEBHRERD BTN
EERF(CE-—RF  UAKE
BETHARSKEERERE ¥
¥ BmERREMEI  HE
FANF(HEE1) AR B ESS -
BEMNBEREMNEBRERDE
IREREVIZEAEIE ) o

RZZE—XRE+=A=+—81"
£ 8 A ARE147,629,000 7T 2
RITEFHEMNBE ZATERR
ETERCE-—REF: ARE
169,236,000 Jt F3 & N 22 & & 51
TRE RS Z ATER REITIER) ©
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

On 12 November 2015, the board of directors of the Company
approved the adoption of a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) under which shares of the Company (the
“Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected employees (the
“Selected Employees”) in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Award Scheme. The Board shall not make any further award
of Awarded Shares which will result in the aggregate nominal
value of the Shares awarded under the Scheme exceeding 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company at the time of such
Award. The maximum number of Awarded Shares which may
be awarded to a Selected Employee under the Scheme shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company at the time
of such award.

The Share Award Scheme was adopted in order to recognize
and motivate the contributions of the Selected Employees and to
provide them with the incentives or awards for their commitment
and contribution to the Group. By providing a competitive
incentive package, the Share Award Scheme also serves to retain
and attract suitable personnel for the further development of the
Group, and to align the interests of the Selected Employees with
those of the shareholders of the Company in attaining long-term
business objectives of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the
10th anniversary date of the date of adoption; and (ii) such date
of early termination as determined by the board by a resolution
of the board. Termination of the Scheme shall not affect any
subsisting rights of any Selected Employee under the Scheme.

23

PARE 45 B RY B 0 2 4+
T —

n= FF+—BA+=ZH > KD
AESECLHAERMR MR BT
B([mieEst8l]) - REERHE
B Er 8 2R - RATRMD(T2RE
BHDURFEZEES(EERE
El)  WMEEERIEBRNES
ERRBEHECSRENR M VAR
BEERBAAATRBEEHESBHITRA
210% @ RITERE — SR L RE
B - BEEESRBEFTIERNE
BRONRSHE TBEBAAT
AREFNEEITRANA% -

RV D R B8 S R A KRB
EERES CERAUMHEHREBN
EHRERMEHRYBBNERD - BE
RUBFUENBRAIR  ROKE
BE DR A E =S Sk
—SERNEIVEERAEER
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23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Details of the shares held under the Share Award Scheme are set

23

PAME 2548 ERY B0 S 1 (48)
RIBRAD RB B SR 2515

out below: T
Average No. of
purchase shares held Value of shares
price #E
THEEE B8R BHEE
HKD 000 HKD’ 000 RMB’ 000
BT TR TET AR%Tx
At 1 January 2015 R-Z2-HF¥—-A—-A — — —
Shares purchased during year 2015 R=ZE—AFEERRHD 2.67 3,827 10,205 8,411
At 31 December 2015 and R-Z-0F
1 January 2016 +ZA=t—-HK
—E-x"%¥-F—-H 3,827 10,205 8,411
Shares purchased during year 2016 RZZ—~EEEHNRH 2.01 11,700 23,494 20,001
Shares granted during year 2016 R-E-AERENBRH (1,653) (3,965) (3,270)
At 31 December 2016 R=ZZE—RX
+=ZA=+-—H 13,874 29,734 25,142

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company granted
1,653,000 shares to 72 employees of the Group. The fair value of
these Awarded Shares amounted to RMB3,413,000.

The estimated fair value of the Awarded Shares on the grant date
is determined by reference to the market price of the Company’s

shares.

The Group recognised share award expenses of RMB3,413,000
during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil) with a
corresponding decrease in reserve within equity.
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 24 Z&8#HBRAENREH
FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (@) #HREBBRRTRP BT E
financial position represents: A
RMB’ 000
AR¥TT
At 1 January 2015 R-ZZE-HE—H—H 19,537
Provision for PRC income tax R EIFTS R 62,525
PRC income tax paid AR A S 2 A (59,420)
At 31 December 2015 R=-Z-—AF+=RB=+—H 22,642
At 1 January 2016 R=B—RE—HBF—H 22,642
Provision for PRC income tax (note 6(a)) Bl A5 55 13845 (Ff=E 6(a)) 120,074
PRC income tax paid HElFTS M T (70,899)
At 31 December 2016 R=Z2—ARF+=B=+—H 71,817

hHRREEFRAT FEHE 2016
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24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Cont’d)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

()  Movement of each component of deferred tax assets
and liabilities

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

24 FEMBRARAEH(F)

(b)

ERREEHREERESE
() EEHELEERBEL
Cilogzibaped ]

RERS BN R A
RHEEBH(EE)

position and the movements during the year are as EEEARTIRERE
follows: BT :
PRC
dividend
Deferred tax arising withholding Revenue Intangible Government
from: tax recognition assets grant  Provisions Total
HERE
FELMETHRIE : BB WERR  EREE BARD i @t
RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARBTRT AR%TR ARETR ARETR
At1January2015 R-ZE-EF-F-H 11,494 9,112 42274 (2,958) — 59,922
Charged/(credited) ~ RABHAME/(FtA)
to profit or loss — 6,850 (52) — — 6,798
Additions through ~ EBKEMBARZAE
acquisition of
subsidiaries = 1,665 168,017 = = 169,682
At 31 December 2015 R=F—HF
+ZB=+-H 11,494 17,627 210,239 (2,958) — 236,402
At1January2016  R=F-x"E-F-H 11,494 17,627 210,239 (2,958) — 236,402
(Credited)/charged ~ FBEA(GTA) /M
to profit or loss (11,494) 12,267 (12,950) — (5,429) (17,606)
At 31 December 2016 R=F—~F
+ZB=+-H — 29,894 197,289 (2,958) (5,429) 218,796
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24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 24 Z&8WMBRAENREHEZ)
FINANCIAL POSITION (Cont’d)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (Cont’d) (b) ERRFBELEHEEERES
(&)

() Movement of each component of deferred tax assets () EBEHEEEREEF
and liabilities (Cont’d) 7 2 2 E) (4
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of ERAR S B AR R R T BR
financial position
The deferred taxation is recognised on the consolidated REZEEMBMRRKER
statement of financial position as follows: HIEERIRANT :

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-AE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®TT AR®ETT

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised ~ R4&R& BIISARR RIERH

on the consolidated statement of EERIEEEFEE

financial position 227,183 239,360
Net deferred tax assets recognised on R4RE BISARL REFZH

the consolidated statement of EERIEEEFE

financial position (8,387) (2,958)

218,796 236,402
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24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Cont’d)

(c)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

Cumulative tax losses

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(t),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of certain subsidiaries located in
Hong Kong and subsidiaries in the PRC of RMB128,383,000
and RMB22,337,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: loss
of RMB58,108,000 and RMB10,400,000), respectively, as
it is not probable that future taxable income against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. As at 31 December 2016, tax losses
for these PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB1,391,000,
RMB2,891,000, RMB2,780,000, RMB2,616,000 and
RMB12,659,000 will expire, if unused, by the end of 2017,
2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021 respectively. The tax losses
of subsidiaries located in Hong Kong do not expire under
current tax legislation.
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24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Cont’d)

(d)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Dividend withholding tax

According to the CIT Law and its implementation rules,
dividends receivable by non-PRC corporate residents from
PRC enterprises are subject to withholding income tax
at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or arrangements,
for profits earned since 1 January 2008. Pursuant to the
Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangement and the related
regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident will be
liable for a reduced withholding tax rate of 5% on dividends
from a PRC enterprise if the Hong Kong tax resident is the
“beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of the equity
interest of the PRC enterprise. As all of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries are directly or indirectly owned by a Hong Kong
incorporated subsidiary which is the qualified Hong Kong tax
resident, a rate of 5% is applicable to the calculation of the
PRC dividend withholding tax.

At 31 December 2016, deferred tax liabilities in respect of the
dividend withholding tax relating to the undistributed profits
of the Company’s subsidiaries were not recognised as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries.
Based on the assessment made by management as at the
end of each reporting period, it was determined that certain
of the undistributed profits of the Company’s subsidiaries
would not be distributed in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax liabilities with carrying value of RMB11,494,000 was
thus reversed for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The amounts of undistributed profit of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out below:

24 FEMBRARAEH(F)

(d)

RERELERARE

IR BRI

RIBCERBBERHERIK
Bl EFETEERBFRELD
¥ERWHNREEMBE=ZZEN
F— A — BEREAER S
10% M TEHIFR 551 BRIEE
BB ERZHRR - RIEBER
WEER GBI LAKEEBHR L
BEYRAEREER  M—BEE
KEABKERAB BERES
A B H 25% =5 LA _E KRR
> AZEABKEREAMAE
REFDEEENREZREERR
E5% BMFENHB - HRAARE
B EHEMNB LS —BR
EBTMAOKE L E(H
AEEREABAREEBR)EE
HEEHEE > BETERBRE
FEINHEEANRES5% -

RZEBE—REF+=ZA=+—
B - WARBERERDTHBL
AARDIREREREN AR ST
BHELERHIEEE  JTHRA
ARIEFZEHRBATNRE
BUR - REBEEEERSRE
REEBFEE - AR GMBA
AETARDERANCHESS
R RARTETDIR - Bk
BRMEE A A K% 11,494,000
THELZERIEBEEBREBEE-F
—RNE+=ZA=+—HLEE
WHEE - XD BB ARIRD
TORFSREERFIIT

2016 2015
—2-xE ZT-If
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBT T
Distributable profits earned by PRC Y E NGRS
subsidiaries on or after 1 January 2008 —EENF-A—H®
2 B BRELZ ] 20 F 1,745,539 1,160,023
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25 DEFERRED INCOME 25 13PN

2016 2015
—g-xE —B-EfF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ART T ARET T
At 1 January W—B—H 15,119 11,832

Additions through acquisition of a subsidiary BRWE—ENEAR
ZIRE — 2,742
Other additions HitRE 100 655
Credited to profit or loss (note 4(a)) st Bz (MiEE 4()) (377) (110)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 14,842 15,119

Deferred income consists of deferred government grants. The
grants from local government was conditional and the conditions
would be fulfilled upon the completion of construction of certain
fixed assets of Guangyuan Xizhou Environmental Enterprises
Company Limited (“Guangyuan Xizhou”) and Guangzhou Lvyou.
The grant will be recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the fixed assets. The
deferred income was not yet amortised as at 31 December 2016.
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

()

26 EAX - RHERBRE

Share capital (@ M
Issued share capital of the Company () AREERITRAE
Number
of shares
i x =]
’000  HKD’000  RMB’000
F A& TET ARETRT
At 1 January 2015 N=-TB—HFE—HF—H 1,442,082 144,208 114,403
Shares issuance (note (i) B2 21T (B &E (i) 287,116 13,712 10,989
Share subdivision (note (iii)) A% 193 48 (B 5% (iii)) 4,587,594 — —
At 31 December 2015, R-ZT—HF
1 January 2016 and +=A=+—-8"
31 December 2016 —E-RE—-HA—H
EZE—RF
+=ZBA=+—H 6,316,792 157,920 125,392
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TEREEAERENKE
dividends as declared from time to time and are FEERPEKE  ER
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the RKABREREELEER
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard SR EKRERE - G
to the Company’s residual assets. NANFBREEMS
FEEBEREERIEH
i -
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Cont’d)

(a) Share capital (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Shares issuance

On 23 February 2015, 87,115,959 ordinary shares
were issued to GIC Special Investments Pte Ltd. at a
price of RMB5.57 (HKD7.12) per share. After deduction
of transaction costs, the issued share capital and
share premium of the Company were increased by
RMB6,886,000 and RMB478,185,000 respectively.

On 29 October 2015, 200,000,000 ordinary shares
were issued to Mr. Gu Yaokun at a price of RMB2.1
(HKD2.575) per share. After deduction of transaction
costs, the issued share capital and share premium of
the Company were increased by RMB4,103,000 and
RMB418,161,000 respectively.

Share subdivision

It represented the effects of adjustments made to the
number of shares as a result of the share subdivision.
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Cont’d)

(b)

26 EX - RERBREE)

Movements in components of equity (b) RERERTHHNEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing AEBGEERSHRDD F
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated AR FER 2 BESFVEERER
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in REEREER - AATEE
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual wmANT D FNRERZEE
components of equity between the beginning and the end of ENEFERIOT ¢
the year are set out below:
Shares held
under the
Share Share Share Award Capital  Exchange Accumulated
capital  premium Scheme reserve reserve losses Total
RERS
K@t
kx  RORE FEERG EXRE  EiRE  ZHEER mct
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB'000
ARETR AR®TR AR%Tr ARBTr ARETRT ARETR ARETR
At1January 2015 R-B—HE—F—F 114403 508,765 — 171998 (20341) (14585 780240
Loss for the year FRER — — = = = (11551)  (11,551)
Other comprehensive  Efti2 Elz
income = = = = 81,386 = 81,386
Total comprehensive £ EH 4%
income — — — — 81,386 (11,551) 69,835
Shares issuance P47 817 (B 26(a)(ii)
(note 26(a)i) 10080 896,346 — — — — 90733
Sharepurchased  RIER KB E
under Share Award ~ FrE&EIRR {7 (Fit3E 23)
Scheme (note 23) — — (8,411) — — — (8,411)
Dividends ] —  1781) — — — —  (91,781)
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Cont’d) 26 EX- - RERBRE(E)
(b) Movements in components of equity (Cont’d) (b) FRERARIBHIBE(E)

Shares held
under the

Share Share Share Award Capital ~ Exchange Accumulated

capital  premium Scheme reserve reserve losses Total

RERL
REatal

BA  BOWE FRARG WARE ExeR  ZHER &
RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’'000  RMB’000
ABETR ABRTR ABETR ARETL ARMTL ARETR ARETR

At 31 December 2015 R=F—T14
and 1 January 2016 +-F=+-AH
R=F-7E-R-H 125,392 1,333,330 (8411) 171,998 61,045 (26,136) 1,657,218

Loss for the year FREE — — — - — (42423 (42429
Other comprehensive  Eft 2Kz
income — — — - 98,079 - 98,079

Total comprehensive 2 #4 %
income — — — — 98,079 (42,423 55,656

Sharepurchased  RIER KB E

under Share Award ~ FrE& IR {7 (fifE 23)

Scheme (note 23) — — (20,001) — — — (20,001)
Equity settled share-  MEREEH

based payments Rt (Ktat 23)

(note 23) — 143 3,270 — — — 3,413
Dividends Re —  (153,137) — — ~ —  (153,137)

At 31 December 2016 R-F—A~%&
+-B=+-A 125392 1,180,336 (25142) 171,998 159,124 (68,559) 1,543,149
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Cont’d)

(b) Movements in components of equity (Cont’d)

()

(i)

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the Company’s share premium account are
distributable to the equity shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in
a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

PRC statutory reserves

According to the current PRC Company Law, the
Group’s entities in the PRC are required to transfer
10% of their profit after taxation to statutory surplus
reserve until the surplus reserve balance reaches 50%
of the registered capital. For the purpose of calculating
the transfer to reserve, the profit after taxation shall
be the amount determined based on the statutory
financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC
accounting standards. The transfer to this reserve has
to be made before distribution of dividend by these
entities.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make good
previous years’ losses, if any, and for capitalisation
issue provided that the balance after such issue is
not less than 25% of the registered capital of the
respective entities.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations with functional currencies
other than the RMB presentation currency. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 1(w).

26 EAX - RHERBREAE

(b) #EDARIDERE (A

()

(i)

(i)

R wE

REREHEQFE
i REEZRIKEREE
& ARABEHE
NREBERBBEHE
MzEH  AIAQFZ
BRDEERZESA D
KT ADFERRR ©

K E

REBITHEQTE
AEBHEZ D RER
BREIBIER 2 109 B 3
EHRTEEGBHEE EZ
BRFHELEGESIM
BARE50% © Fhat EEE
BEHFBz2EEMS
BREZREFERBIRE
FEETEARR E
EMBBRRETEE -
ZEEBEANZEEE
IR E Z AIEST ©

EEBBRFEETARTE
HBRTFEBEMER)
REXLERT HEAH
BRITRZERTEER
EHEEREMELRZ
25% -

EZ1#E

R AR REnEae
ERBARBZIER
LAON S B SRR
EMFBEMRBIES
B 2B REME
1w SN ST EERE
H e
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Cont’d)
(b) Movements in components of equity (Cont’d)

(iv) Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
difference between (a) the nominal value of share
capital of a subsidiary acquired; and (b) the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in exchange
under the reorganisation of the Group on 31 May 2011.

The capital reserve of the Company represents the
excess of the consolidated net assets represented
by the shares acquired over the nominal value of
shares issued by the Company in exchange under the
reorganisation.

(c) Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate amounts of
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company was around RMB1,258,633,000 (2015:
RMB1,470,781,000), which comprises of share premium,
shares held under Share Award Scheme, accumulated
losses and capital reserve of the Company.
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HE RO)AQXAR=
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ZEHESE -

RRABMEREEE
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EHHE D

A IR
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Cont’d) 26 HA - HEREE(E
(d) Dividends (d BE
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () FRAEMNELAEZ R
Company attributable to the year =0 3=
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-Rf
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®TT AR®ETT

Interim dividend declared and paid of EIRKRZAHERZER

HKDO0.0119 per ordinary share 0.0119 BT 2 FHIRE
(2015: HKD0.005 per ordinary share (ZZF—h&F:RfH
after share subdivision) RAEEREER
0.005%&T) 64,660 25,161
Final dividend of HKD0.0067 per RIRE R RBEOREE
ordinary share proposed after the BRE B 0.0067 BT

end of the reporting period (2015: final ZRHIIRE
dividend of HKD0.0073 per ordinary (ZZ2—hEF 8K

share and a special dividend of EiEBRR 0.007378 T
HKDO0.0101 per ordinary share) ZHRPBREREBR
@R 0.0101 BT
ZERIRE) 37,312 88,477
101,972 113,638
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) REFEHERZN L
Company attributable to the previous financial year, — B FE KL ]
approved and paid during the year EEmRRZKE -
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-Rf
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®T T AR®ETT

Final dividend in respect of the previous &R 0.007378 T
financial year of HKD0.0073 and 2t —BBEERE
a special dividend of HKD0.0101 per RERSRZER
ordinary share (2015: final dividend 0.0101 BT 24 5IRE

in respect of the previous financial —E-HF 8K
year of HKD0.03 and a special EER0.037 BT Z
dividend of HKD0.025 per F-MBEERPRE
ordinary share) REREER0.025
BT ZHERIRE) 88,477 66,620
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Cont’d)

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for the
shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-equity ratios. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is calculated as total bank loans less deposits
with a bank with original maturity date over three months
and cash and cash equivalents. The Group’s adjusted net
debt-to-equity ratio at 31 December 2016 and 2015 was as

26 EAX - RHERBREAE

(e)

EREE

FEEEREANETEERS
REAREEFHELEHRED
DEEESRRISFERMAD
] REFREERSBIUR
EEARRA -

REERAEARFEBES
EERERHEE AR - Bt
= KRRFERURRTE
FRAERBESEBYRER
REEITRIBEIM H BB =187
ZEHEESE - REZE—X

follows: FRZZ-RF+-A=1—
B REENKARFERE
b EmMT
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt EE ARMT T ARBT T
Bank loans: MITERN :
Current liabilities RBERE 22 1,047,659 642,276
Non-current liabilities kRBEE 22 1,789,554 1,367,290
Total debt HE(ETE 2,837,213 2,009,566
Less:Cash and cash equivalents & : REREBESEEY 20 (1,033,907) (382,500)
Deposits with a bank with ERRRITIRIE
original maturity date ZERREB=@A
over three months ZIFER (5,837) (5,626)
Adjusted net debt AR 1,797,469 1,621,440
Total equity R 3,234,567 2,896,555
Adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio AL TR BEHERS LR 0.56 0.56

As disclosed in note 22, no further external financing could
be obtained by certain subsidiaries prior to the lenders’

approval.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables and gross amounts due from customers for
contract work. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 days from the date of
billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 12 months
past due are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers.

27 cREAREEREMIENAT

=1

FE RBEE  FNEXREEER
DRASENEEXEBEBREPE
A o T ICERE A 5 [E AT E A9 R B
B A= 5 B 3t T 2 5 L B P B EIRL Y
SRR EEBRRIED -

(a)

FERR

rEECZEFERBREIERAE
5 R A AR R AR B R
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REFERX  WHEERRF
EmEb
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E/UEENE - WEFFEE
BHHEF LA ZER
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HNEBRRENEL - EZEW
RERBHREE A#LE30
AAEIE - HAEGSHENER
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(a)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2016, trade and other receivables and
gross amounts due from customers for contract work
of the group amounted to RMB1,630,963,000 (2015:
RMB1,337,217,000), of which RMB128,483,000 (2015:
RMB142,468,000) was due from the largest customer and
RMB350,481,000 (2015: RMB337,494,000) was due from
the five largest customers in aggregate of the Group. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Since the parties to BOT
arrangements are local government authorities in the PRC,
the Group considers the credit risk is low.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk as at 31 December
2016.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from gross amounts due from
customers for contract work and trade and other receivables
are set out in notes 17 and 19, respectively.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
Company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

27 cREAREEREMIENAT
B(%#&)

(b)

RBESERE

REEET 2B UEEERA
BTRERSEETF  B5F
BB AMRENRSHEE
ROEAFREHREFR - EW
EEBHE THRERBEKE
AIRBEARLNRERTSZHES
AEE - AEEZHEREEY
ERRDESHERETREE
25k BMRAEEES AN
BEfE  URRETEMHH
BERSEANEEEERE
DEMHEHRRIRBES

TRFIRAEE W IEHTE S
8 EREBEDROTBEL
S E - HIREAORME
Re KB (BERNAEENR
0 BV H R 38 31 B B9 R B 508
RAEEENRHEST A B
CEETTE

31 December 2016
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
3 nE+-R=T-HENABRRER

More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2years but
1yearoron  lessthan  lessthan  More than Carrying
demand 2 years 5 years 5years Total amount
—Fms BB-F£  BEWE
BEX EORWE BEORIE  LFML @zt REfE
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARMTZ ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Bank loans RITER 1,094,236 739,227 926,437 192,015 2,951,915 2,837,213
Trade and other payables B3 R EfENFIE 486,066 = = = 486,066 486,066
Total h 1,580,302 739,227 926,437 192,015 3,437,981 3,323,279
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF

(b)

27 cREAREEREMIENAT

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) B(#E)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) (b) REBEEEER(E)
31 December 2015
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
“E-RFT- AT -AEHARBRER
Morethan ~ More than
Within -~ 1yearbut 2 years but
1 yearoron less than lessthan  More than Carrying
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
-Fhg  BB-F  BEWF
REX BIRWmE EIREF  REHNE EH) e
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRT AREBTRT AREBTRT ARETRT ARET:
Bank loans RITER 706,591 468,203 814,618 208435 2,197,847 2,009,566
Trade and other payables ~ Z5 REMERFE 321,551 = = = 321,551 321,551
Total st 1,028,142 468,203 814,618 208435 2519398 2,331,117
Interest rate risk (c) FEE

(c)

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from variable
rates bank loans, which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased the Group’s
profit after tax for the year by approximately RMB24,710,000
(2015: RMB17,565,000), mainly as a result of higher finance
costs on bank loans. The impact on the Group’s profit after
tax is estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2015.
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BRERERAEEDBIRDHA
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FERNRITEREE K AL
nprek - REBEBRFZERIET
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS(Cont'd)

(d)

(e)

U]

Currency risk

Individual companies within the Group has limited foreign
currency risk as most of the transactions are denominated
in the same currency as the functional currency of the
operations in which they relate. However, as the Company
and other investment holding subsidiaries incorporated
in the Cayman Islands, BVl and Hong Kong have their
functional currencies in HKD, therefore any appreciation or
depreciation of RMB against HKD will affect the Group’s
financial position and result of operation.

Fair value measurement

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
are not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2016 and 2015.

Estimation of fair value

The following summarizes the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial
instruments.

()  Gross amounts due from customers for contract work

Gross amounts due from customers for contract work
are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

27 cREAREEREMIENAT

'(4#)
(d) E#¥EE

(e)

(f)

HRAREEREBER 2 FZ K
MARZIURRELERRER
ZYEERBHER 2%
B BMREZIERRLTE
Koo R - ARAATRER
FMERES RBELHENRE
BRI 2 IREZRIE R
AIIREERRET - Bt
ARBEBITZEZEART
P BB AN SR B B AR I AR
R o

ATEE

AEBSMT ANEEER
R-B—XER-B—IF
+=A=+ - AWATELE
EATA -

DAL

TXHaffsr M T AR FE
RFTER IV EZ SRR ©

() EREFSHTEFNE
ﬁ@gg

ey

REFENIEMIA
MENLTRLIFER
W HEEABERA =
ERBEAIIR
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

() Estimation of fair value (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts. Fair value
is calculated based on the present value of future
principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the
market rate of interest at the end of the reporting
period.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are
used, estimated future cash flows are based on
management’s best estimates and the discount rate is
a market related rate for a similar instrument at the end
of the reporting period.

Bank loans

The fair value is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at current market interest
rates for similar financial instruments at the end of the
reporting period.

Property, plant and equipment

The fair value of property, plant and equipment
recognised as a result of a business combination is
based on market values. The market value of property
is the estimated amount for which a property could be
exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction
after proper marketing wherein the parties had each
acted knowledgeably and willingly. The fair value of
items of plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings is based
on the market approach and cost approaches using
quoted market prices for similar items when available
and replacement cost when appropriate.
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(i)

(i)

(iv)
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28 COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2016
not provided for in the financial statements were as

28 IRIE

(@ R=FB—XRE+=-A=+-
B EAREEB BN KR

follows: REENEAREREDT !
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—4F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#&ET T AR¥T T
Contracted for EHED 222,364 83,068
Authorised but not contracted for EHUEEBRETY 1,486,176 2,017,547
1,708,540 2,100,615

At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

b) R-B—AE+=A=+-
G ERE E L
2 RRBERE R RBED

T :
2016 2015
ZE—AREF —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT AR®ETT

Within 1 year —FR 7,323 4,958
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFR 17,129 16,160
After 5 years HF#% 29,921 45,616

54,373 66,734

Operating leases mainly represent a land use right leasing
arrangement with a total leasing period of 16 years.

REHETERERENB16FNLHE
MEREZH -
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The directors are of the view that related parties of the Group

include the following individuals/companies:

Name of related party
BBt a S BE

29 EXHBAXRS

EERARTEENBEBR S BEAT
AL/ RF:

Relationship with the Group
HAE BB RE

Mr. Tsui Cham To
wEEEE

Mr. Xu Juwen
®RIENKAE

Mr. Gu Yaokun (ii)

R S A (i)

Mr. Gu Jiatao

hReERE

Ms. Liang Yanxia

RYTE+

Mr. Lu Zhiji

EEELE

Mr. Gan Yongxiong

HoKiEEE

Guangzhou To Kee (i)

EMERE (i)

Guangzhou Tian Tian Cleaning and Washing
Company Limited (“Tian Tian”) (i)

B R RIRZFIFRE R B (TRXK D)

Longmen Yagang Copper Company Limited
(“Longmen Copper”) (i)

BEPI RS S AR B ([ FEFI=ZSM 1) ()
Guangyuan Zhongtao Textile Company
Limited (“Guangyuan Zhongtao”) (i)
BrxHaEsmsiaRA R (TExTHE D)

Guangyuan Haitao Textile Company
Limited (“Guangyuan Haitao”) (i)

BruEEsSaRAR(ETEED()

Guangyuan To Kee Textile Company
Limited (“Guangyuan To Kee”) (i)

BroEasaRA R (TETER D)

Haigin Tiancheng (i)

80 R (1)

CT Environmental Group Limited Annual Report 2016

Controlling Shareholder

ERBR R

Executive Director

HITES

A minority shareholder of the Company/
Executive Director

EARDERE HITES

Close family member of Mr. Gu Yaokun

HREELE 2 ERETNRERE

Close family member of Mr. Gu Yaokun

HRR AL C ERETINHERE

A former minority shareholder of Guangzhou Yinglong

BEMBERDERR

Key management personnel

FEEEAE

Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder

HERRRERES

Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder

HIERRRERES
Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder

HERRRERES
Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder

HIERRRERES
Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder

HERRRERES
Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder

HRERRRERES
Joint Venture of the Group
rEBEEAQTA
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Name of related party
(ol -t

29 EAEBAXZ(H)

Relationship with the Group
HAK BB RAEF

Guangzhou Haigin Tiancheng Environmental
Consultancy Company Limited (“Haigin Tiancheng
Consultancy”)(i)

BN REBIRBAATRA B (D8 R HAEA ()

Zhuhai Yingrun Environmental Protection Technology
Company Limited (“Zhuhai Yingrun”)(i)

HwETmEBRABRARQ A (TEEBE ()

Guangzhou Lvyou (i)(iii)

J& A EH (i)iii)

Guangdong Lvyou Environmental Equipment
Company Limited (“Lvyou Equipment”) (i)(iii)

BERAZARRRRBAERA R (AEBERME D))

Guangdong Longtao (i)(iii)

JEERBEH (i)(iii)

Guangzhou Nansha Development Zone Lvjie
Disposal Recycling Store (“Nansha Lvjie”) (i)

BMNEIRBREREREESEBY MO IL
([FEaREE 1))

Guangzhou Panyu Luopu Kunrun Information
Technology and Consulting Services Department
(“Luopu Kunrun”) (i)

J& M T 2 BB (% 0 18 B S R i A R BR S B
([3& e 1)()

Guangzhou Wofeng Biological Technology
Company Limited (“Guangzhou Wofeng”) (i)

BT REERRERA T ([EMNRE ()

Guangzhou Lvchi Environmental Protection
Technology Company Limited
(“Guangzhou Lvchi”) (i)

B M AR B IR R ARHR B PR A 7 ([N AR5t 1) (i)

Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder

HERRRERES

Effectively owned by the close family member of Mr.
Gu Yaokun

Mo R s 2 BRETNREN S ERER

Former effectively owned by Mr. Gu Yaokun

SRR DR A BRER

Former effectively owned by Mr. Gu Yaokun
FERIH TR T B ER
Former effectively owned by

the Controlling Shareholder
FRREZERRRERES
Effectively owned by Mr. Gu Yaokun
MRt EBRER

Effectively owned by Mr. Gu Yaokun

MR T BRER
Effectively owned by Mr. Gu Yaokun

HE BB EEBRER
Effectively owned by Mr. Gu Yaokun

MR TEERER
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 29 EXRABAXRS(E)

Name of related party
)b et

Relationship with the Group
HAK BB RAEF

Guangzhou Lvhao Technology Service Company
Limited (“Guangzhou Lvhao”) (i)

EM AR MRS A R A B ([EM AR ()

Guangzhou Anjing Environmental Protection
Technology Company Limited
(“Guangzhou Anjing”) (i)

BN ZRFRAREERA B (EMZFE D)

Guangzhou Lvcheng Industrial Company Limited
(“Guangzhou Lvcheng”) (i)

M AR T 2B BR A B ([ EIMNAR ()

Guangzhou Yanchen Zhili Profession Company
Limited (“Guangzhou Yanchen Zhili”) (i)

BMNERREEXERA T (EMNERSRE ()

Hengyang Lvtao Environmental Ceramsite Equipment
Company Limited (“Hengyang Lvtao”) (i)

k5 2 IR R A SR AB B PR 1 B ([R5 428 1) ()

CT Environmental Group Limited Annual Report 2016

Effectively owned by Mr. Gu Yaokun

&R EEBRER
Effectively owned by Mr. Gu Yaokun

MRt L BRER
Effectively owned by Mr. Gu Yaokun

HE R AL BRES

Mr. Tsui Cham To is a member of key management
personnel of the entity
WEEEEAZBERNEIEEEASZ—

Mr. Gu Yaokun is a member of key management
personnel of the entity

TR EERZERNERERAS Z—
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Notes:

(ii)

(a)

The English translation of the names is for reference only. The
official names of these companies are in Chinese.

Mr. Gu Yaokun subscribed 60,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and became a minority shareholder on 7 August 2014.
Mr. Gu Yaokun further subscribed 200,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company in August 2015.

The Group acquired 100% equity shares of Guangzhou Lvyou and
Guangdong Longtao during the year ended 31 December 2015.
Guangzhou Lvyou, Guangdong Longtao and Lvyou Equipment,
the subsidiary of Guangzhou Lvyou, were no longer related parties
and became subsidiaries of the Company upon completion of
the acquisition. The following disclosure of the related party
transactions related to the above companies is for the period prior
to the completion of acquisition.

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s director
as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

29 EAEBAXZ(H)

MyEE

(il

(a)

RXIRHPEENAZEHRSE -
ZERNTNBER EBBHLEM -

HRBEER-_E—NENS
+ A % 88 7~ 2 760,000,000 f%
TER UIABLERR- X
AZE—FENARBEARAT
200,000,000 JREEAL °

BE-_Z-HF+=-A=+—H
IEFE - A S U B8 B N 42 B AN
ERBEH100% ER KRG - EM
SH - BREESRSHRE(HA
BMNEHENHEAR) T B A
B RN REREREARRDT
WM AT o L3 A TR TR
BAHEERcBEH AR 2
EWT -

FTEEEASHMH

TEEEASHM(BEDMH
A7 BEA DR EE R
BFIZEE THREFMES
R MT -

2016 2015

—g—xE —B-If

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR#ETF T ARET T

Salaries and other benefits FERHMER 16,792 8,903
Share-based payments LABg 17 A ERE RS 954 —
Retirement scheme contributions RARGT SRR 160 109
17,906 9,012
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 29 EXRABAXRS(E)

(b) Recurring transactions

Particulars of significant transactions between the Group
and the above related parties during the year ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

(b)

KEERS

BE-Z—XR"ERZZ—HF
+tZA=+—HILEE  x&
MEE R BAEE S P fTIIE K
REFHBWT -

2016 2015

“E-—AE ZF-H%
RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBFT AR®ET T

Provision of wastewater processing services [6k X255k EIE RS

to Tian Tian (note) (B &E) 4,107 5,462
Provision of sludge treatment services to 6 B M AR R DT
Guangzhou Lvyou BRIEIRH — 23,533
Receive of technical testing services from B RS
Haiqin Tiancheng B AR TS 787 1,150
Receive of consulting services from BB KB EAES
Haigin Tiancheng Consultancy B BRTE 1,369 —
Receive of consultancy services from: BUTARES
AR AR S
- Nansha Lvjie —F iR 776 —
— Luopu Kunrun — &R E 2,628 —
- Guangzhou Wofeng —EMKRE 1,708 —
— Guangzhou Lvchi — M 425t 1,429 —
— Guangzhou Lvhao — EMNARRE 319 —
- Guangzhou Anjing — BN F 971 —
7,831 —

Note: The related party transaction constitutes continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules are provided in the paragraph headed
“Continuing connected transactions” of the section headed
“Report of the Directors” of this annual report.

CT Environmental Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 29 EXBBAXS (&)
(¢) Non-recurring transactions (c) FKEHRS
2016 2015
—F-RE —F-1F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®FT AR®ETR

Provision of technical testing services to ) & R S A SR AR Al

Mr. Gu Yaokun B RS 194 —
Acquisition of Guangzhou Lvyou from ] oy W 3 St A U

Mr. Gu Yaokun BN AR — 307,062
Acquisition of Guangzhou Lvyou from EEEA- R

Mr. Gu Jiatao BN AR — 150,822
Acquisition of Guangzhou Lvyou from o REE 2+ iR

Ms. Liang Yanxia EMiEE R — 80,829
Acquisition of Guangdong Longtao from B R

Guangzhou To Kee ERAEEE R — 10,000
Entrusted operation revenue from REBMNFHNETT

Guangzhou Lvyou EE W — 66,800
Purchase of equipments from: m U T A B EREE R
- Lvyou Equipment — R = 6,208
- Guangzhou Lvyou —BEMikE — 1,235
- Hengyang Lvtao — k4% 0 14,122 S

14,122 7,443
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(c)

CT Environmental Group Limited Annual Report 2016

Non-recurring transactions (Cont’d)

29

EXRBAR S5 (E)

(c) FEEMRZHE)

2016 2015
—B-xE ZB-IfF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARET T

Advances to: [ AT & HVEH B -
- Guangzhou To Kee —BEMNER — 19,912
- Guangzhou Lvcheng — B NARIE 99,000 —
— Mr. Gu Yaokun — LR — 19,960
- Guangzhou Yanchen Zhili — BEMNEERE 4,500 —
- Guangzhou Lvyou —BEMN#RE — 12,200
- Mr. Gan Yongxiong —HoKi#EEE 250 —
- Guangdong Longtao —EREH — 4,800
- Haigin Tiancheng SN — 1,634
- Haigin Tiancheng Consultancy — DR A 1,000 —
- Zhuhai Yingrun —REEE 1,123 —
105,873 58,506
2016 2015
—®-x& C"E-If
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARET T

Advances from: REATERNEX :

— Mr. Gu Yaokun — B A 50,000 —
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(d) Balances with related parties (d) EERAEES MV4EeR
()  Amounts due from related parties () EREE A
2016 2015
At —F-afF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT T
Current BN HA

Trade receivables from: EURATE&EFESFIE :
— Tian Tian —RX 3,239 500
- Zhuhai Yingrun - EE — 20
Sub-total PNEE 3,239 520

Other receivables from: HA W AT & 7IE ¢
- Guangzhou To Kee —BEMNER — 621
- Mr. Tsui Cham To —HEEEE 495 463
— Mr. Gu Yaokun — mRE A 121,620 224,450
- Haigin Tiancheng — DR 1,455 1,455
— Haigin Tiancheng Consultancy — DR EEH 1,024 —
- Guangyuan Zhongtao —BErxHE — 40
- Guangyuan Haitao —BEE — 40
- Guangyuan To Kee —EERe — 40
- Nansha Lvjie —F iR 47 —
— Luopu Kunrun — &R HE 1,799 —
- Guangzhou Wofeng —-BEMNRE 617 —
— Guangzhou Lvchi — BN 4R 5t 999 —
- Guangzhou Lvhao — EMN#RRE 3,371 —
- Guangzhou Anjing —-BEMEF 1,500 —
- Zhuhai Yingrun —RERE 854 =
Sub-total N 133,781 227,109
Total HEt 137,020 227,629

29

EXRBARZ S

(%)
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(d) Balances with related parties (Cont’d)

(i) Amounts due to related parties

29 EAEBAXZ(H)

(d) EREARETTEVAEER(E)

(i) FENEIEE R

2016 2015

—E—RE ZE—HF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBT T

Trade payables to Haigin Tiancheng ~ FEfIBIb K82 B 5 K18 353 700
Other payables to: HA AU T &G FIE ¢

- Mr. Tsui Cham To —HREE L — 409

- Guangyuan To Kee —BEERe — 300

- Haigin Tiancheng — DR 50 270

- Guangzhou To Kee —EMER — 3,039

- Hengyang Lvtao — k420 2,501 —

2,904 4,718

The balances with these related parties are unsecured,

interest free and have no fixed repayment terms.
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30 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

(i)

PERIOD

On 31 December 2016, Guangzhou Xintao entered into an
agreement with local government authorities. Pursuant to the
agreement, the local government and Guangzhou Xintao will
jointly collaborate to commence the construction and operation
of the project. On 19 January 2017, Guangzhou Xintao and a third
party, which is an investment company authorised by the local
government, further jointly set up a project company named Yulin
Futao Enterprises Co., Ltd., to construct and operate the project.
The estimated capital expenditure for the project is approximately
RMB240,000,000. The construction work is estimated to be
completed in December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has entered to
a sales and purchases agreement with a third party to dispose 99% of
equity interest of Xintao Environmental Technology Company Limited
(“Xintao Environmental”) at a consideration of RMB100,000,000. The
Group has received a deposit of RMB30,000,000 from the third party
as at 31 December 2016. As part of agreement terms, Guangzhou
Xintao has to transfer a land use right to Xintao Environmental before
disposal of Xintao Environmental. On 2 March 2017, Guangzhou
Xintao has completed the above transfer of the land use right to Xintao
Environmental.

30.

(i)

REHEFAESEE

REZB-—R"EF+ZA=+t—-H &
W30 B E 1t BT AR 2R AT 0o -
RIS 17 % - B 1 BT B M E A%
HESFHRZEENERRE
g2-R-ZE—tF-AThRB &
MEHE-RE=F D E(BZEH
B RERERR)E-FHREKL
—EEAEIMHEEEXREREM
REMRERE  UERREEZ
HE - ZBENEHEREZNS
A R % 240,000,000 - & T2
A RZE-NF+ZAEK °

BEZE_Z—~"HE+=-HA=+—8H
LtEE AEFE-FFE=F%
A EEmE UREARE
100,000,000 Jt # & N 37 78 IR R B
EERABTHERR 9% H
RiEHE BE-F—-—~E+=A4
=t+—HB ' AEBEEZE=ZAK
HiZ £ A ER#30,000,0007T ° E4
RGN —E 5 EMFEER
HEFEIRRANG L F A EE
FHHEER R-ZZE—tFE=AZ
B EMEFETR LIS FERR
(9 1+ i 55 FAREEE 3 -
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31 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 31 RARAEEZIMBHRRE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (UARHEZZ])
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-1F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T AR®T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHE A TRIRE 901,670 812,700
Other receivables H b fER I 7,544 —
909,214 812,700
Current assets REEE
Other receivables Hith FEU IR 1,217,037 1,245,270
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEY 6,078 11,970
Deposits with banks with original maturity FHRIRITIREEIH A
date over three months BE=A Z2EFEX 3,287 3,076
1,226,402 1,260,316
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables HibERRIE 1,913 917
Bank loans RITER 65,566 185,425
67,479 186,342
Net current assets REEEFE 1,158,923 1,073,974
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERTEARE 2,068,137 1,886,674
Non-current liability ERBERK
Bank loans IRITER 524,988 229,456
524,988 229,456
Net assets EEFE 1,543,149 1,657,218
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PR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥EFI + 1E5 it HEH )

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Cont’d)

31 RRABEZMBRRRE)

(Expressed in Renminbi) (UAREZZ)
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-HF
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
B EE AR¥T T ARBT T

CAPITAL AND RESERVES B AR 26(b)

Share capital i 125,392 125,392
Reserves B 1,417,757 1,531,826
Total equity MR 1,543,149 1,657,218

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31
March 2017.

Directors

~_— — — ~— ~—

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTIES

At 31 December 2016, the directors consider the immediate
controlling party to be Keen Vast Holding Limited (3 XiZR B[R
‘A|]), while the ultimate controlling party of the Company as at 31
December 2016 to be Mr. Tsui Cham To.

RZZBE-—ttF=ZA=+—-BKES
SHUERRETE -

B3

32 EHEREEERTA

EERAE R-E-XRE+=A
St -HNEEERSBERER
BRAT  MARTR-B-—RF
TZA=T-BNRZERE AR
ST

hHRREEFRAT FEHE 2016
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (A R¥FIT + 165 Bt HEBH)

33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and new standards which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

33

BE-F—R"F+ZRA=+—H
I EEMMER R ERRE
Al R RRERARERSE

BEAMBHRRTIZHAY 582
TR A S E B S IRHIERT KA
Al - ZEMETRIMEURBE
E-RE+ZA=t+—HLFEHN
RER » EPBHRPER =X
EFMEFT RFHER - IT B ATREE
REEEBENARIER -

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning on
or after

R BEASL
Z &R
estHEER

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative

BRETHEAETRESRNEX - WEIES 25T

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets

for unrealised losses

BREERNE 125N - BAELERESELNEEEZI5E

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BEBNBREEAEIREHMTA

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
BERMEHREERE15FEEFENNRE

1 January 2017
—E—+F
—H—AH

1 January 2017
—E—+F
—H—H

1 January 2018
—EB-N\F
—HR—H

1 January 2018
—E-N\F
—H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and measurement

of share-based payment transactions

EBMBIRELERNE 2 SRR BEFAITF - KRG BEBHITAX

CH
HKFRS 16, Leases
BERMEHREERE16EHEE

CT Environmental Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Cont’d)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the Group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course
and will be taken into consideration when determining whether
to adopt any of these new requirements before their effective
date and which transitional approach to take, where there are
alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, calculation of impairment of financial assets. On the other
hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without substantive changes the
requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments and the classification of financial liabilities.
Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s
financial statements are as follows:

33
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EAFE FAHFEZE—SHE
AERAIT o RAEE R ARTRE
il E-PEEERNBRERR
REE R B RZEHTERI LA
RNZEEAREBAERIER %
(REGFEMERAEEt
BV TUER

FEEMBRELENEIR T
g

ERMBREEREIFEBMAE
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BB BT ERE0%E /@I
B AR E - BBUBRSE
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E TELREERENTRE -
S—FHE BEAUEREEAF
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B30 EBEARKR RIS H
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T
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Cont’d)

(@) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories
for financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) as follows:

o The classification for debt instruments is determined
based on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument
is classified as FVTOCI then effective interest,
impairments and gains/losses on disposal will be
recognised in profit or loss.

° For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL
regardless of the entity’s business model. The only
exception is if the equity security is not held for trading
and the entity irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is designated
as FVTOCI then only dividend income on that security
will be recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses and
impairments on that security will be recognised in other
comprehensive income without recycling.

CT Environmental Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Cont’d)

(a)

Classification and measurement (Cont’d)

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expects
that its financial assets currently measured at amortised cost
and FVTPL will continue with their respective classification
and measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

The classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged
from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value
change of a financial liability designated at FVTPL that is
attributable to changes of that financial liability’s own credit
risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). The Group currently does
not have any financial liabilities designated at FVTPL and
therefore this new requirement may not have any impact on
the Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Cont’d)

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit
loss” model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will
no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required
to recognise and measure expected credit losses as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected
credit losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may result in
an earlier recognition of credit losses on the Group’s trade
receivables and other financial assets. However, a more
detailed analysis is required to determine the extent of the
impact.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue from
construction contracts. The Group is currently assessing the
impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on its financial statements.
Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group has
identified the following areas which are likely to be affected:

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed
in note 1(v). Currently, revenue arising from construction
contracts and the provision of services is recognised over
time, whereas revenue from the sale of goods is generally
recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership have
passed to the customers.
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Cont’d)

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the
contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which control
of the promised good or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

(@ When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

(b) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

() When the entity’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the entity and the entity
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall
into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the
entity recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service
at a single point in time, being when control has passed.
Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the
indicators that will be considered in determining when the
transfer of control occurs.
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Cont’d)

As a result of this change from the risk-and-reward approach
to the contract-by-contract transfer-of-control approach, it
is possible that once the Group adopts HKFRS 15 some of
the Group’s contract manufacturing and residential property
development activities that are currently recognised at a
point in time may meet the HKFRS 15 criteria for revenue
recognition over time. This will depend on the terms of
the sales contract and the enforceability of any specific
performance clauses in that contract, which may vary
depending on the jurisdiction in which the contract would
be enforced. It is also possible that for the remainder of
the Group’s contracts the point in time when revenue is
recognised may be earlier or later than under the current
accounting policy. However, further analysis is required to
determine whether this change in accounting policy may
have a material impact on the amounts reported in any given
financial reporting period.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(k), the Group’s leases are operating
leases. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor and
others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under a
lease.
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application
of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit or
loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed in note 28(b),
at 31 December 2016 the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases amount
to RMB54,373,000 for land use right, the majority of which
is payable in more than 5 years. Some of these amounts
may therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities,
with corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS
16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform a more
detailed analysis to determine the amounts of new assets
and liabilities arising from operating lease commitments
on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the
applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting for
any leases entered into or terminated between now and the
adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

The Group is considering whether to adopt HKFRS 16 before
its effective date of 1 January 2019. However, early adoption
of HKFRS 16 is only permitted if this is no earlier than the
adoption of HKFRS 15. It is therefore unlikely that HKFRS 16
will be adopted before the effective date of HKFRS 15, being
1 January 2018.
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Financial Summary

MBHE

The following table summarizes the consolidated results, assets and THREAARERBE+=-A=1+—H
liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 December: LHHEFENGEEE EEREE:

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
57§ CE-1f CZB-mF CZE-zf ZB-CF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT  ARETR  AR®TR  ARBTr  ARETx
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(EEE5) (&E35) (& &5)

Results E
Turnover 2EH 1,865,940 1,434,959 818,116 386,827 312,266
Profit before taxation BB AR 616,928 670,575 373,858 218,531 173,695
Income tax Frie®t 102,468 69,323 34,542 39,186 29,404
Profit attributable to equity KRRER

holders of the Company BB AEERR 519,137 598,916 336,478 179,050 144,193
Assets BE
Non-current assets FREERE 4,768,081 4,258 442 2,214,636 897,761 685,137
Current assets RBEE 2,103,607 1,246,351 637,318 589,425 240,392
Total assets BEREA 6,871,688 5,504,793 2,851,954 1,487,186 925,529
Liabilities 8fE
Non-current liabilities FREaE 2,031,579 1,621,769 817,417 436,798 448 855
Current liabilities RBEE 1,605,542 986,469 539,908 163,285 158,899
Total liabilities BEAA 3,637,121 2,608,238 1,357,325 600,083 607,754
Total equity R 3,234,567 2,896,555 1,494,629 887,103 317,775
Total equity of attributable KOTSRS

to equity holders of the Company XN fart 3,225,381 2,882,692 1,471,395 884,968 316,537
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